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VISION

To be a world leader in the provision of horse
racing, sporting and betting entertainment, and
Hong Kong’s premier charity and community
benefactor.
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MISSION

To provide total customer satisfaction through
meeting the expectations of all Club customers
and stakeholders — the racing and betting
public; lottery players; Club Members; charities
and community organisations; Government;
and, ultimately, the people of Hong Kong —
and thereby be one of Hong Kong’'s most
respected organisations.
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Chairman’s Statement / FREWE

Club's trusted
partnerships merit
due recognition

The past year has been an excellent one all round for The
Hong Kong Jockey Club and the wider community it serves,
with new records set for turnover, tax payments to
Government and, most importantly, charitable donations. |
should like to express my sincere thanks to our Members for
the part they have played in this, through horse ownership or
other support to our racing activities, as well as to all our
customers. It’s a performance of which every one of us can
feel very proud.

At the heart of this success has been our strategy of
reinvigorating horse racing through significant investments
in upgrading racecourse facilities and strengthening its
social entertainment elements, initiatives that are
attracting people from all walks of life back to the sport.
This is reflected in the especially encouraging racing
results for 2012/13, which saw turnover exceed HK$94
billion, a new all-time high. When you consider that by
year 2005/06, racing turnover had fallen steadily since
1997 to as low as HK$59 billion, this is quite a phenomenal
turnround.

These splendid results have been achieved despite a
year of considerable challenge for Hong Kong on different
fronts, not to mention competitive pressures on the Club
at both local and international level. To my mind, this
underlines the Club’s role as a constant and stabilising
force in society, providing Hong Kong people with their
favourite form of weekly entertainment while being a major
contributor to the community through its not-for-profit
business model.

Also important have been the tax reforms on horse
racing implemented by the Government at our urging in
2006, which have helped the Club fight growing
competition from illegal and offshore markets and
produced a handsome return to the community at large.

In this regard, we greatly welcome another important
legislative change endorsed in July, which eliminates the
“double taxation” on bets received from overseas and will
at last make practicable the commingling of betting pools

between different racing jurisdictions. This will not only
benefit Hong Kong by combating illegal bookmakers, who
at present can thrive by arbitraging the odds differences
between separate pools, but will also serve to enhance
overseas interest in our racing product, our integrity and
the liquidity we offer, and maintain Hong Kong’s status as
a world-leading horse racing city.

The successes of Hong Kong-trained horses inter-
nationally in recent years have already underlined the
quality of our racing to overseas fans, not least the superb
double Group One victories achieved by Lucky Nine and
Military Attack at the Singapore Airlines International
Raceday in May. Next May, Hong Kong’s hosting of the
35th Asian Racing Conference, the world’s largest racing
forum bringing together some 1,000 of the industry’s top
decision-makers from across the globe, will give us a
further opportunity to highlight our leading position.

With the rapid globalisation of racing as a sport, we
believe that commingling has the potential to position
Hong Kong at the apex of international collaborations
in the coming years. In this respect, it is strategically
important. As we see in this tenth anniversary year of
HKJC Football, the strategic decision to introduce football
betting in 2003 has seen Hong Kong become one of the
largest and most successful football operators in the
world. Over the ensuing decade, this wise decision by the
Government has led to a 61% increase in our return to the
community through tax payments and a near doubling of
our charitable donations.

Even in a year like 2012/13 when there were no major
international tournaments, football turnover was up 7%.
This in fact has now made football betting the Club’s single
largest revenue earner, as our share of gross margin on
football, at HK$4.21 billion, exceeded the HK$4.12 billion
share of gross margin on racing due to the much higher
tax rate on horse race betting.

Meanwhile, the Club’s third principal operation, the
Mark Six lottery, saw essentially flat growth, with the
Club’s commission amounting to HK$458 million. Besides
generating HK$1.91 billion in Lottery Duty, the Mark Six
realised a HK$1.14 billion contribution to the Lotteries
Fund, which supports social welfare projects.

As a result of these performances, the Club’s total
turnover in 2012/13 hit a record HK$152.60 billion and its
tax payments to Government totalled HK$17.64 billion,
also arecord. This amounts to an estimated 7.3% of all tax
payments collected by the Inland Revenue Department.

Meanwhile, from the surpluses generated, the Hong
Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust was able to make
donations totalling almost HK$1.95 billion to charitable
and community projects, once again an all-time record



“This underlines the
Club’s role as a constant
and stabilising force in
society, providing Hong
Kong people with their
favourite form of weekly
entertainment while
being a major
contributor to the
community through its
not-for-profit business

and an impressive 12.7% increase on last year’s record
figure of HK$1.73 billion.

Taken together, the Club’s total direct return to the
community in 2012/13 in terms of tax payments, charitable
donations and contributions to the Lotteries Fund

exceeded HK20.74 billion, underlining the huge value that
the Jockey Club brings to Hong Kong and its people. This
compares with just HK$12.71 billion in 2002/03.

On the Membership front, our upgrading of Members’
facilities at the racecourses and clubhouses continued, as
noted by our CEO in his statement which follows. Our
Beijing Clubhouse celebrated its 5th Anniversary earlier
this year and is proving very successful in broadening our
brand image and membership base on the Chinese
Mainland. Looking to the future, we are conducting
detailed studies of how best to enhance the Club’s
membership facilities, especially at our ever-popular
Happy Valley Clubhouse, in line with the changing profile
and expectations of our Members.

The Charities Trust’s HK$1.95 billion donations during
the year supported no fewer than 160 different projects
large and small, yet another record, and their benefits will
ultimately be enjoyed by up to three-quarters of all Hong
Kong citizens. Again, this is a significant jump from a
decade ago when 126 projects were supported.

The Trust’s donations cover a wide range of projects

model.*

across four main categories, namely Community Services,
Education and Training, Medical and Health, and Sports,
Recreation and Culture. To ensure their maximum reach
and effectiveness, we work closely with NGOs, district
organisations and other parties across Hong Kong as
trusted community partners, helping to fill gaps in a
number of important areas and support needy groups
across different parts of the city.

One particular current focus area is sports develop-
ment, as we believe that the opportunity to play different
sports can add tremendously to citizens’ well-being in
today’s rapidly-changing society. In the past year we have
committed almost HK$400 million to sports and recreation
alone. Sport connects people from all walks of life, it builds
team spirit and discipline, and promotes a healthy lifestyle
- as demonstrated by the successful models of our Kau
Sai Chau Public Golf Course, which attracts some 216,000
golfers and visitors a year, and our various youth football
training schemes.

One of our significant donations in this area during
2012/13 was a HK$103 million donation to the Hong Kong
Sports Institute, whose establishment the Club helped to
fund in the 1970s, for the purpose of converting the old
athletes’ hostel into a multi-purpose training and coaching
centre. It complements a HK$1.7 billion redevelopment of
the Institute currently being undertaken by the Government
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Chairman’s Statement / EREHE

¢ As The Hong Kong
Jockey Club approaches
its 130th Anniversary of
serving the community
in the year ahead, I hope
that its role as a Force for

and brings the Club’s total support for the Institute since
1977 to nearly HK$700 million, including a HK$350 million
endowment fund set up in 1986.

Football is another priority area, due to its high ability
to capture youth participation. We have recently
authorised HK$20 million to commence a feasibility study
on the Hong Kong Football Academy and master plan
study of the landfill site at Tseung
Kwan O, hopefully enabling this
long-awaited project to move
forward towards a structured
business and implementation
plan. Meanwhile, work continues
on two projects agreed earlier, the
Jockey Club Kitchee Centre and
the redevelopment of South China
Athletic Association, which covers
its football stadium and facilities
for several other sports.

Our plans to establish a Golf
Academy at Kau Sai Chau,

GO()d in Society and a unveiled last year, are also making
. good progress, with all the

trusted communlty necessary feasibility studies and
design work now complete. Our

partner can be duly targeted opening date is 2016.
. . The Golf Academy will serve as a
recognlsed by ltS platform for developing structured
: education programmes at post-

Members’ Worklng secondary level on golf-related

partners and the public

at large. »

subjects, including professional
golf playing and golf course
management.

Another area of donations
to which we attach high priority
is community services, which
accounted for more than half the
number of projects supported in 2012/13 and total
donations of nearly HK$500 million. We are especially
concerned about Hong Kong’s ageing population trend
and the challenges to society this will bring over the years
ahead. During the past year, we agreed funding for the
renovation and expansion of the Jockey Club Centre for
Positive Ageing (JCCPA), a pioneering project that was
established with Trust funding in 2000. This latest donation
will, among other things, provide expanded day care
facilities and training for the carers of elderly dementia
sufferers, benefiting some 5,000 people over the next two
years. Our total support for the JCCPA has now exceeded
HK$90 million.

We also granted funding to the Hong Kong Alzheimer’s

Disease Association for the renovation of its Brain
Health Centre in Wong Tai Sin, likewise aimed at
improving the quality of dementia care and prevention.
This coming October, we will organise a symposium on
“Gerontechnology” - how technology can help the ageing
population - as part of the Cadenza project, initiated by
the Trust in 2006 to tackle elderly care issues.

In the area of healthcare, donations in 2012/13 totalled
HK$426 million. Among them was a HK$54 million grant to
the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine to establish a Clinical
Simulation Centre, which will provide a simulation-based
training system for healthcare professionals in various
different disciplines.

The needs of the poor and underprivileged in Hong
Kong are also issues of great concern for society, and will
continue to be a focus of the Trust in the year ahead.
Besides projects in this area under elderly and healthcare
categories, we made total grants of HK$38 million to the
city’s two leading hot meal services for the needy, the Bo
Charity Foundation’s Food Angel Programme and the
St. James’ Settlement Jockey Club Hot Meal Service. In
addition to providing million of meals a year to elderly and
needy residents, these initiatives source surplus food from
hotels and supermarket chains, helping reduce the
pressure on Hong Kong’s landfills.

Education and training projects accounted for a
further HK$267 million, including the funding of new
student hostels for the Hang Seng Management College,
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and
Hong Kong Baptist University.

I’m also pleased to report that the Central Police
Station Revitalisation Project, the Club’s largest-ever
commitment to heritage conservation, has made further
solid progress throughout the year. Conservation work on
the 16 historic buildings is now under way, with painstaking
attention being given to preserving or restoring their
original architectural detail, while foundation work for the
two new arts buildings has also commenced.

In February we invited expressions of interest from
qualified partners to operate the heritage and
contemporary art elements, and their feedback is now
being studied. We have also invited proposals to operate
an integrated cultural and leisure offering at the Central
Magistracy Building and to provide visitor services. When
the revitalisation works are completed in 2015, we are
confident it will help make Hong Kong a world-class
heritage attraction, centre for contemporary arts and
leisure venue.

Separately from its Charities Trust donations, the Club
continues to lend a helping hand to those in need on the
Chinese Mainland. During the year, another of the Sichuan



reconstruction projects we funded with a HK$1 billion
donation in 2008 was opened, the HKJC Research Centre
on Disaster Management at the new Institute for Disaster
Management & Reconstruction (IDMR). This pioneering
project, established jointly by Sichuan University and
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, can help the nation
prepare better for future natural disasters.

When a 7.0 magnitude earthquake struck Ya’an in
Sichuan province in April this year — an area previously
affected by the devastating 2008 earthquake — we made a
further HK$10 million donation to support emergency relief
work there and were most encouraged to learn that the
IDMR and other projects funded by the Club’s earlier
donation were in the front line of giving help.

For example, the IDMR was immediately mobilised to
help provide survival guidelines, and Club-funded medical
vehicles enabled the Sichuan Provincial 8-1 Rehabilitation
Centre to be the first provincial medical team to reach
affected areas and provide timely assistance to victims.
At the same time, the Club’s support for the Centre’s rehab
services enabled most victims of the latest earthquake to
receive effective treatment and be quickly discharged.

To me, this has highlighted the value of the close
partnership approach we adopted in helping Sichuan
residents recover from the 2008 disaster, and the strong
focus we put on sustainability in the Club-funded projects.
It also reflects the high governance standards we set in
the planning, implementation and management of the
Club’s Sichuan projects to ensure most efficient use of our
donations. All Club-funded projects have withstood the
latest earthquake.

We would like to do more on the charitable front given
the opportunity, but to do this we need the community’s
continued support and understanding at a time when the
Club’s own long-term sustainability continues to face
strong challenges from other leisure and entertainment
options in the neighbouring region, not to mention from
unauthorised online and offshore gaming operators. We
also have to be conscious of the still fragile economic
recovery in various parts of the world and the impact that
might have on Hong Kong.

As the city’s major taxpayer and charitable benefactor,
we see it as the Club’s duty to stay competitive in the best
interests of the community at large. While the green light
has now been given to commingling as a means of
strengthening competitiveness and fighting illegal
bookmaking, it has been a lengthy process. Generally, |
feel that Hong Kong needs to be more readily responsive
and understanding in addressing these competitive issues
if the city is to maintain its position in today’s rapidly-
changing environment. When we propose changes like

this, it is not a matter of self-interest; there are sound and
sensible reasons for it.

Looking ahead, our major investments in racing
infrastructure will continue at Sha Tin Racecourse which is
just approaching its 35 years of service. These investments
are essential for maintaining Hong Kong’s competitiveness
in racing and require bold commitment on our part, as well
as commitment of the Government as we will need to renew
the land lease for the site shortly. | am hopeful that we can
reach a mutually agreeable arrangement.

As The Hong Kong Jockey Club approaches its 130th
Anniversary of serving the community in the year ahead,
| hope that its role as a Force for Good in society and a
trusted community partner can be duly recognised by its
Members, working partners and the public at large. | can
think of no other organisation that provides such wide-
ranging sporting and social facilities to its members
whilst also bringing countless benefits to the community
at large.

In closing, may | thank my fellow Stewards for their
valuable guidance during the year, with particular mention
of Dr Donald Li who stepped down in March due to
increasing professional commitments, having been a
tireless contributor to the Board’s work. In his place we
have been delighted to welcome Martin Liao, whose
extensive record of public service is without doubt an
equally valuable asset. On a less happy note, we were
saddened last August to learn of the passing of Sir John
Swaine who served the Board with distinction for 12 years
from 1984 to 1996, the last three as Chairman in a very
significant period of development for the Club.

Most of all, | should like to thank most sincerely our
Club Members and Voting Members for their continued
staunch support, along with our CEO, the Board of
Management and our 24,000 full- and part-time employees,
whose unceasing dedication makes the Jockey Club a
truly remarkable organisation. | look forward to another
successful year ahead.

T. Brian Stevenson
Chairman
26 July 2013
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Record year
underlines Hong
Kongs leadership
position in
sporting and
community

ambitious target of restoring racing turnover to pre-1997

development

It gives me pleasure to report that The Hong Kong Jockey
Club enjoyed another successful year in 2012/13 across all
areas of its operations, especially its core business of horse
racing. Total racing turnover reached its highest figure ever,
surpassing the previous peak of 1996/97, while racecourse
attendance was the best since 2003/04, with the Chinese
New Year Raceday attracting a remarkable turnout of nearly
119,000. This included almost 112,000 at Sha Tin, which
broke the all-time record for our flagship racecourse.
And at Happy Valley on season finale night, we had to put
up the “house full” sign at one point, for the first time in
recent memory.

These achievements once again demonstrate that
the Club’s strategy to revitalise racing, through systematic
customer segmentation and a customer-centric approach,
is reaping dividends for Hong Kong, by helping the Club
increase its return to the community through its tax
payments and charitable contributions — both of which
also set new records. In 2007 we set ourselves the

levels within ten years; in fact we have accomplished it in
six, attracting a new generation of racegoers to the sport.

During the year, we continued our efforts to broaden
the customer base for racing with new or refurbished facili-
ties for different target segments at both racecourses,
coupled with thematic lifestyle entertainment programmes
and the application of innovative technology that together,
help make a visit to the racecourse an unrivalled social
experience.

In this regard, the Club has established a successful,
customer-focused model for the sport’s long-term
sustainable development — a model that is being closely
observed by many other racing jurisdictions around the
world, keen to tackle the challenge of declining attendance
and an ageing customer trend.

Whereas earlier stages of our Racecourse Master
Plan were directed primarily on fulfilling unmet needs,
this year we have been able to put more focus on
renovations that meet growth in demand in key areas
and the aspirations of differing customer segments. New
or upgraded racecourse facilities opened for the start
of 2012/13 racing season included a new Owners
with Starters Box, Owners Cabin and Members Coffee
Shop at Sha Tin; and a new Young Members Box at
Happy Valley.



At Happy Valley we also enhanced the Public Betting
Hall area, giving it a more “female-friendly” ambience and
facilities in line with a steady increase in the number of
female customers joining our themed events under the
Happy Wednesday branding, which have firmly established
our city racetrack as a midweek hotspot connecting
horse racing and social entertainment fans. This year we
have extended the Happy Wednesday coverage to other
venues at the Valley besides the Beer Garden, while the
Happy Wednesday Facebook group now has more than
21,000 fans.

With a new generation of racegoers in mind, we also
continue to work hard at enhancing the digital experience.
The star of the show has been our Race Simulator App,
which has now received close to 400,000 downloads. Our
smartphone and tablet betting apps now serve more than
450,000 account customers and account for around 18%
of total racing, football and Mark Six turnover. Our
revolutionary ibu interactive entertainment table, which is
an enabling platform for other digital developments, was
honoured in four business awards during the year,
including the Best Practice Awards 2012 and Hong Kong
ICT Awards 2013.

Whilst strengthening the racing experience for our
customers, we also saw Hong Kong move further forward
in its vision of becoming a world leader in racing. The 2012
Hong Kong International Races were the most successful
to date under our prestigious new partnership with
Longines, drawing international stars like Omar Sharif and
Kate Winslet to Hong Kong, as well as top horses, trainers
and jockeys from all over the world. Both turnover and
attendance for this raceday were the highest in more than
a decade.

All four of the International Group One races produced
top-class action, with two of them going to locally-trained
horses — Ambitious Dragon, who won the LONGINES
Hong Kong Mile, and California Memory, who became
the first horse to gain back-to-back wins in the Hong
Kong Cup, with home-grown rider Matthew Chadwick in
the saddle.

Hong Kong also retained its grip on the International
Group One Champions Mile in May, courtesy of Dan Excel.
I’'m delighted to report that this race and the four Hong
Kong International Races were ranked among the World’s
Top 50 International Group/Grade One races in an
inaugural list compiled by the International Federation of
Horseracing Authorities in March. Staging five of the
world’s top 50 races is quite an amazing achievement for
a jurisdiction of Hong Kong’s size with only 83 race

meetings a year and a horse population of just above
1,200. The Hong Kong Sprint is actually ranked second
among all sprint races in the world.

In addition, Hong Kong-trained horses continued to
make their mark overseas last year, most notably by
landing both International Group One events at the
Singapore Airlines International Raceday on 19 May, when
Military Attack won the feature race, with Dan Excel
completing a Hong Kong quinella, while Lucky Nine took
the KrisFlyer International Sprint.

Our new Conghua Racehorse
Training Centre, across the Main-

land border, is another element of s
our efforts to ensure Hong Kong ¢ The Club S Strategy to
horses are competitive at interna- r eVit all sera Ci n g

’

tional level. In particular, it will

expose our horses to different through Systematic

types of training tracks, including

a turf track with a gentler home customer Segmentation

turn radius than Sha Tin and a

synthetic surface uphill gallop. and a customer-centric

Just as importantly, there will be

20 large turf spelling paddocks appr()aCh, iS reaping

dividends for Hong

their best. The feedback from our Kong by helplng the
’

where the horses can be relaxed,
thus better able to perform at

Owners and trainers has been

positive, and we have established Club increase its return

close working relationships with

Mainland authorities, which will be t() the COmmunity. »

crucial to the project’s success.

A further illustration of Hong
Kong’s growing recognition in
world racing was the move of the
Asian Racing Federation Secretariat to the city in August
2012. The Club has been one of the key drivers for the
globalisation of racing and the move of the Federation’s
base will help position Hong Kong at the heart of the
sport’s development in Asia. Building on this, Hong Kong
will host the 35th Asian Racing Conference in May next
year, bringing the sport’s leaders here from around the
world. In line with the Club’s own customer-driven
philosophy, meeting the different needs of racing’s
customers - Owners, Members and the racing public - will
be the core theme of the conference.

Another very positive development for the future
was the Legislative Council’s approval of the Betting
Duty (Amendment) Bill 2013 on 3 July, three days after
the end of the financial year under review. In essence,
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“ Whilst strengthening
the racing experience
for our customers,

we also saw Hong Kong  that the ciub has championed
move further forward
in its vision of
becoming a world
leader in racing. »

this paves the way for Hong
Kong to establish commingling
arrangements with overseas
racing jurisdictions, a measure

since 2007 as means of strength-
ening its competitive position in
the international arena and
combating illegal bookmaking.

Building on the strong global
branding of our racing product
and high liquidity in our pools, we
can bring international betting
revenues onshore and thereby,
through collective efforts with
overseas partners, eliminate the
illegal bookmakers’ opportunity for odds arbitrage. We are
now in active talks with potential partners and hope to
introduce the first commingled pools within the coming
season.

Operational summary

Our efforts to retain and attract horse racing customers
paid handsome dividends to the community at large in
2012/13. Over the year, race betting duty payments to the
public purse grew 12.1% to HK$11.11 billion, the highest
figure since 1999/2000. Meanwhile the Club’s share of gross
margin grew 11.1% to HK$4.12 billion. It should be noted,
though, that this is still some way short of the 1999/2000
figure, which was HK$4.50 billion. This reflects the
challenges the Club now faces in increased competition.

As regards football betting, we saw continued
turnover growth of 7.0% during the year despite the
absence of any major international tournaments. Betting
duty payments to Government grew 6.9% to HK$4.21
billion, matching the Club’s share of gross margin.

This was the tenth year since the Club was authorised
to offer regulated football betting in 2003 and turnover has
trebled over that period, making Hong Kong one of the
world’s most successful football betting operators. This is
despite the fact that we are able to offer fewer matches
and bet types than many of our illegal and offshore
competitors, who are able to attract customers with more
competitive odds, as they pay no tax, and lure customers
with credit betting and other socially undesirable
incentives.

It is much to the Club’s credit that we are still able to
compete strongly in this very challenging market - and
thus protect Government revenues - by providing top-

quality customer service and information content for
bettors, coupled with a high reputation for integrity and
reliability. Given the demographic of football customers
and round-the-clock nature of the business, our online
and mobile betting services are proving even more popular
than they are for racing, now accounting for some 70% of
football volume.

We expect the build-up to World Cup 2014 will give
further impetus to our football operations in the coming
year. But it will also encourage the illegal and offshore
operators to become more active, so we shall continue to
be vigilant of the market situation.

Our Mark Six lottery operations were not able to
repeat their exceptional growth of 2011/12, partly because
there were fewer large jackpots, but they continue to
benefit from the revitalisation initiatives we took in 2010.
Turnover this year showed a small decline of 0.9%,
generating lottery duty payments of HK$1.91 billion and
commission for the Club of HK$458 million.

In addition, the Mark Six produced a HK$1.14 billion
contribution to the Government’s Lotteries Fund, which
supports social welfare projects. In this respect, it plays
an especially significant role in community life, not only
being a highly popular form of social entertainment with
some 4.3 million customers, but also making a three-
pronged return to society through its tax payments,
Lotteries Fund contributions and ultimately, the Club’s
charitable donations.

Taken together, the success of our racing, football
and Mark Six operations in 2012/13 generated record tax
payments of HK$17.64 billion and enabled the Club’s
Charities Trust to make total donations of HK$1.95 billion,
also arecord. Our Chairman has elaborated in his message
on the diverse range of projects this enabled the Trust to
support, benefiting Hong Kong people of all ages and from
all walks of life.

| am particularly pleased that we are able to invest in
Hong Kong’s football development, not just through the
hardware projects the Chairman has mentioned but also
through software initiatives such as the Jockey Club Elite
Youth Football Camp, in partnership with Manchester
United, and Jockey Club Youth Football Development
Programme. These structured and systematic programmes
will be very important to raising Hong Kong’s football
standards over the longer term.

Separately from our Charities Trust donations, we
have been allocating HK$15 million a year to the Ping Wo
Fund and will increase this in the coming year to HK$20
million, with further progressive increases planned. This



will help combat the many social ills associated with illegal
and unauthorised offshore betting channels, especially
junket operators who offer betting on credit. To date our
contributions to the Ping Wo Fund have totalled HK$145
million. At the same time we continue to operate a strict
Responsible Gambling Policy throughout the Club’s
betting channels.

Our Membership services, which are run on a separate
and self-sustained account from our racing and betting
operations, continued to perform well during the year
despite significant pressures of inflation. By tightly
controlling operating costs through more direct sourcing
of foodstuffs and other measures, we were able to
continue enhancing our offerings and deliver top-class
value to our Members. In addition, we completed a number
of upgrades to the clubhouse facilities as part of our
ongoing refurbishment programme, including the
remodelling of Gallop Restaurant at Happy Valley
Clubhouse, and improvements to the recreational facilities
at Beas River Country Club.

Our Beijing Clubhouse celebrated its 5th Anniversary
in April and continues to do a wonderful job in promoting
the HKJC brand on the Mainland, as well as providing top-
class facilities for our Members visiting the capital. To
date, almost 10,000 Hong Kong-based Members have
enjoyed its services, while our Mainland-based corporate
and individual membership now stands at some 800.

Despite these successes, a concern on the
Membership side - echoing the issues we have faced in
horse racing - is a generally ageing trend, coupled with a
tendency among the younger members to be less
interested in horse racing than in the past. We are
addressing these concerns by endeavouring to establish
differentiated venues that will appeal to varying target
segments of the membership.

These include a new Young Members Box at Happy
Valley, complemented by a series of special programmes
to stimulate the younger members’ knowledge and
understanding of horse racing. We have also embarked on
a comprehensive study of our clubhouse facilities, in
particular at Happy Valley, to see how we can best address
Members’ changing needs and expectations in the
interests of long-term sustainability.

Throughout these different operations, we strive to be
a responsible employer, offering our 24,000 full- and
part-time staff fulfilling jobs, a pleasant working
environment and ample chances for career and personal
development. We were delighted to be honoured in the
Randstad Award as an “Employer Brand to Watch for

Corporate Social Responsibility” out of 75 largest
employers in Hong Kong, and also one of the city’s Top
Ten Most Attractive Employers.

Recognising the critical role of our employees in
delivering world-class, customer-centric services, we
continue to invest significant resources into this area, as
demonstrated by The Hong Kong Jockey Club College,
which began operations in early 2012 and is aimed at
putting our people development programmes on to a more
strategic and systematic basis. The College offered 234
programmes during the past year, some benchmarking
with Associate Degree level in the academic structure,
providing over 440,000 hours of staff training in total. In
fact, 98% of all our full- and part-time employees received
some form of structured training. Next year the College
will move into purpose-built facilities.

Another facet of the Club’s social responsibility is our
strong commitment to environment-friendly and
sustainable practices across our operations, as well as
through our charitable donations. With this year’s Annual
Report we are issuing our second full Sustainability
Report, but this time it is only available online, in keeping
with good sustainability principles. In particular, we have
gone a step further by ensuring that green concepts are
proactively embedded into our planning processes, and
by setting clear waste and energy reduction targets.

In closing, may | express my sincere thanks to the
Board of Stewards for their valuable guidance, my fellow
members of the Board of Management for their unfailing
support, and most of all the Club’s loyal staff who make
things happen at the sharp end of the business. We strive
for good business results to maximise the Club’s return to
the community and have set new records this year on both
counts, an achievement to which every single one of them
has contributed. | feel privileged to be leading such a
wonderful organisation.

Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges
Chief Executive Officer
26 July 2013
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An Overview’”

This year’s Annual Report presents an updated overview of
The Hong Kong Jockey Club, the world’s pre-eminent horse
racing and football betting organisation, whose not-for-profit
business model brings enormous benefits to the Hong Kong
community and strengthens the city’s economic
competitiveness and vitality.

Proceeds from racing, football betting and Mark Six have
helped deepen and broaden the capabilities of the Club’s
Charities Trust, which this year increased its allocations to a
record HK$1.95 billion. Growing financial resources have in
turn enabled the Trust to act ever more strategically and
innovatively in serving a broad base of community partners
and stakeholders. By complementing the Government’s
social policies, the Trust has also been able to fast track the
most urgently-needed service programmes and capital-
intensive projects.
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Geographical! Heng Kong is little
more than a dot on the world map; it has no
t horse breeding industry of its own,

or a fully professi ntootball Igague.

So I’ow is it possible that this small place has
- been able to establish itself among
!the global leaders in horse racing and
otball betting, as well as in the quality of
its membership services?
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(? ING MEMBERSHIP
RACI ENTER I\TNT SERVICES
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HORSE
RACING

While The Hong Kong
Jockey Club can trace its proud
history back to 1884,
and has always striven
for excellence,
the genesis of the world-class
operation we see today
was the foresighted
decision to change
Hong Kong racing from an
amateur sport to a professional
undertaking in 1971.




here has been no looking back ever since, with
the past 15 years in particular having seen the
pace of progress accelerate and Hong Kong
move firmly into the sport’s top echelon.

Equally important was the Government’s
decision to allow off-course betting on horse racing in
1973, as a way of combating the illegal gambling that had
already become rampant by that time. This put betting in
Hong Kong on to a regulated and responsible footing for
the first time and started to generate the huge tax payments
and charitable donations we see today. Since 1973, the
Club has contributed a massive HK$310 billion to public
spending and donated over HK$32 billion to charitable and
community projects.

World-class racing operations need world-class
infrastructure, and the Club’s development of Sha Tin
Racecourse on reclaimed land during the 1970s was
another key step forward. While Happy Valley remains one
of the world’s most historic and iconic racecourses, it was
not capable of supporting the Club’s global vision, with
horses still having to be walked down a hill from the stables
on public roads. When opened in 1978, Sha Tin not only
gave racing fans a superb new venue and opened up the
sport to New Territories residents, but also enabled the Club
to create purpose-built new stabling and training facilities
that were some of the finest in the sport at that time.
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The opening of Sha Tin
Racecourse (top) in 1978
helped the Club move
closer to its vision of
world-class racing, but
Happy Valley Racecourse
(lower) remains a popular
and iconic venue.
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With facilities available by the mid-1980s to support
world-class racing, the Club put in place a comprehensive
plan to internationalise its operations. Prize money was
steadily increased and other incentives offered to Owners to
bring in top-quality racehorses. Leading trainers and jockeys
were encouraged to build new careers in Hong Kong, and
top racing officials recruited from around the world.

The city’s first international race, the Hong Kong
Invitation Cup, was run in January 1988 with entries from
Singapore and Malaysia. From those modest beginnings
has grown the annual Hong Kong International Races, four
top-level races run on a single day each December which
attract many of the best horses, trainers and jockeys in the
world and have become widely recognised as the Turf World
Championships. All four of these races were accorded
International Group One status within the space of three
years from 1999 to 2002.

Hong Kong also now has two other races each year run
at International G1 level, the Audemars Piguet QEIl Cup and
Champions Mile, as well as three more with International G2
status. Adding further to their prestige, the city’s top local
and international races attract sponsorship from leading
global brands such as LONGINES, Audemars Piguet, BMW,
Citibank, Standard Chartered Bank and Kent & Curwen.

The four Hong Kong International Races and the
Champions Mile were this year ranked among the world’s
top 50 Group/Grade One races in a first-ever official listing
by the International Federation of Horseracing Authorities
(IFHA), an achievement described by the Club’s Executive
Director of Racing William A Nader as quite remarkable for a
jurisdiction of Hong Kong’s size. “There is no single meeting
in the world with more Group One races on the list than our
LONGINES Hong Kong International Races,” he points out.

The steadily increasing standard of Hong Kong-trained
horses is reflected, too, in their regular appearance in the
World Thoroughbred Rankings. It was only in 1998 that

Johan Cruyff became the first to be accorded that honour,
but since then more than 50 have made the list, including
16 in the 2012 rankings — an incredible achievement for a
jurisdiction of Hong Kong'’s size. Likewise, since Fairy King
Prawn became the first Hong Kong-trained horse to win
overseas in Japan in June 2000, another 13 horses have
followed in his footsteps — the latest being Military Attack
and Lucky Nine, who completed a unique same-day Group
One double in Singapore this May.

In moving to professional racing and setting out a world-
leading vision, the Club recognised that setting the highest
possible standards of racing integrity was essential, so that
both local fans and visiting connections had absolute faith
in the fairness of the Hong Kong product. Stringent race
control is maintained by a specialist team using a highly-
sophisticated integrated video patrol system. The Club’s
Racing Laboratory, which monitors the use of prohibited
substances on horses or by jockeys, is recognised as being
one of the world’s most capable. One of only five regional
reference laboratories recognised by the International
Equestrian Federation, it has also handled equine samples
for the 2008 Olympics and 2006 and 2010 Asian Games.

Besides the Racing Laboratory, a number of other
world-class facilities have been added to the Sha Tin
infrastructure since the 1980s, including an Equine Hospital
and the world’s first Parade Ring with a retractable roof. But
with space for further development limited and an urgent
need to upgrade the now 35-year-old training facilities, the
Club is taking another groundbreaking step in building a
new Racehorse Training Centre across the Mainland border
in Conghua. It will include many new facilities designed to
strengthen Hong Kong’s world-leading capabilities further,
such as an uphill training track.

Meanwhile, over the past ten years, further extensive
upgrading of the spectator facilities has been put in place at
both racecourses, based on a comprehensive Racecourse
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The Club’s innovative and highly popular Race
Simulator App.
SERZEHAIH [1E5HRES ] App °

Some HK$3.5 hillion
has been committed

in creating stylish
new venues...all
designed to make
a racecourse Visit
not just a sporting
occasion, but an

all-round dining and

social experience.

The Club’s Chief Executive Officer Winfried
Engelbrecht-Bresges is a Vice-Chairman

of both the International Federation of
Horseracing Authorities and the Asian
Racing Federation.
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acing
Federation

The Asian Racing
Federation Secretariat
moved to Hong Kong
in 2012, putting the city
at the fulcrum of Asian
racing development.
This will be highlighted
when Hong Kong hosts
the 2014 Asian Racing
Conference, taking

the city into a further
exciting new era.

Stylish new racecourse
venues added for 2012/13
include The Racing Club
Noodle Bar at Happy
Valley (top), Owners Cabin
(above) and refurbished
Owners Box 3/F - OB3
(right) at Sha Tin
Racecourse.
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Master Plan, coupled with a customer segmentation
strategy supported by extensive research. Some HK$3.5
billion has been committed in the first two phases in creating
stylish new venues that meet the differing needs of Owners,
Members, visitors, and the general public — all designed to
make a racecourse visit not just a sporting occasion, but
an all-round dining and social experience.

Equally important, emphasises Executive Director of
Customer and Marketing Richard C K Cheung, has been
the introduction of wide-ranging on-course entertainment
programmes at both racecourses, and the development
of smartphone apps and interactive services that help
demystify the sport for a new generation of racegoers. “Our
themed party nights under the Happy Wednesday brand
have proved especially successful,” he notes. “They have
truly transformed Happy Valley Racecourse into a midweek
entertainment hotspot.”

These initiatives have been successful in arresting a
declining trend in attendance, making Hong Kong one of the
few jurisdictions worldwide to be seeing growth in racing
turnover and patronage. In particular, the Club’s innovative
blending of sporting and social entertainment is fostering
interest in horse racing among the younger generation,
which is vital for the sport’s long-term sustainability.

As Hong Kong horse racing has grown in stature, its
expertise in racing and betting has become widely sought.
Chief Executive Officer Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges
is a Vice-Chairman of both the IFHA and Asian Racing
Federation (ARF), while other Club executives hold a number
of key positions in regional or international organisations.
In addition, the ARF Secretariat has moved to Hong Kong
since August 2012, putting the city at the fulcrum of Asian
racing development. This will be highlighted when Hong
Kong hosts the 2014 Asian Racing Conference, taking the
city into a further exciting new era.
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BETTING
ENTERTAINMENT

&

&
-

he growing public popularity of horse racing

during the 1970s and ’80s obliged the Club

to develop sophisticated computer systems

and telephone networks to handle the huge

volume of raceday bets. It’s hard to believe
now that in the early days of professional racing, most of
this was still handled manually.

The Club pioneered the use of Customer Input
Terminals from the, early™1990s onwards and has been in
the” vanguard. of -making web-based and mobile betting
technologies available in more recent years to meet fast-
changing customer demand. Today it is a recognised world
leader ‘in this area, with.over 70% of bets now handled
paperlessly.-The Club’s back-end processing systems are
capable of handling peak volumes of 3,600 transactions
per second.

It was the Club’s home-grown expertise in betting
technologies, as well as its_high reputation for integrity,
that enabled football betting to become such a stunning
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success after the Government allowed its introduction in
2003, once again to combat rampant illegal betting on the
sport. Ten years on from that, the Club has become one
of the world’s largest and most successful football betting
operators, despite working under strict limitations on the
active promotion of betting products. Football betting has
now become a further major contributor to Government
revenues and it is no coincidence that the Club’s annual
charitable contributions have increased by more than 90%
in the past ten years.

Not that the roll-out of football betting was
straightforward, as horse race betting in Hong Kong has
traditionally operated on a pari-mutuel system, under
which payouts are determined solely on the basis of money
invested in each pool. Football betting, on the other hand,
is mostly odds-based, with the Club acting as market-
maker. To protect revenue in this new era and ensure that
stable and sustainable benefits could be delivered to the
community, the Club had to develop sophisticated risk
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management systems, which it did largely with in-house
expertise. These have proved so effective that the Club’s
expertise in risk management has become widely sought
by other operators in the region. It has provided consultancy
and advisory services to the Taiwan Sports Lottery since
2008 and the China Sports Lottery since 2009.

Today the Club’s football betting services offer over
70 leagues and cup competitions from all over the world,
ensuring an extremely efficient, productive and risk-
diversified operation. Nonetheless it is a constant challenge
to compete with illegal and offshore operators who make
no tax payments, have no limitations on the number of bet
types they can offer, and often accept socially-undesirable
credit betting.

“Despite the Club’s success in directing Hong Kong'’s
demand for football betting to a regulated and responsible
channel, the illegal market is still out there and probably
as big as we are,” stresses Executive Director of Strategic
Business Development Henry S K Chan, who has played

The Club’s back-end
processing systems are
capable of handling
peak volumes of

3,600 transactions

per second.
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“Despite the Club’s
success in directing Hong
Kong’s demand for football
betting to a regulated and
responsible channel, the
illegal market is still out
there and probably as

big as we are, so our key
target in the next 10 years
of football betting is to win
back the other 50%.”

a leading role in the Club’s betting developments for more
than three decades. “So our key target in the next ten years
of football betting is to win back the other 50%.”

In this regard, the Club’s services do enjoy some unique
customer advantages - large pools which are better able to
absorb the stakes of high-value bettors, a high reputation
for integrity and credibility, an extensive range of betting
channels, and well-trained and experienced staff.

Also very important is the Club’s ability to provide a
one-stop shop for horse race betting, football betting and
the Mark Six lottery through its Off-Course Betting Branch
network, Telebet and on-line channels. Many customers
are regular users of all three services. Public support for
the Club’s authorised betting channels is further enhanced
by the knowledge that they are run in a regulated and
responsible way, and that the proceeds are returned to the
Hong Kong community through the Club’s not-for-profit
business model.

Inturn, the success of the Club’s betting services means
that it can continue to invest in developing new customer-
oriented technologies and trading solutions, key ingredients
for maintaining its leadership position in the years ahead.

It is no coincidence that the
Club’s annual charitable
contributions have increased
by more than 90% in the
ten years since Government
allowed the introduction of
football betting.
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MEMBERSHIP
SERVICES

The H9ng Kong Jockey Club is
one of the oldest membership clubs in
Asia and has long been recognised
as one of the region’s finest.
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The Club provides
world-class facilities for
its Members in its four
clubhouses at Happy
Valley (left); Beijing (top
centre), which also offers
accommodation; Sha Tin
(lower centre); and Beas
River (right). The upgraded
Membership website
offers easy-to-find
information on Club
activities.
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hile the Club’s pursuit of excellence

in membership services is no less

dedicated than in horse racing and

football, it has a much longer history.

Since its earliest days, the Club has
catered to the elite of Hong Kong society and set quality
standards to match. The Jockey Club is one of the oldest
membership clubs in Asia and has long been recognised as
one of its finest.

Nevertheless, the past two decades have seen huge
strides made in uplifting the range and quality of the
Club’s membership facilities to world-leading standards,
commensurate with the development strategy for racing.
The Membership Services Division’s Journey to Excellence
programme launched in 2001 was designed to achieve a
whole new mindset and culture throughout the operation,
so that the Club’s service standards could be benchmarked
against the very best in the industry.

Today, the Club’s Members can enjoy top-class dining,
sporting and social facilities at two racecourses and three
different clubhouses in Hong Kong, and also make use of
a superb clubhouse in Beijing, opened in 2008 to cater for
the needs of Club Members who make frequent business or
social visits to the capital.

The Beijing Clubhouse, which recently celebrated
its 5th Anniversary with a glittering programme of events,
has additionally served as a successful business model in
broadening both the HKJC brand and its membership base
from Hong Kong to the Chinese Mainland. It now has some

800 Mainland-based and corporate Members in its own
right and has become a favourite venue for business and
social gatherings in Beijing. Among numerous awards, it was
named “Top Clubhouse in China” and “Best Club in Beijing”
in 2012. Significantly, it was also honoured for “China’s Best
Corporate Citizenship” in 2011 by the China Association of
Social Workers, reflecting its valuable role in promoting the
Club’s philanthropic mission on the Mainland.

Moon Koon Restaurant at Happy Valley Racecourse
is a Michelin-recommended restaurant and many of the
Club’s chefs have won regional or international awards for
their culinary skills. In addition, to ensure Members can
enjoy the highest levels of food hygiene and safety, the Club
has secured HACCP accreditation for all clubhouse dining
outlets and both HACCP and ISO certifications for those at
the two racecourses.

To maintain and strengthen the bond between Club
membership and the sport that gave birth to it, the Club is
investing considerable efforts into enhancing the raceday
experience for its Members. Besides an ongoing programme
of upgrades to the Member facilities at both racecourses,
the Club organises regular events and competitions to get
Members more engaged in the social and sporting aspects
of horse racing. These have had some positive results,
especially in attracting younger Club Members to the sport.

As in both racing and football, the membership
operations have fully embraced the opportunities offered
by technology. A sophisticated Customer Relationship
Management system ensures that the Club’s services can
be closely tailored to each Member’s personal tastes and
preferences. The Membership Services Division’s recently
upgraded website is now mobile-compatible and supports a
range of social sharing functions such as Facebook, Blogger
and Weibo. Members can not only identify items of interest
quickly and easily, but also take a spectacular virtual tour
of over 40 clubhouse venues. The revamped website also
generates more sophisticated and comprehensive data for
analysis, which helps the Club better understand Members’
preferences and needs.

Executive Director of Membership Services Billy K C
Chen commented that apart from offering the highest quality
service at all touch points, it was vital to attract younger
Members to the Club — which as with racing, was seen as
essential for ensuring long-term sustainability of the Club’s
fine tradition. Therefore facilities at the clubhouses must
offer the right range and mix to appeal to Members of all
ages and tastes.

The Club is now conducting detailed studies of how
best in the near future to provide a comfortable environment
and facilities catering to different segments at Happy Valley
Clubhouse - thus ensuring that The Hong Kong Jockey Club
can remain the finest membership club in Asia.






'r

for the future git

meet tode .
pressing so :

BUILD

ED PAF

RSHIP

TS & CULTURE
NT VELOPMENT

Bt 4t &
AR EEREES




PM YING SPORTS
To ou B DEVELOPMENT

i oH

Support for sports development
is a civic priority. Participatory sports and
recreation are ever-more
essential to public health, given our
increasingly sedentary, technology-led
lifestyles coupled with growing
levels of stress, and they bring a variety of
positive social outcomes.
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eam and individual sports help boost
confidence and self-esteem in young people
and foster a sense of community. Excellence
in competitive sports helps keep Hong Kong

on the international stage, sustaining its
identity as a world city.

Thus, for well over half a century, the Club has been
a key, trusted partner of Government departments, district
councils, athletic associations and other groups in the
development of major sports and recreation facilities,
training programmes and competitions. Its donations in this
area have surpassed HK$7.5 billion to date.

Historically, the Club’s donations were by necessity
directed at much-needed public works projects — many of
the city’s public swimming pools were built with Club funding,
as were King’s Park Sports Ground, Yuen Long Stadium
and Queen Elizabeth Stadium. Hong Kong Stadium was
given a major refurbishment in 1994 with an HK$864 million
contribution, and more recently Club funding of HK$1.2
billion enabled Hong Kong to host the equestrian events
of the Beijing 2008 Olympics. In 2012, the Club committed
HK$126 million towards the renovation of sporting facilities
at South China Athletic Association’s headquarters on
Caroline Hill Road.

In earlier days, support for the development of elite athletes
was relatively minimal. Club support today targets local
sporting bodies to help them organise youth training
schemes and bring international-standard competitions
to Hong Kong. A pioneering initiative in this area was
the establishment in 1982 of the Jubilee Sports Centre,

which has since become the Hong Kong Sports Institute.
Constructed with Club funds, the Institute has operated in-
dependently since 1986 thanks to a further HK$350 million
endowment from the Club and funding from Government.

Numerous local athletes trained at the Institute have
made their names at the international level, including Hong
Kong’s first Olympic gold medallist, windsurfer Lee Lai-
shan, and World Track Cycling Champion Lee Wai-sze.

This past year saw the Club donate a further HK$103
million to the Institute to convert the site’s athletes’ hostel
into a multi-purpose training and coaching centre. The
new Centre will house the Institute’s elite sports coaching
departments, with dedicated education seminar facilities for
the training and development of local coaches.

The new Centre will also support the development of
Paralympic sports and junior elite athletes. There will be
dedicated training areas for elite athletes with disabilities,
notably wheelchair fencing and boccia. The training venue
will also be home to the Institute’s junior talent development
programmes, where young athletes will be assessed and
selected for further development.

This latest donation brings the Club’s total support for
the Institute to date close to HK$700 million, complementing
a HK$1.7 billion investment the Government is making in its
redevelopment.

Another tremendously popular sport in Hong Kong is football,
but in recent years the city has not punched its weight at the
international level. Recognising this, the Club has sponsored
a number of ongoing youth football training programmes.

Now in its second year, funded by a HK$12 million
Club donation and run by long-term partner the Hong
Kong Football Association, the Jockey Club Youth Football
Development Programme — Summer Scheme is providing
systematic training for an estimated 10,000 players aged 5
to 19. Those displaying the greatest potential are eligible for
ongoing year-round training and a chance to join the Jockey
Club Elite Youth Football Camp, where they can train with
coaches from the Manchester United Soccer School.

The Club is working closely with the Hong Kong
Football Association with a view to providing comprehensive
training and development facilities for representative teams
at senior and junior levels, as well as for other community
users. And the Club is providing HK$44 million towards the
construction of a new youth training centre at the Kitchee
Football Club in Shek Mun.

The Club has been instrumental in the popularisation of golf
and the development of local talent.

In 1995, on the picturesque island of Kau Sai Chau, it
established the first — and still Hong Kong’s only — public
golf course. This was later expanded to comprise three
challenging courses which attract some 170,000 players
a year, both local residents and visitors, and have won
several awards for both their sporting and eco-friendly
attributes. Kau Sai Chau also has extensive golf training
facilities and has nurtured some of Hong Kong’s top
junior golfers.

The Club is taking its development role to the next



Aiming to promote sport
throughout the
community, including
among disabled athletes,
the Club’s Charities Trust
has in the past two years
sponsored the Asian &
Oceanic Table Tennis

Wheelchair Fencing World
Cup and the 4th Hong
Kong Games.
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level by establishing a Golf Academy on Kau Sai Chau.
The Club will donate HK$303.8 million to the project,
supplemented by a HK$202.6 million contribution from the
course management company’s operational surpluses. The
Academy, scheduled to open in 2015, will include student
accommodation, specialist training facilities and practice
areas. It will serve as a platform for the development of
structured education at post-secondary level on related
subjects, including professional golfing and golf course
management. The Club will also take this opportunity
to reinforce its partnerships with schools and local golf
associations through various outreach programmes.

To further promote a “Sport for All” culture, in 2007 the
Government’s Sports Commission launched the biennial
Hong Kong Games, a citywide multi-sports event with Hong
Kong’s 18 District Councils as participants and numerous
sports associations as co-organisers.

The objectives of the Games are to provide the
districts with more opportunities for sports participation,
exchanges and co-operation, and to encourage active
public participation in sports as well as promote community
cohesion. The Club was a Principal Contributor to the
Games in 2011 and again in 2013.

The Club strongly supports projects that allow the disabled
to participate in sport, in keeping with its mission to promote
an inclusive society.

Since 1975, it has supported a rehabilitation riding
programme and para-equestrian training for disabled riders.
And for more than 30 years, the Club has partnered the Hong
Kong Paralympic Committee and the Sports Association for
the Physically Disabled (HKPC and SAPD).

In 2011, the Club donated HK$1.94 million to the
HKPC and SAPD, which hosted the 2011 ITTF PTT Asian
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& Oceanic Table Tennis Regional Championships for the
Disabled in Hong Kong. The winners of the men’s singles
and women’s singles in each classification qualified for the
2012 London Paralympic Games.

The Club was also the Principal Contributor to the
3rd Asia & South Pacific Boccia Championships in 2009
which, like the Table Tennis Regional Championships, was
a qualifying contest for the 2012 London Paralympics. And
the Club provided HK$2.93 million in support for the HKPC
and SAPD to host the International Wheelchair & Amputee
Sports Federation Hong Kong Jockey Club Wheelchair
Fencing World Cup 2012. The Hong Kong tournament was
the only wheelchair fencing world cup in the region and is
one of the sanctioned ranking competitions for the 2016
Rio Paralympic Games.

Additionally, the Club has provided support to a
two-year Jockey Club Wheelchair Fencing Development
Programme, allowing junior fencers more opportunities
to compete in international competitions and gain valuable
experience.

In 2012, with a donation of HK$845,000, and again in
2013, with a donation of HK$936,000, the Club supported
the “i-Run — Hong Kong Jockey Club Special Marathon,”
organised by Tung Wah Group of Hospitals to advocate the
concept of social inclusion in the community.

In 2012, more than 1,600 athletes with developmental
disabilities and pair-up runners competed, the number
increasing to some 2,000 in 2013. Participants hailed
from Guangdong, Macau and Taiwan as well as Hong
Kong. According to their ability, each disabled runner was
paired up with an able-bodied participant to compete in
either the 3-km Race or 5-km Challenge Race. They also
attended pre-race training sessions where they developed
closer rapport.
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The Club is proactive in identifying
and addressing long-term social challenges.
Donations to elderly-related projects are an
especially high priority, enabling
its community partners to stay ahead of
W|T|'"N Hong Kong’s ageing population trend.
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geing tends to bebercei\/ea.im
terms when it should_.méo as a
lifelong process which'can'i ateryears
be‘a positive and creative aspect of a life =
well lived. The Club, in partnerships with
Hong Kong’s most respected medical and social services
organisations, has long been in the forefront of efforts to
change mindsets and challenge assumptions about the
ageing process, building institutions that will enable senior
citizens to age within their communities, not in isolation, and
keep the social fabric whole.

The Club has also funded the development of facilities
to care for the elderly infirm, with a focus on sufferers of
dementia. The Club has foreseen that dementia and
associated complications can pose a growing public health
and social challenge which if not addressed will have far-
reaching consequences for the community.




Engaging the elderly in
games and keeping them
active promotes positive
ageing and can help
prevent dementia, an
issue the Club is striving
to address.
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POSITIVE AGEING

In 2000, with an HK$81 million donation by the Charities
Trust, the Jockey Club Centre for Positive Ageing (JCCPA),
Asia’s first fully integrative dementia care centre, was
started up under the auspices of the Faculty of Medicine
of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Today, the Centre
has served more than 20,000 dementia patients, providing
integrated day-care services, home-based training and
short-term residency, along with support services for
patients’ caregivers. The Centre also supports research
for dementia treatment and is playing an important role in
raising awareness of dementia and dementia care.

CADENZA

In 2006, the Club launched CADENZA: A Jockey Club
Initiative for Seniors, a HK$380 million project in partnership
with the Faculty of Social Sciences of The University of Hong
Kong and the Faculty of Medicine of The Chinese University
of Hong Kong. This initiative aims to create an elder-friendly
environment in Hong Kong to foster a positive community
attitude towards ageing and continuously improve the
quality of care and quality of life for older people.
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An inter-disciplinary training programme run by The
Nethersole School of Nursing at The Chinese University of
Hong Kong provides general and professional education in
gerontology for the general public, informal caregivers and
professional social and healthcare workers who work with
the elderly in the community.

Public education activities target all segments of the
population, not just the elderly. To increase the impact
of these activities, emphasis is being placed on using
innovative and effective educational and communication
strategies and tools, enlisting the support of the media and
cultivating a wide range of public-private partnerships.

In 2009, the CADENZA Hub commenced operation
as one of the community projects under the CADENZA
project. The CADENZA Hub is a self-financing, one-stop,
fully integrated health and social services centre managed
by The Chinese University of Hong Kong and situated in the
Fu Shin Estate in the New Territories district of Tai Po.

The CADENZA Hub is operated by a multi-disciplinary
team of experienced healthcare professionals, social
workers, nurses, physiotherapists and occupational thera-
pists, with primary care service supported by various
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university partners including the School

Medicine of Hong Kong Baptist University, PolyVision of
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the Centre for
Nutritional Studies of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Its innovative integration of medical and social care provides
user-driven case management services, and emphasises
the importance of primary healthcare and a healthy lifestyle

among the soon-to-be-old and the elderly.

An independently-conducted survey commissioned
by the Hub found that the soon-to-be-old segment of the
population is clearly concerned about both the early onset
of chronic diseases and the availability of primary healthcare

advice at the community level.

BHNEEERE  BBERENZIENRE
RAREBRNAE  IREBNE
ERRFEND -
(BEEERsE]RAESEET
MitEFE  RZOONERAR
BeoREBEBUNFRARNBEEZEW B
—FRERBHL  AEBPIKRE
B ERE  LEEBEBHNEFEER -
RE—UARERESRE
REEBEETERNERBIEXE
B B BREEREEAS 1T
VIR B R EM  WHEE
REREER BTAEERPOLK
PXARBEBMATOLESERER
HEBEERY - REERME UK
SUOREEERZERY  BEAFE
ERHESTENRYE  BEIE

BEHFEALREEEEBAS O
fREE -

FEeEMNBIRAEER ST
AEBENATHEBETEERTFEE
{EHBEE > URHEERIRHE—RE
IR IR ©

REERAFERE  HBHTH
BIOERBRBEERS  RENS
L R B REEE > SE SR
FEREFERHR  AHERZESF
INREE T FREENEE -

BT R RSN nem
HEET—ARSERESALBE
THEE AEE BREEEHE
SEYE-FE+N\EELTFESE
EReE  BTEMERREER -

In line with the Club’s vision, the Hub is also delivering
special services for elderly dementia patients, from initial
assessment to post-diagnosis cognitive training and day-
care, with the aim of enabling patients to maintain normal
social lives, to age gracefully within their communities, and
improve both their own and their caregivers’ quality of life.

UNDERSTANDING AND PREVENTION

A key component of CADENZA’'s mission is to promote
inter-generational accommodation and understanding of
the elderly. This past year, the JCCPA in collaboration with
CADENZA, with a HK$1.78 million grant from the Club,
implemented a wide-reaching public education campaign
on brain health with a long-term view to preventing dementia
and mitigating the impact of cognitive impairment.

The campaign featured school talks, game design
workshops and competitions, and a community carnival.
The JCCPA organised over 100 school education tasks and
game design workshops for 9,000 primary and secondary
school students to acquire basic knowledge about brain
health.

As part of the CADENZA Community Project: Jockey
Club Charles Kao Brain Health Services, the Club has also
donated HK$7.6 million to help acquire Hong Kong’s first-
ever brain health promotional vehicle to provide outreach
support for seniors through preliminary checks on memory
problems.

The Jockey Club Charles Kao Brain Health Services,
co-funded by the Charities Trust and The Charles K Kao
Foundation, is a pioneering outreach service to raise public
awareness of dementia, provide screening, and make
referrals for community care. It is a quadripartite partnership
of CADENZA, St. James’ Settlement, The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and The Charles K Kao Foundation.

Under this new service model, the mobile centre will
cover all 18 Districts to provide preliminary tests for the
elderly in the hope of diagnosing early-stage dementia
patients and offering follow-up or referral services. The
16-tonne promotional truck, accommodating nurses and




social workers with audio/visual health screening equipment,
will be stationed for two months in each of the 18 Districts.

The three-year programme comprises five components
—consultation, public talks, centre-based workshops, follow-
up service for patients and carers, and public education.
Those who are found to have possible memory problems
will be referred to government clinics, private medical
practitioners and self-financing service providers. Carers
will also be given dementia care tips and education kits. The
project is expected to benefit some 60,000 people.

MODERNISATION

The Club has donated HK$110 million to launch a Jockey
Club Elderly Facilities Modernisation Scheme in partnership
with the Social Welfare Department. This Scheme, which
will upgrade the facilities of about 250 elderly centres, aims
to encourage senior citizens to pursue “active ageing” and
remain engaged with the mainstream community.

The Scheme will be implemented in phases and
completed by 2018, with the Social Welfare Department
being responsible for implementation. The Club’s support
will facilitate procurement of above-standard furniture
and equipment to meet the needs of the elderly in four
key areas: health promotion, promotion of continuous
learning, prevention of dementia and strengthening home
safety and carer support. Acquisitions will include gym-
nastic equipment with rehabilitative functions, tablet PCs,
musical instruments, photographic tools, facilities for
setting up reminiscence corners, cognitive games for
preventing dementia, electrical wheelchairs, walking
frames and facilities for home safety demonstrations.

This donation supplements a HK$900 million “Improve-
ment Programme of Elderly Centres”, earmarked from the
Government’s Lotteries Fund, to which the Club, as operator
of the popular Mark Six lottery since 1975, contributes 15%
of lottery turnover. The total amount of over HK$1 billion will
directly enable 200,000 users of these centres to engage
more fully in community life, and will ultimately benefit all
senior citizens in Hong Kong.

Thanks to the Club
Charities Trust’s
donations, residents of
Hong Kong’s Government
Elderly Centres can now
make use of computers,
eye testing machines and
gym equipment.
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It may be obvious, but it is not
always wholly understood, that
culture is absolutely vital to the
future of our community —

to our individual well-being and
collective quality of life.

part from the less measurable humanistic
benefits that the creation, performance
and enjoyment of art and the preservation
of cultural heritage bestow, it is clear that
the arts, perhaps more so today than at any
time in the past, add significant value to industry, commerce
and tourism. Moreover, an education rich in the arts tends to
boost overall academic performance and civic engagement,
with all that signifies for a diverse and flourishing city such
as ours.

No less an organisation than UNESCO, in setting a
road map for 21st century arts education, has noted that
“art speeds up social inclusion and tolerance” and that
“awareness of art can be acquired from an early age and
maintained throughout life”. These views essentially frame
the guiding principles of the Club’s long-standing, and in
financial terms strongly growing, support of the arts. In the
past decade alone, the Club has given more than HK$2.1
billion to arts and culture.

The Club’s activities over this past year have carried
forward its long-term initiatives and reinforced valuable
partnerships with local and international performing arts
organisations and museums.
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THE HONG KONG ARTS FESTIVAL

The Club has been a cornerstone supporter of the Hong
Kong Arts Festival since its inception 41 years ago. In 2008,
the Trust introduced a new giving model which provides
funding to the Festival three years in advance of each
year’s programme, enabling it to secure commitments from
the world’s most sought-after performers and troupes.
An average of HK$7 million is donated annually which
enables each year’s Festival to offer three world-class
pillar programmes, with one performance of each being
designated The Hong Kong Jockey Club Series. This
year’s Series featured the Chicago Symphony Orchestra,
an acclaimed production of the Robert Wilson-Philip
Glass opera Einstein on the Beach, and Romeo and Juliet
by the American Ballet Theater (ABT). The Club funded
ABT matinees for 3,200 students which included pre-
performance talks and workshops. The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Contemporary Dance Series featured new and original
dance works by local choreographers and artists, while
the Contemporary Dance Education Project has further
promoted the appreciation of contemporary dance and
other creative expressions among young people.
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BRINGING EXHIBITIONS TO THE PUBLIC,

AND MORE

The Club is instrumental in bringing important exhibitions
to the public. In past years these have included PICASSO -
Masterpieces from the Musée National Picasso Paris staged
at the Hong Kong Heritage Museum, and the attendance-
record-breaking The Majesty of All Under Heaven: The
Eternal Realm of China’s First Emperor, shown at the Hong
Kong Museum of History.

In a three-year partnership with the HKSAR Govern-
ment’s Leisure and Cultural Services Department, the Club
has established The Hong Kong Jockey Club Series of
expositions. A HK$17 million budget has been earmarked
for the Series, allowing for two to three major exhibitions
each year and, significantly, associated educational and
outreach programmes that underscore the relevance of
cultural heritage to modern life.

Kicking things off, the Club funded an Art Appreciation
Programme in conjunction with the Andy Warhol: 15 Minutes
Eternal exhibition of the pop artist’'s works, held from
mid-December 2012 to March 2013. The Trust’s donation
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Julie Kent as Juliet and Marcelo Gomes as Romeo
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The Club’s Charities Trust
donations to arts and
culture in 2012/13 helped
local students appreciate
a world-class ballet
performance at the Hong
Kong Arts Festival (1&2);
and brought the Majesty
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of China’s First Emperor
(3) and the artistry of
Andy Warhol (4) to local
residents, who were

also able to savour the
splendours of Qing Court
Attire (5) and the Wonders
of Ancient Mesopotamia (6).

provided for lectures, free guided tours, interactive games
and a special art accessibility programme for the disabled.

The first full collaboration in the series — solely
sponsored by the Club and jointly presented with the LCSD
and the Trustees of the British Museum — was The Wonders
of Ancient Mesopotamia exhibition. Installed at the Hong
Kong Museum of History for more than three months, this
marked the first time this trove of more than 170 artefacts
from the British Museum, reaching back to 3,500 BC, had
been brought to Asia.

The second — entitled The Splendours of Royal
Costume — Qing Court Attire — is being shown at the
Hong Kong Museum of History until early October 2013.
The exhibition, the largest of its kind outside Mainland
China, comprises some 130 pieces from the Palace
Museum, displaying the highest standards of Qing Dynasty
weaving and embroidery. The LCSD and the Hong Kong
Design Centre, together with The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University’s Institute of Textiles and Clothing, held a related
fashion design competition to raise awareness of the
relationship between cultural relics and creativity.
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CONSERVATION

The Club is also an important player in the field of heritage
conservation. Among its highest-profile initiatives is
the Central Police Station Revitalisation Project, which
will preserve the landmark 19th century structure while
transforming it into an arts and culture complex. The Club
also supports various other cultural preservation projects
across the city.

Equally, the Club is committed to preservation of local
traditions which instil a sense of community identity and
promote social cohesion. In April 2012, the Club announced
it would provide HK$2 million in funding in support of four
Hong Kong traditions inscribed on to China’s National List
of Intangible Cultural Heritage and a related educational
programme run by the Conservancy Association Centre
for Heritage, or CACHe. Founded in 2007 with a donation
from the Club, CACHe operates a number of community
engagement and education programmes reaching tens of
thousands of students and other participants. The HK$2
million grant is specifically geared to fostering a greater
appreciation by Hong Kong’s younger generations of the
value of cultural preservation. The funding covered the cost
of three traditional events staged during the year: the Tai
O Traditional Dragon Boat Water Parade, the Cheung Chau
Jiao Festival, and the Tai Hang Fire Dragon Parade, along
with a field studies and data collection project for the Yu Lan
Ghost Festival of the Hong Kong Chiu Chau Community.

CONTINUITY

Since 1995, the Club has partnered the Hong Kong Youth
Arts Foundation, HKYAF, in a sustained effort to cultivate
young people’s interest in the arts. Their latest collaboration,
funded by a HK$4.3 million donation, is the Hong Kong
Jockey Club Community Arts Biennale 2013. The
groundwork for the Biennale was laid by the three-year
Point-to-Point Site Specific Art Project, which ultimately
involved some 50,000 youngsters. The Biennale in turn
showcased 24 works by 21 local artists and over 2,000
young people, while 4,000 additional participants added
their creativity on site. Free docent tours, workshops and
forums strengthened visitors’ understanding of the role art
plays in their lives and in the community.
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The Club is helping to
preserve Hong Kong's
cultural heritage by
supporting the Tai O
Traditional Dragon Boat
Water Parade (top), the Yu
Lan Ghost Festival of the
Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Community (lower left) ,
the Cheung Chau Jiao
[Bun] Festival (centre) and
the Tai Hang Fire Dragon
Parade.
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Photo courtesy of Hong Kong Heritage Museum
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Community Services . f ik

Jockey Club

Tin Shui Wai Family
Wellness Centre

The Club’s Charities Trust has
donated HK$8.13 million to
establish the Centre and cover its

operational costs for three years.
The Centre was opened in July and

o\
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aims to promote family wellness
and community networking in Tin
Shui Wai through a wide range of
services and support, expected
to benefit some 44,000 local
residents in the first three years.
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Elderly Services i

Promoting healthy
lifestyles

CADENZA & the Brain
Health Public Education
Campaign

The Jockey Club Centre for Positive
Ageing is raising public awareness
of brain health and dementia to
mitigate the impact of cognitive
impairment and promote inter-
generational support. The campaign
is estimated to reach over 55,000
elderly people and students.
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Sports ##

Jockey Club Elite
Youth Football Camp

After impressing at the Camp

last summer, participants Chan
Pak-hei and Rico Chan joined

the Manchester United Academy
training camp in England in
August. In the coming two years,
more elite young footballers will
be able to take part in two-week
training camps under coaches
from the Manchester United
Soccer School, hopefully following
in the Chans’ footsteps.
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A greener and
more sustainable
community

CUHK Jockey
Club Initiative
Gaia

This five-year
community engagement
programme, supported
with a Club Charities
Trust donation of HK$54
million, includes the
establishment of a
Jockey Club Museum

of Climate Change, a
“Go Green Community
- Jockey Club Carbon
Reduction Partnership
Scheme”, and a series of
conferences and public
forums. It will encourage
various sectors of
society to work closely
together in finding
solutions that can
advance environmental
protection in Hong Kong.
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Alvin Ng Matthew Chadwick
REE BHA

Racing %%

Home-grown riders
take on the world

Underlining the success of the
Club’s Apprentice Jockeys’ School
(AJS) in developing local riding
talent, apprentice jockey Alvin

Ng won the Asian Young Guns
Challenge 2012 in Macau. A week
later, AJS graduate Matthew
Chadwick helped the Rest of the
World team clinch the Shergar Cup
at Ascot Racecourse in the UK
and won the Silver Saddle as best
individual rider with one winner
and three second places.
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Betting Operations $::#%

Betting Operations
Control Centre

The Club’s Betting Operations
Control Centre has attained ISO
9001:2008 certification from the
Hong Kong Quality Assurance
Agency in recognition of continual
improvements to its services, as
well as its design and development
of a quality management system in
accordance with ever-increasing
customer expectations.
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HKJC Music &
Dance Fund
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4 5 Music to young talent’s ears

Nurturing Hong Kong’s next
e generation has long been one
FAEEEET of the Club Charities Trust’s
top priorities. The HKJC Music
and Dance Fund awarded five
more scholarships in July to
283 outstanding young performers
to help them further their studies
abroad in the areas of piano duo,
composition, flamenco dance
and musical theatre production. The scholarships totalling HK$1.58
million will cover tuition fees, academic expenses and living costs.
Since 1980, 283 young music and dance students have been granted
scholarships worth HK$45 million in total through the Fund.

Scholarships
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Flag-bearer for
racing’s future

When Club Chairman T. Brian Stevenson
accepted the Asian Racing Federation (ARF)
flag at the 34th Asian Racing Conference (ARC)
held in Turkey, it was more than cementing
Hong Kong’s pledge to host the next ARC
in 2014, placing Hong Kong firmly in the
driving seat of global racing development.
The election of Club CEO Winfried
Engelbrecht-Bresges as a Vice-Chairman of
ARF and the transfer of its Secretariat to Hong Kong from August 2012 further strengthened
the city’s leadership position in world horse racing. During the Conference, Club
representatives delivered key addresses and participated in a number of discussion
forums to share insights on Hong Kong'’s experience in shaping the future of horse racing.
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Carrying the torch of national heritage

Club Chairman T. Brian Stevenson (above) joined thousands of revellers who flocked to Tai
Hang and Victoria Park on 29 September to witness the local Fire Dragon Dance tradition
being kept alive - thanks in no small part to a HK$2 million donation by the Club’s Charities
Trust to support this and three other local activities inscribed on to the third National
List of Intangible Cultural Heritage in China in 2011. He was delighted to announce
that having already supported the event for three years, the Trust had pledged to /
ensure “the Dragon’s roar will not diminish” by extending funding until 2014. ]
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Education ##

Sustaining HK’s
position as a
regional design
and creative hub

HKS$

million
donation
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The Club’s Charities Trust
has donated HK$249 million
to Hong Kong Polytechnic
University to build the
Jockey Club Innovation
Tower, which will house
its Design School and
run a new Jockey Club
Design Institute for Social
Innovation there for three
years. The new Tower will
provide design students
with a better learning
environment whilst the
Institute will organise
community education
events and global forums
to increase public interest
in design and social
innovation. Club Chairman
T. Brian Stevenson attended
a topping-out ceremony
on 24 September.
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Youth Services #4E#

Oldest city
hostel given a lift

Meeting its commitment to protecting
the environment and conserving
heritage, the Club’s Charities Trust has
donated HK$9.54 million to the Hong
Kong Youth Hostels Association to
upgrade its first city hostel on Mount
Davis, which was built in 1981 then
extended in 2000 with earlier Trust
donations. The recommissioning
ceremony had special meaning for
Club Steward Lester C H Kwok, as the
original Club-supported project was
opened 31 years ago by his father,
Lamson Kwok, also then a Steward.
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Youth Services #4E %

Unusual Academy

Run by the Hong Kong Playground
Association under the HKJC
Community Project Grant, the
Academy was set up to assist
school dropouts in setting goals for
themselves and adopting a more
positive attitude towards life.
The Academy held its 2011/12
graduation ceremony on
2 September. Since its
establishment, more
than 2,000 teenagers
have benefited.
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2,000+

teenagers

benefited
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Club Steward Lester Kwok
(centre) helps recommission
the youth hostel opened

31 years earlier by his father.
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Elderly home comes of age

With a donation of HK$123 million from the Club’s
Charities Trust, the 40-year-old David Trench Home for
the Elderly in Wong Chuk Hang, run by the Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals, is being redeveloped into a modern
complex offering 410 residential places, as well as day
care and end-of-life services. When completed in 2014,
the renamed TWGHSs Jockey Club Sunshine Complex for
the Elderly will provide
comprehensive one-
stop services catering to
the diverse needs of the
elderly, complementing
the Government’s policy
of continued care and
encouraging the elderly
to “age in place”.

AR =1 ey

- - o Laying the foundation stone for the new
RERBEETE (7R homeare (from left), Hong Kong SAR

WAL > s U - 4F s Secretary for Labour and Welfare Matthew
. . - o Cheung, Chief Secretary Carrie Lam and
=4 e 7
{9 SR 2 = g 400 I% Bt % Club Steward Anthony Chow.

B MG EGITE (MEED) SIREARRERER - B
AEI—E T =H & ig;gﬁg%ﬁ&%%ﬁ$ﬁﬂdﬁhg%ﬁ
DI iﬁﬁi@l?&>

SE ARSI IU B — R FE 07~ H R R 35 AR5 - BTk
M2 5 [ S BEB G ML ELE G 0] BRER
fr—uh X~ Zonfb RIS > MBEREENAFEE > L
B A BN TR ] & [ B R % | BUR -



/Spotlight

S ep 63,5170

attendance
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Biggest
first-day crowd
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Supreme Win
(Horse no. 4), ridden by
Zac Purton, clinches
the HKSAR Chief
Executive’s Cup
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ith a bumper attendance of 63,570, the biggest first-day
w crowd for almost 20 years, and turnover of HK$930 million,

the highest for this fixture since 2000, no wonder that
Club CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges described the Season
Opening Raceday as “a fantastic start”. Things boded well even
before the racing began, as tickets to the pre-season Family Carnival
sold out in a flash. Racing fans’ responses to an online game and a
HK$60 million opening payout on the Triple Trio were just as keen.
Also making an auspicious start to the new season was Manfred
Man-trained Supreme Win, ridden by Zac Purton, who clinched the
HKSAR Chief Executive’s Cup by a last-gasp short head.
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260,000
people
to benefit

() Ct /Hits

Unique crossover of
heritage and innovation

To help Hong Kong people appreciate China’s rich culture, the Club’s
Charities Trust donated HK$15.4 million to sponsor exclusively “The
Majesty of All Under Heaven: The Eternal Realm of China’s First
Emperor” exhibition — one of the highlight cultural events celebrating
the 15th Anniversary of the HKSAR. The event not only showcased
the largest number of terracotta warriors ever exhibited in the city,
but also included six multimedia programmes that took visitors
on an innovative visual journey to learn more about the figures.
By October, it had achieved record attendance of 300,000 in just
three months. Four Trust-supported public art programmes proved
equally popular, encouraging students and others to submit fashion
designs, multimedia videos, robots and other products inspired by
the exhibition. Many of these went on display at a special exhibition
of their own.
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One-stop sports training facility on the way

Facilities at South China Athletic Association upgraded

Believing strongly in sport and its contribution to a cohesive society, the Club
pledged some HK$126 million through its Charities Trust to help South China
Athletic Association, one of Hong Kong’s oldest and largest sports clubs,
upgrade its facilities in Causeway Bay. Slated for completion in 2016, the
redeveloped facility will boast a third-generation artificial turf pitch and covered
spectator stand, an enhanced public golf driving range, an indoor multi-purpose
sports hall and the city’s first indoor beach volleyball court. The renovations will
benefit an estimated 260,000 people a year, encouraging
public participation in sport and offering a one-stop solution
for sports training, while helping relieve the huge local
demand for pitches and indoor facilities at affordable costs.
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Arts & Culture scfb £

HKJC Heritage x
Arts x Design Walk

Following the successful debut
of the programme in Central &
Western in 2010 and Sham Shui
Po in 2011, a HK$8.36 million
Club Charities Trust donation

to organisers HULU Culture

has enabled them to extend it
to Kwai Tsing and Tsuen Wan
Districts in 2012 and Tai Po and
Fanling in 2013, promoting Hong
Kong’s unique blending of Hakka
culture and modern city life. The
self-guided district tours using
smartphone/tablet apps, as
well as workshops, exhibitions,
community concerts and arts
and crafts fairs, will help the
public learn more about the
unique tangible and intangible
heritage of different districts.
The 2010 and 2011 H.A.D. Walks
attracted 250,000 participants.
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Education ##&

ICAN Whole Person
Education Pre-
School Project

Funded by a HK$2.8 million

Club Charities Trust donation

to the Whole Person Education
Foundation, the two-year pilot
project will develop positive life
and learning attitudes among
pre-school children in Kwun Tong,
Kwai Tsing, Yuen Long, Tuen Mun
and North Districts. Some 15,000
pre-school children, teachers and
parents from 80 kindergartens are
expected to participate.
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Club Steward Dr Rita
Fan is thanked by an
ICAN participant.
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Education ##

HKJC Life-wide
Learning Fund

The Fund was launched
in 2002 to help
schoolchildren from

needy families join
extra-curricular
activities so as to widen
their horizons and build
their self-confidence
and interpersonal skills.
It has now been
extended for three more

years to 2015 with a

HK$240 million donation Community Services . # ik #
from the Club’s Charities

Trust. More than 1.5 Eye tO Eye

million students have JOCkey C|Ub Social
already benefited from . .

the Trust's previous Documentation Project
HK$400 million A Community photography

campaign funded by the Club’s
Charities Trust and organised

by the Hong Kong Photographic
Culture Association encouraged
local residents to document their
personal worlds, beliefs or values
through photographs, so as to help
people learn more about the lives
and roles of different social groups
in society, and enhance mutual
understanding and respect.

Over 9,600 participants joined

the campaign.

donations. The new
funding will help a
further 200,000 primary
and secondary students
a year from some 950
participating schools.
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Sports ##

2012 FEI World Cup
Jumping Chinese
League

Member of the HKJC Equestrian
Team Patrick Lam finished third
among 36 contestants from 10
countries and regions in the final
rankings of this three-leg event
held in Beijing and Chengdu. Hong
Kong teammate Raena Leung was
second overall.
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Medical & Health B 4:

HKARF Jockey Club
Patient Resource &
Training Centre

This resource centre in Sham

Shui Po is aimed at the well-

being of arthritis and rheumatism
sufferers through a wide range of
services including physical and
psychological support. It is the first
of its kind in the city, renovated
with a HK$1.65 million grant from
the Club’s Charities Trust to the
Hong Kong Arthritis & Rheumatism
Foundation. Over 12,000 patients
and family members are expected
to benefit.
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Hong Kong culture
at full gallop

Sha Tin Racecourse celebrated
the National Day holiday with free
admission for tourists, a cultural
extravaganza and the first two group races of the season, the Group Three
National Day Cup and Sha Tin Sprint Trophy, won by Packing OK and Vital Flyer
respectively. Keen to make the event a celebration of Chinese art and culture
as well as of great equine sport, the Club worked with the Xu Beihong Arts
Committee and Hong Kong Post to produce the unique National Day Souvenir
Cover and posters featuring the famous image of Xu’s Li Ma Tu (The Standing
Horse) alongside those of reigning and former Hong Kong Horses of the Year,
Ambitious Dragon and Silent Witness. Xu is world renowned for his paintings
of horses and Li Ma Tu remains one of his most revered, capturing perfectly
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the animal’s grace and power.

More appreciation key to
family harmony

To promote further the message of family health,
happiness and harmony (the 3Hs), a new 14-month
programme called “More Appreciation & Less
Criticism”, was launched in October under the Club
Charities Trust-initiated FAMILY project. Premiered the
same month, and later taken to 100 primary schools,
was the 3Hs Family Drama, an interactive musical jointly
created by talented youngsters and their families to
promote bonding. Meanwhile the popular Happy Family
Kitchen programme was extended to Tsuen Wan and
Kwai Tsing Districts, encouraging more residents to use
cooking and dining time to enhance communication
with their families.
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The drumroll continues

Two teams from Moon Koon Restaurant bagged
Gold with Distinction and Silver honours in the
prestigious Best of the Best Culinary Awards 2012
while pastry chefs from Happy Valley Clubhouse
added the Angliss Media Award to the Club’s trophy
chest with victory at the Fonterra Foodservices
Pastry Challenge 2012. Two Club chefs also helped
a Hong Kong team scoop two silver awards at the
IKA Culinary Olympics 2012. In addition, October
saw the Club’s Human Resources team strike gold
in the HKMA Awards for Excellence in Training and Development with their
training programme “Spinning Top in Service Galaxy”, while two team members
collected Outstanding New Trainer Awards. And two Club racing chemists
had the prestigious Association of Official Racing Chemists Award and Young
Scientist Award bestowed on them at the 19th International Conference of
Racing Analysts and Veterinarians. The Club’s volunteer service and internal
sustainability website also won accolades from their respective sectors.
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Ladies' Purse Day

ShshiE I IRR B
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Glamour
& Style

T his year’s Sa Sa Ladies’ Purse Day did not fall short of expectations in

glamour and style. Set against a colourful backdrop of activities including

a splendid hat and fashion show, beauty competition, make-up workshop
and photo corner, John Moore-trained Packing Whiz, ridden by Brett Prebble,
stole the limelight as it gracefully whizzed through the field to win the Group
Three Sa Sa Ladies’ Purse. For over 63,000 racing fans at the two racecourses,
the free gift of a Sa Sa Ladies’ Purse Day Brooch and exclusive collection of chic
merchandise made the day even more unforgettable.

63,000+

racing fans
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Racing %%

Purton crowned
Super Jockey

Representing

Hong Kong in the

26th World Super A
Jockeys Series at

Tokyo Racecourse in
late November, Club Jockey Zac
Purton (pictured), finished 12
points ahead of the home team’s
Suguru Hamanaka to secure the
championship and a prize of three
million yen.
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Prebble over the moon

Hong Kong-based Australian
jockey Brett Prebble enjoyed the
greatest win of his career when his
mount Green Moon stormed past
the winning post to secure

the Emirates Melbourne Cup on

6 November, his first success in
“the race that stops a nation”.

A special ceremony (above) was
organised at Sha Tin Racecourse
four days later to enable local fans
to add their congratulations.
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Lead-up to clash of titans

Noteworthy prelude to the Hong Kong
International Races

The Jockey Club Races on 18 November proved a noteworthy
prelude to the Hong Kong International Races a month later.
Home-grown jockey Matthew Chadwick and star of the Tony Cruz
stable California Memory warmed up nicely for their defence of the
International Group One LONGINES Hong Kong Cup by winning the
International Group Two LONGINES Jockey Club Cup, overhauling
strong contenders Irian and Zaidan from John Moore’s stable.
Shortly afterwards, John Size-trained Glorious Days, ridden by
Douglas Whyte, beat arch-rival and dual Horse of the Year Ambitious
Dragon to win the International Group Two Jockey Club Mile.
Meanwhile, Caspar Fownes’ charge Lucky Nine travelled strongly
under Brett Prebble to keep at bay John Moore’s Time After Time
and Admiration, as well as Singapore contender Super Easy, to
clinch the International Group Two Jockey Club Sprint.

California Memory
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Club Steward Michael Lee
(left) launches the latest
LEAP programme and
later joins students and
guests in one of the new
mobile classrooms
(bottom).
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Elderly Services %)k

Elder Academies
Sports Day 2012

A day filled with competitions,

million performances and information
donation booths for the elderly was
NEN+EE arranged by various local groups
EITER with support from the Club’s
Charities Trust. The event helped
. advocate the importance of
Education % regular exercise among the elderly
- = and promote inter-generational
Llfe E_ducatlon relationships and family harmony.
Activity REBHENH2012
Programme LY 7 o 5 G 235 5 R TR - (2
(LEAP) 15 2 TEBETE X o A% M0 R [ AL

The Club’s Charities
Trust has donated
HK$6.45 million to
LEAP to purchase

and equip two new
mobile classrooms
and renovate its

Kwai Chung office

to help spread anti-
drug messages. Over
the past 18 years,
more than a million
students from primary,
secondary and special
schools have attended
classes offered by
LEAP, thanks to Trust
support totalling over
HK$23.8 million.
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Stately treats for
anniversary
celebration

Diaoyutai National
Cuisine in Happy Valley
Clubhouse

As a key celebration
programme to mark
. the 20th Anniversary
- ¢ *# of Happy Valley
> ‘{Q‘ Clubhouse, the

e - Club once again
invited Executive Chef of Beijing’s
Diaoyutai Guesthouse, Hao Baoli,
to prepare a series of celebratory
feasts. The world-renowned chef
and his team treated more than 500
Club Members and their guests to
some of the Diaoyutai’s signature
dishes as well as creating a brand
new dish for the occasion, all
presented on classic tableware.
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Sports ##

HKJC Wheelchair Fencing

World Cup 2012
The Club donated

HK$2.93 million to the everJt

This World Cup event was hosted
in Hong Kong for the third time,
thanks to a HK$2.93 million

donation from the Club’s Charities

Trust. It was well attended by
some 100 athletes and team
officials from over 10 countries
and regions. The donation also
covers a two-year Jockey Club
Wheelchair Fencing Development
Programme, which will allow

more young disabled fencers to |

gain competitive experience at
international level.
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Social Enterprise

S it _ .
ummit .

F,ntErpnsq: |
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For the second consecutive
year, the Club’s Charities Trust
was major sponsor of the Social
Enterprise Summit and related
activities which provided a
platform for participants to share
perspectives and exchange
experiences. The theme this time
was “Rejuvenate our City through
Social Innovation”.
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Family-friendly
Community-based
Project

Successfully launched by the
Salvation Army in Chai Wan,

Kwai Chung and Tung Chung since
2008, this mutual support project
has now been extended to Kowloon
City with funding of HK$6.25 million
from the Club’s Charities Trust,
aiming to help establish closer
family networks in the district and
develop women'’s talents.
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A task well done

The Club’s relentless pursuit of excellence resulted
in more good news for its hard-working team during
November. In the 2012 Service and Courtesy Awards,
Betting Branch staff once again earned plaudits at
both front-line and supervisory level, while a week
later the Mystery Caller Assessment Awards brought
gold honours to the Club’s Integrated Contact Centre
1 i ol for the second year. Meanwhile the Club’s 2010/11
] A= Annual Report collected seven international and
'l & AmRRED local industry accolades for its all-round excellence.
" The Club’s commitment to innovation also paid off,
as its HKJC Hotspot mobile app struck silver in the
Marketing Excellence Awards and its ibu interactive
entertainment table received a Best Practice Award in
Usability and Simplicity. Also, the Club’s sustainability
efforts won it the Green China 2012 Environmental
Achievement Awards.
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Club staff receive industry recognition during November in the Service and Courtesy Awards (left), the Mystery Caller Assessment
Awards (centre) and the Best Practice Awards.
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Champion of
neighbourhood

healthcare

The first one-stop community
health centre in Tin Shui Wai

110,000 -

. | b
residents

to benefit ““Wﬁl\l

LUV

-]

Club Steward Dr Donald Li (above) opens the Jockey Club Tin Shui Wai Community Health
Centre, a much-needed one-stop facility for the area’s residents.

SEESTERELE (L) IREFERKELEREFLEAER - PUOEABRERFRER
ERN— B RRT -

W 00,
revention is always better than cure. Sharing the vision of United Christian Nethersole ——— ;
P Community Health Service on the importance of primary healthcare, the Club’s m@f\\‘
Charities Trust has donated HK$10.8 million to set up the Jockey Club Tin Shui Wai =1 &

Community Health Centre, the first such one-stop facility in the district. Offering a wide
range of quality medical services at affordable prices, it will bring substantial relief S [
to the overburdened public hospital in Yuen Long, serving an estimated 110,000 Tin yk) m
Shui Wai residents in the first three years.
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Pop art demystified

Complementing the three-month “Andy
Warhol: 15 Minutes Eternal” exhibition
organised by Leisure and Cultural Services
Department, the Club’s Charities Trust
sponsored the organisation of an Art
Appreciation Programme to help the
public better understand the works of this
renowned American pop artist through
lectures, discussions, free guided tours,

interactive games and an art accessibility

programme, with special aid materials for the disabled. The Programme was part of a HK$15.43 million
donation by the Trust which has also supported two major exhibitions under The HKJC Series during
2013, “The Wonders of Ancient Mesopotamia” and “The Splendours of Royal Costume: Qing Court Attire”.
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Reaching for the stars

Michelin recommends
Moon Koon

“What could be better than
watching the sport of kings while
eating Cantonese food?” Such
was the fitting comment made by
the Michelin Guide Hong Kong
Macau 2013 on the Club’s Moon
Koon Restaurant, when this
award-winning venue made it to a
distinguished list of 51 Michelin-
recommended local dining places
for the first time. This latest honour
not only recognises the sumptuous
Cantonese food on offer at Moon
Koon daily, but also its spectacular
view of Happy Valley Racecourse.
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Racing and Betting
Security & Integrity
Conference

The Club hosted this inaugural event
to provide a platform for racing and
betting organisations worldwide to
advocate the importance of integrity
in sports betting and help provide

a fair betting environment for every
customer. The event attracted
delegates from eight countries and
regions, who agreed that working
hand in hand was necessary to
combat illegal and offshore betting.
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HK$

09

million
donation
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Community

Services
iR (%)

HKFWC Jockey
Club Tai Wo
Centre

The Club’s Charities
Trust has donated
HK$4.09 million

to the Hong Kong
Federation of
Women'’s Centres to
expand their Tai Wo
Centre to meet the
increasing demand
for women’s support
services in Tai Po.
The new centre is
expected to serve
some 14,000 local
women a year.
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9,000+

trainees
to benefit
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Community Services # f)i#

Tin Ching
Employment and
Business Start Up

Service Centre
Helping the
underprivileged and
unemployed further
their career goals

The Club’s Charities Trust has
donated HK$1.07 million to the CTU
Education Foundation to establish
its Tin Ching Employment and
Business Start Up Service Centre
at Tin Shui Wai. An estimated 9,000
trainees and 300 self-employed
residents in Tin Shui Wai are

expected to benefit in the coming
three years.
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Sports #%
HKFTU Distance Race
This annual event organised {'

by the Hong Kong
Federation of Trade Unions
was supported by the Club
for the fifth consecutive
year as Platinum Sponsor, &
attracting over 900 runners.
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The Club received awards in December
for its long-standing strategic partnership
with the Vocational Training Council (left)
and the innovation of its racing
entertainment table, ibu.
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Club’s vision
acknowledged

Priding itself as a vanguard of innovation, the Club was honoured with the Business
Application Innovation Award in the CAPITAL CEO Supreme Brand Awards 2012 for
bringing the excitement of horse racing to tech-savvy leisure customers through the
world’s largest multi-touch racing entertainment table, ibu. Its award-winning mobile
app “HKJC Hotspot” also received the Best Location-Based Marketing Silver Prize in
the Mob-Ex Awards. The Club’s efforts to upgrade facilities at Happy Valley Racecourse
paid off in other ways, too, when it was named Best Club Wedding Banquet venue in
the Bridal Awards 2012 for the third consecutive year. Meanwhile, the Club’s concern
for the environment was honoured in the Hong Kong Green Awards 2012 and with two
accolades from the “Power Smart” 2012 contest. And its care for the community through its
volunteer team services was recognised with three gold, two silver and one bronze
awards from the Social Welfare Department. Staff training is another area in which the
Club’s vision gained industry recognition during 2012, earning the Vocational Training
Council 30th Anniversary Outstanding Sponsor Award and Strategic Partner Award.
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PATHS to Adulthood opened wider

Encouraged by the success of its PATHS to Adulthood
project, the Club’s Charities Trust pledged in
December to extend this school-based initiative to
the wider community until 2015, in partnership with
NGOs citywide. The extended programme will help
84,000 more young people develop in a positive and
holistic manner, as well as decrease adolescent risk
behaviour. Since 2005, some 214,300 students from
mainstream and special secondary schools have
already participated in this Trust-initiated project, which has gained both local and
international recognition for its effectiveness. To complement the project’s anti-drug
education efforts, an eight-episode TV series Drug Battle 2012 and a range of preventive
education programmes were also launched in December.
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Star power HKS
gives added shine to 12

million
PRIZE MONEY
L tF=EHEET
Pl

LONGINES HONG KONG
INTERNATIONAL RACES 2012

occasion with connections of
the 25 visiting horses including
Britain’s Queen Elizabeth,
Prince Khalid Abdullah,

Sheikh Fahad Al-Thani and the
Aga Khan.

Turnover for the ten-race
card increased almost 3% to
HK$1.27 billion, the highest
at the International Races
since 1997.

“It was a great day of
racing, and from the financial
and attendance point of
view it was tremendous,”
said an exuberant Club CEO
Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges
afterwards. “It was our
highest attendance since our
International Races all became
Group One in 2002, which |
think is extremely important for
us and our fan base.”

The CEO reserved
special praise for new
sponsor LONGINES, hailing

he sun shone
brightly while the
stars were also out
in force as some
70,000 local racing fans and
visitors descended on Sha Tin
Racecourse for the 2012 Hong
Kong International Races on
9 December, the first under
the banner of prestigious
new sponsor LONGINES and
carrying a record HK$72 million
in prize money.

With two victories for the
home team and one apiece
for Japan and Great Britain,
the event fully lived up to
its billing as the “Turf World
Championships”, drawing
international star power with
the likes of movie star and
horse owner Omar Sharif and
LONGINES Ambassadors Kate
Winslet and Aaron Kwok in
attendance. There was also
a strongly royal ring to the

1.27

billion
HIGHEST
INTERNATIONAL

SINCE 1997
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10

thousand
LOCAL
RACING FANS
AND
VISITORS
+tE a4 E%

BINHE

RACES TURNOVER

LONGINES
HONG KONG
INTERNATIONAL RACES

RERT B EESR

the Swiss watchmaker as

“a tremendous partner that
has really supported the
event significantly and added
additional elegance and
glamour”.

All four of the International
Races produced top-class
action with the crowd’s biggest
roar of the day reserved for
local favourite California
Memory, as the little grey with
a big heart became the first to
achieve back-to-back wins in
the LONGINES Hong Kong Cup,
both under home-grown rider
Matthew Chadwick.

Reigning Horse of the Year
Ambitious Dragon garnered
huge cheers, too, as he swept
to victory in the Mile, while there
was also a local connection
in British-trained Vase winner
Red Cadeaux, whose Hong
Kong owner is former Club
Chairman Ronald Arculli. Japan
completed the honours with a
first Sprint win by Lord Kanaloa.

Four days earlier, there was
a similar carnival atmosphere
at Happy Valley Racecourse
as the LONGINES International
Jockeys’ Championship got
International Races Week off
to an equally thrilling start. In a
battle won eventually by just a
nose in the fourth and final leg,
Singapore-based Joao Moreira
edged out Hong Kong’s Zac
Purton to take the HK$500,000
top prize.

On the Friday night,
hundreds of overseas racing
connections and media guests
were given a taste of Hong
Kong’s fine hospitality at the
LONGINES HKIR Gala Party,
where the star guest was
songstress Sandy Lam.
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THEY
SAID IT

BRETE

“Horse racing
is really serious
here. It’'s No.1!”
EREEERERESE!
Jockey Gérald Mossé,
eight-time HKIR winner

NEEBEBRESRE
85 i B B B A 3%

“In the international
scene, it ranks
really highly.”
EEEBESEBEE
BEIBE -

Sir Michael Stoute,
trainer of Queen
Elizabeth’s Carlton House
HLZEFRND B
ERERTE
REMAEREL

“It really is one of
the best racedays
in the world.”
BHRESHE
BREFHEREAZ— -
Francesca Cumani, host
of CNN’s Winning Post

CNN [Winning Post |
# B E#F Francesca Cumani

“For everybody
here, it’s a day
to remember.”
FEHEESABKE= -
Emma Spencer,
BBC World News anchor

[BBC World News ] £
Emma Spencer
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Vase

EHEM

WINNER

Red Cadeaux (UK)
JOCKEY

Gérald Mossé

TRAINER
Ed Dunlop
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Mile
EHE—ERIER
WINNER
Ambitious
Dragon (HK)
JOCKEY

Zac Purton

TRAINER
Tony Millard
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WINNER
Lord Kanaloa
(Japan)

JOCKEY
Yasunari lwata

TRAINER
Takayuki Yasuda
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Left to right:
Red Cadeaux,
Lord Kanaloa,

N Ambitious Dragon and
California Memory
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Cup
EEE
WINNER

California
Memory (HK)

JOCKEY
Matthew
Chadwick

TRAINER
Tony Cruz
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Education ##

Nurturing youngsters
to make a difference

The Club’s Charities Trust donated

a further HK$5.7 million to the Hong
Kong Institute of Contemporary
Culture to continue organising the
MabD (Make a Difference) School

in 2013 and 2014. More than 7,000
local young people are expected to
participate and 93,000 to access the
programme’s online resources and
education kits.
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Education ##&

Support for dyslexic
children continued

Buoyed by the success of READ

& WRITE: A Jockey Club Learning
Support Network in helping dyslexic
children overcome their learning
difficulties, the Club’s Charities Trust
announced details in February of
the HK$154 million project’s second
phase, which addresses the needs
of at-risk pre-school children,

offers parent support and provides
training for teachers and educational
psychologists. Since 2006, the
scheme has already benefited over
9,000 dyslexic students, as well as
provided training for 7,500 teachers,
social workers and professionals.
The successful intervention model
has now been taken up by the
Education Bureau to implement in
200 local primary schools along with
school-based support services,
while its pre-school learning package
has been adopted in Taiwan.
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Elderly Services K#/k#

Staying active helps
positive ageing

Three publications aimed at
helping the elderly prepare for
retirement were released by the
Active Interest Mentorship Scheme
(AIMS), a CADENZA Community
Project run by The University

of Hong Kong and Hong Kong
Christian Service with funding
from the Club’s Charities Trust.
Surveys by AIMS have shown that
encouraging retirees to develop
active interests with the help of
mentors improves their physical
health, sense of worth, enjoyment
of life and social connections.
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Community Services - fJlit#

Festive joy added in
Tin Shui Wai

More than 8,000 local residents
shared the festive fun in a two-day
HKJC Tin Shui Wai Winter Carnival,
which also engaged volunteers,
beneficiaries and students

from local NGOs and schools in
promoting themes of the Club’s
community projects — “Caring for
Livelihoods”, “Creating Jobs”,
“Easing Poverty”, “Promoting
Growth” and “Adding Joy”.
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Conceiving a
better future

Mother’s Choice opened a new
centre in Kwun Tong offering
pregnant girls services, foster
care services and adoption to
provide support to pregnant
girls, families and children.
Under an HKJC Community
Project Grant, the pregnant girls
services offer assistance to single
girls and young women, their
parents and families facing crisis
pregnancy, as well as supportive
services like hotline counselling,
casework counselling and hostel
programmes. Sex education
programmes are also offered

to promote a positive attitude
towards sex among teenagers
and raise their awareness

about the consequences of
unwanted pregnancy.
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Club works cultural wonders

The Wonders of Ancient Mesopotamia

Committed to Hong Kong’s arts and cultural development, the
Club’s Charities Trust solely sponsored “The Wonders of Ancient
Mesopotamia” exhibition held at the Museum of History from
January to May - the Asian debut of a stunning collection of
artefacts from one of the world’s greatest
ancient civilisations. The first of two
groundbreaking exhibitions brought to Hong
Kong in 2013, it was part of The HKJC Series
under a three-year partnership between the
Trust and Leisure and Cultural Services
Department. The Trust will bring two to three
spotlight exhibitions to the city every year, as
well as support educational and outreach
programmes for the wider community.

Club Deputy Chairman Dr Simon Ip (2nd right) and
HKSAR Chief Secretary Carrie Lam (1st right) preview
the Mesopotamian exhibits.
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Next generation centre opens to elderly

The first elderly centre to benefit under the
Jockey Club Elderly Facilities Modernisation
Scheme opened in Kwun Tong in February.
The newly-enhanced Bliss District Elderly
Community Centre run by the Hong Kong
Christian Service is now equipped with the
latest gadgets and facilities such as tablet
PCs and gymnastic equipment to meet the
changing needs of the elderly. It is one of
192 centres being upgraded in this phase
of the Scheme, making use of a HK$110
million Charities Trust donation to provide cub Steward Anthony Chow (left) greets a resident
specialised equipment in premises being of the newly-enhanced Bliss District Elderly
refurbished under the Government’s Community Centre.
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Young talents
reporting in

Some 45 young people aged
between 17 and 28, eyeing careers
in the media, had their first taste
of working as sports reporters

in January thanks to a six-month
Club-initiated and managed Junior
Sports Reporter Programme that
combined classroom training

with field experience, reporting
from events like the i-Run - HKJC
Special Marathon 2013 and 4th
Hong Kong Games.
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Racing %5

2012 World
Thoroughbred
Rankings

Reigning two-time Horse of the
Year Ambitious Dragon from Tony
Millard’s stable was accorded a
year-end international rating of 124
in the 2012 World Thoroughbred
Rankings (WTR), matching Hong
Kong'’s previous best achieved

by Good Ba Ba in 2008. A total

of 16 local horses were featured
in the 2012 WTR, making Hong
Kong seventh in the international
pecking order.
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Club Steward Dr Rita Fan
(3rd left) joins other officiating
guests at the launch of CUHK

Jockey Club Initiative Gaia.
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Running for social
inclusion

Hong Kong Jockey Club
Special Marathon 2013

About 2,000 athletes with
disabilities and their pair-up
runners competed in the i-Run -
Hong Kong Jockey Club Special
Marathon 2013 on 20 January,
organised by the Tung Wah Group
of Hospitals and funded again

by the Club’s Charities Trust,

with an increased donation of
HK$936,000 this year to sponsor
the event and a series of pre-race
training activities. In addition, 27
members of the Club’s CARE@hkjc
Volunteer Team served as pair-up
runners or on-site helpers for this
special event, which advocates the
concept of social inclusion.
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Environment 84358

Raising the glass to
green campaign

The second phase of the Hong
Chi Jockey Club Glass Bottle
Recycling Project was launched
with a donation of HK$6.98
million from the Club’s Charities
Trust. Over the next three years,
collection points in the city will be
increased to 300. The extended
campaign is aimed at doubling the
amount recycled to 2,000 tonnes,
as well as offering more Hong

Chi trainees vocational training
opportunities to promote

social inclusion.
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Environment 84558

Striking the
green notes

The Club’s latest Green Action
programme, now in its third year,
concluded on a high note with
some 2,000 employees, families
and friends joining a first-ever
“Green Music Festival” at Sha Tin
Racecourse. With each participant
donating a recyclable item in
exchange for a ticket, the event
highlighted green practices while
also helping the needy.
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HKS$

million
donation
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Environment
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Partnering for a
greener future

The Club’s Charities
Trust donated
HK$54 million to The
Chinese University
of Hong Kong to
undertake a five-
year community
engagement
programme called
CUHK Jockey Club
Initiative Gaia.

Club Steward

Dr Rita Fan Hsu

Lai Tai joined other
guests at the launch
of the initiative,
which was coupled
with the opening

of an international
conference on
Forty Years of
Environmental
Protection in China.
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Snakes alive The Year of the Snake got off to a rattling start
as nearly 112,000 people flocked to Sha Tin
_ ? Racecourse for the traditional Chinese New Year
lt S anew I'eCOI'd. Raceday, breaking the track’s all-time record.
Almost 7,000 more were at Happy Valley and total turnover was HK$1.53 billion, making
it the most successful Chinese New Year meeting ever. Also making history was Penglai
Xianzi who helped trainer Tony Cruz and jockey Keith Yeung secure the Chinese New Year
Cup, a first win in this event for both. A HK$20 million Triple Trio dividend and a series of
fortune-related on-course programmes added further to the festive atmosphere. Two
days earlier, more “firsts” were recorded when the Club participated in the International
Chinese New Year Night Parade for the 18th consecutive year. Its float was the first to use
projection mapping techniques in a mobile outdoor setting, showcasing the Club’s role
as a world-class sporting operator and a major charitable benefactor.

SRR R IE RS H AT R > i B S T NEAVIE S B - Al N IR A
S N SR > WA KK LT A[R] R AE B M R B gR « & H SRR I = T o > B
P i B B JEOR S 1 o o HRY BRI AR TR o [ T ) AR AR > B i 3R
JE T 50 i R WY A4 150 o8 o VAT DU SEL SRR o B Y = T3 i — T #
TG > Sy N AR R R A O A TS B AR BT H > S50 AT o AR
CETHNAR R SRR - Be O s+ /S HACH L[5
FER AL ) R A HBA S UOR FAMR B BRI [
% | il > 2R AHH —Bii s =2 > AT IR R R
A [a] RE R L B o 2 SRR S S B A ML > DL BRI B AR
PR EEATEAT AL Ay o




Three-way results
of HK Speed Series

Ambitious Dragon was back to his crowd-
wooing best as he clinched the Hong Kong
Group One Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup under
Zac Purton. The final leg of the Hong Kong
Speed Series had been billed as a three-way
battle between the two-time Horse of the
Year, his old rival Glorious Days and sprinting
stalwart Lucky Nine, winner of the second
leg, the Chairman’s Sprint Prize. However,
the race was all but over as the Tony Millard-
trained six-year-old unleashed his trademark
burst to surge clear for an easy 2%2-length
victory. In the opening leg of the Series,
Eagle Regiment had made a remarkable
comeback after nearly a year’s absence to
score a back-to-back success in the Kent
& Curwen Centenary Sprint Cup — only the
fiftth horse in 15 years to achieve the feat,
joining such luminaries as Silent Witness and
Sacred Kingdom.

Hong Kong Speed Series winners Ambitious Dragon
(left), Eagle Regiment (centre) and Lucky Nine.
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LONGINES Hong Kong International Races

rank in World Top 50

Hong Kong’s four International Races sponsored by
LONGINES and the Champions Mile are ranked among
the world’s Top 50 Group/Grade 1 races, according to the
first-ever official listing by the International Federation of
Horseracing Authorities. No single raceday in the world
has more Top 50 races than Hong Kong’s December
showpiece, with the LONGINES Hong Kong Cup heading
the list at 25th, the Sprint ranking 32nd, the Mile 34th
and the Vase 45th. The Champions Mile is the fifth Hong
Kong race to make the Top 50, ranking 42nd.
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Sports ##

Eight-handed chance
to ride to top

The Club named eight new

recruits to its Junior Equestrian
Training Squad in March, all aged
between 13 and 17. The three

best performers will join intensive
training in Europe and participate in
international competitions there. The
announcement coincided with the
inaugural CSI15* LONGINES Hong Kong
Masters, the highest-standard jumping
event held in Asia since the 2008
Olympics, in which member of the
senior HKJC Equestrian Team Kenneth
Cheng and his new horse Jockey

Club Caballo, along with Hong Kong
teammate Raena Leung, took on 25
elite riders from around the world.
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Racing %%

Hong Kong speed

stars go close in Dubai
Joy And Fun and Eagle Regiment gave
Hong Kong a good deal to shout about
in the Group One Al Quoz Sprint at
Meydan as the pair finished second
and third behind South African star
Shea Shea. Meanwhile LONGINES
Hong Kong Vase winner Red Cadeaux,
owned by former HKJC Chairman
Ronald Arculli, ran a thrilling second in
the Group One Dubai World Cup.
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HKS$

million
donation
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Education %

Training future
leaders

Opened in 1994 and
extended in 2005,
both times with

Club Charities Trust
funding, the Po Leung
Kuk Jockey Club Tai
Tong Holiday Camp
launched its Phase
Il development in
March. Its key feature
is a new Leadership
Training Base where
young people can
develop their self-
care, social and
leadership skills
through activities
such as physical and
adventure training.
Total Charities Trust
donations to the
Camp now stand at
HK$80 million.
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Environment S35 5

McDull promotes
low carbon living

Popular local cartoon character
McDull became the green
ambassador of the Club’s latest
environment initiative — the “Lower
Carbon e Better Living” project.
The animated pig features in a
teaching pack and various five-
minute clips and comic strips to
promote low carbon living to local
students in an entertaining way,
as well as the use of renewable
energy and how to lead a
sustainable lifestyle. "f}i &3{:
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Arts & Culture scft2u4l

Learning takes
centre stage

The Jockey Club “From Page

to Stage” Programme this year
saw more than 10,000 students
and teachers from 52 secondary
schools sign up for the second
play of the programme, Sir
Arthur Conan Doyle’s The Lost
World, as well as pre-production
school workshops. The three-
year programme is designed to
enhance young people’s language
skills as well as their appreciation
of literary classics.
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Legislative Councillor
Claudia Mo is among

pet owners enjoying

the Penfold Paw Paw

Hoof Hoof Carnival.
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Family day out
with furry friends

Over 1,500 dogs, their owners and
a crowd of 4,000 came to Penfold
Park in Sha Tin on 30 March for
the “Penfold Paw Paw Hoof Hoof
Carnival”, enjoying a day of great
family entertainment. Aimed at
promoting animal care and welfare,
it was the first event of its kind held
at this popular “pets paradise”.
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Arts & Culture b2k
Hitting the high notes

For the third year running, the
Club’s Charities Trust supported
the HKFYG Jockey Club Hong
Kong International a cappella
Festival, organised by the

Hong Kong Federation of Youth
Groups. In addition to joining an
opening extravaganza, overseas
performers conducted workshops
and performed for students in local
secondary schools. In addition,
40 talented young graduates
from the Jockey Club a cappella
Education Programme, launched
in 2012, were invited to join the
International a cappella Marathon
and a cappella @ Sha Tin Town
Hall Plaza programmes.
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Arts & Culture b4

A blooming success

This year’s ever-popular Hong
Kong Flower Show (above)
included two special Club-
supported events designed to
engage over 3,000 local students
from 220 schools, namely The
Jockey Club Mosaiculture Display
by Students and Jockey Club
Student Drawing Competition.
The HK$1.8 million Club Charities
Trust donation also funded guided
tours and transport subsidies
enabling some 34,000 elderly,
students and people in need to
attend the show.
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Environment $4#5%58)

Spreading green
message to shoppers

Organised as part of the CUHK
Jockey Club Initiative Gaia, the
Environment Fair 2013 at Cityplaza
featured interactive eco-games,
advice on food waste conversion
and a green living exhibition,

all aimed at building a greener
community.
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= Arts Festival
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Pillar of support
for top regional arts festival

The 41st Hong Kong Arts Festival, one of the region’s largest, came
to a successful close in March after some 147 performances or
events by 49 top local and international groups - thanks in no small
part to the Club, which has been a stalwart supporter since the
Festival’s inception. Supported with a Club Charities Trust donation
of HK$10.96 million in 2013, three pillar overseas programmes
were brought to Hong Kong with one being designated “The Hong
Kong Jockey Club Series”, alongside the HKJC Student Matinee
Programme and the 2013 HKJC Contemporary Dance series. This
year, the HKJC Student Matinee Programme enabled some 3,200
local schoolchildren to enjoy a top-class ballet performance, after
attending a prior briefing to help them appreciate the art. The HKJC
Contemporary Dance series provided a platform to showcase
emerging local artists, with enhanced outreach and educational
activities for students.

Scholarship moving with the times

Celebrating the graduation of the latest 25 recipients of The HKJC
Scholarship Scheme, Club Chairman T. Brian Stevenson was happy
to announce another five-year extension of the Scheme to academic
year 2016/17. In this second phase of the Scheme, the number of
recipients each year has increased from three to four for each of
the nine partner tertiary institutions. In addition, each Scholarship
covers four years instead of the existing three to match the new
curriculum for undergraduate study. Since its inauguration in

. 1998, the Club’s total

ﬁ contribution to the
Scheme has reached
nearly HK$200
million.
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Stepping into
the digital age

Opening of the Jockey
Club Digital Inclusion
Centre for elderly and
disabled citizens

Some 24,000 elderly and disabled
people a year can now benefit
from the latest communications
technology for rehabilitation
training and accessible communication devices following the
opening of the Jockey Club Digital Inclusion Centre in Shek Kip Mei,
which helps them lead more independent lives and integrate better
into the community. Funding of some HK$10 million from the Club’s
Charities Trust has helped to set up the new Centre and also covers
three years of its operating costs, enabling its multi-disciplinary team
to provide assessments, solutions and one-stop support services
to help elderly and disabled people utilise information and digital
technology in a barrier-free environment.
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Akeed Mofeed storms towictory under Douglas Whyte in the BMW Hong Kong berby. [EBRE| EEERBTRYREEFTEBITUHAE -
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Hong Kong Group One four-year-old series, with first blood
going to trainer Richard Gibson when favourite Gold-Fun
narrowly took the opening leg, the Hong Kong Classic Mile, thanks
to the tactical nous of jockey Douglas Whyte. It was Gibson’s first
top-flight success since his move to Hong Kong in 2011 and he looked
well on song to land a clean sweep, with Akeed Mofeed also heavily
favoured for the next two legs. But a strong start and good turn-of-foot
in the straight saw John Size-trained outsider It Has To Be You spring
a shock in the Hong Kong Classic Cup, giving Tim Clark his first
Hong Kong Group One victory. And so to the final leg and the star
prize, the BMW Hong Kong Derby, which saw Akeed Mofeed live
up to the hype surrounding him with a determined victory over
Endowing, helping Whyte seize a third Hong Kong Derby win in four
years. Gold-Fun was a further half-length behind, giving both Gibson
and owner Pan Sutong a unique 1st and 3rd double.
Adopting a new two-date format to help the Club bring in horses
at the ideal time, the 2012/13 Hong Kong International Sale saw a
total of 33 lots pass through the ring in December and March for an
aggregate price of HK$91.2 million. Top price of HK$6.2 million was
paid at the March sale for Lot 13, an Exceed And Excel three-parts
brother to Group One Blue Diamond Stakes runner-up No Looking
Back. Executive Director of Racing William A Nader said the Club
had actually lost money on this season’s sale, but “that’s not what
drives this, our overriding aim and hope is that these horses can go
on and have productive racing careers in Hong Kong”.

n nticipation and excitement were at full throttle for this year’s

HK $6,200,000
SOLD

Hong Kong International Sale Figures (HK$SM)
FREERECHEERIBF(FEERT)

Racing Season No. of Horses Gross Receipts Average Price  Top Price
5% HESTHE AinEE FHHEE BEHEE
2012/13 33 91.2 2.8 6.2
2011/12 26 114.4 4.4 9.0
2010/11 20 941 4.7 7.5
2009/10 19 70.4 3.7 5.7
2008/09 30 87.2 2.9 5.5

Tim Clark celebrates a victory on /It Has To Be You in the Hong Kong Classic Cup.
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Gold-Fun (red and
yellow cap) sets the
pace in the four-year-old
series with victory in the
Hong Kong Classic Mile,
giving trainer Richard
Gibson his first top flight
success in the city.
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Medical & Health B854

Fight against bowel
cancer stepped up

The Club’s Charities Trust
approved a HK$15.89 million
donation to support the CUHK
Jockey Club Bowel Cancer
Education Centre’s programme
for the prevention of bowel cancer
for another five years. The latest
programme will provide screening
for 5,000 eligible high-risk people,
enhanced training for 50 medical
professionals and training of

500 volunteers to raise public
awareness of the disease.
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Sports ##

Cradle of future
excellence

Asian Football
Confederation Under-14
Championship
As Principal Contributor to the
Asian Football Confederation
Under-14 Championship 2014
Qualifiers held in Hong Kong,
involving five Asian countries and
regions, the Club’s Charities Trust
gave the city’s budding young
football stars the chance to test
their skills at international level,
contributing to the sport’s long-
term development in Hong Kong.
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Education ##

Young targeted by
first community
media hub

HKFYG Jockey Club
Media 21

Designed to connect and engage
young people in the face of

rapid social, economic and
technological change, the HKFYG
Jockey Club Media 21 was opened
in April with support from the
Club’s Charities Trust. The city’s
first NGO-led, community-based
media hub provides a wide range
of programmes and training

to develop participants’ skills

and creativity, preparing them

for future employment in such
areas as multimedia production.
Complementing the media hub

is a three-year Jockey Club M21
Media Education Project designed
to educate young people about
proper values in internet use, while
fostering media literacy and a
critical mindset.
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Nurturing tomorrow’s
sports stars

Keen to help Hong Kong athletes compete on the world
stage, Chairman T. Brian Stevenson announced at the
annual Community Day race meeting on 20 April that
the Club’s Charities Trust would donate HK$103 million
to the Hong Kong Sports Institute to redevelop the old
athletes’ hostel into a multi-purpose elite training and
coaching centre. He said the new centre would provide
a dedicated training area for able-bodied elite athletes
and those with disabilities, a home base for junior talent
development programmes and dedicated facilities for
the training and development of local sports coaches.
The Club’s total support to the Institute since 1977 has
now reached almost HK$700 million.
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Community-based ),

art showcased [

The HKJC Community Arts Biennale
2013 saw 24 sets of original art go on
display at Tuen Mun Park, Pok Fu Lam
Village, Lok Fu Plaza and The Central =
Oasis Gallery in April and May, created by more than
2,000 young people and 21 emerging local artists. Another
4,000 participants had the opportunity to contribute
their creativity on site, making the event an ideal means
of sparking young people’s interest in arts and culture.
Visitors to the exhibitions could also join free docent tours,
workshops and public forums so as to understand the
connection between the art pieces and the community.
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30,000

racing fans

>\ AUDEMARS PIGUET

QEIll CUP
BREZEE

BERRY ON

ATTACK IN

AP QEII CUP

Nearly 30,000 racing fans witnessed probably one of the best
Audemars Piguet QE Il Cups to date in ratings terms, with the depth
of talent in the field reflecting the high quality of Hong Kong racing.
They also saw young Australian riding star Tommy Berry make
a sensational start to his Hong Kong career, giving John Moore-
trained Military Attack a copybook ride to secure an emphatic
134-length victory from Tony Cruz’s two-time Hong Kong Cup winner
California Memory. Japan’s Eishin Flash surged home late down the
inside under Mirco Demuro to finish third, a nose further behind, but
heavily-backed Ambitious Dragon could only manage sixth after
being baulked in the straight.

Eye-catching attractions were not limited to the racing
action, as the Club’s lovely Shetland ponies and a dazzling
AP QEIl Cup horse statue both had the crowds eagerly posing
for photos.
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Club CEO Winfried
Engelbrecht-Bresges
(2nd left, back row) with
some Hong Kong football
stars of the future.
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Elderly Services 5%k

Dementia checks
take to the road

Hong Kong’s first-ever brain health
promotional vehicle was launched as
part of the Jockey Club Charles Kao
Brain Health Services, a CADENZA
Community Project jointly funded

by the Club’s Charities Trust and

The Charles K Kao Foundation.

The vehicle will provide outreach
services including preliminary checks
on memory problems for some 60,000
seniors across all 18 Districts, making
referrals for community care. Through
various educational activities, the
project will also help raise public
awareness of dementia care.
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Medical & Health a5

Brain health message
struck home

The conclusion of a HK$1.78 million
Club-funded Brain Health Public
Education Campaign, organised by the
Jockey Club Centre for Positive Ageing,
was marked by a community carnival in
Sha Tin on 18 May. Launched in 2012,
the Campaign successfully spread the
message of maintaining a brain-healthy
lifestyle to more than 55,000 people, as
well as showing students, the elderly
and the general public how to prevent
dementia and mitigate the impact of
cognitive impairment.
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Changing public
attitudes

The Joyful Jockey
Club Mental Health
School Project was
launched in May with
a HK$7.17 million
donation from the
Club’s Charities Trust.
The three-year project
is aimed at combating
social stigmatisation
and increasing public
understanding of
mental health and
mood disorders
through a wide range
of activities, such

as talks, workshops,
competitions and a
student ambassadors’
programme. Some
48,000 students as well
as 2,100 teachers and
parents are expected
to benefit.
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First step on football
success ladder

The Summer Scheme of this year’s Jockey Club Youth
Football Development Programme kicked off on 22
May, promising 10,000 young people aged 5 to 19
the opportunity to receive football skills training and
participate in district and citywide competitions. The
three-year programme is now in its second year under
Club sponsorship, funded by a HK$12 million Charities
Trust donation. Talented players identified through the
Scheme go on to receive year-round training in their
home districts, while the most promising can join the
two-week Jockey Club Elite Youth Football Camp led by
coaches from the Manchester United Soccer School, and
can even win the chance to join a training programme
in England.
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School safety
starts from
the heart

To enhance awareness of heart
safety in schools and strengthen

- precautionary measures against
cardiac arrest, the Club’s Charities Trust donated HK$18.2
million to the Hong Kong College of Cardiology to install
Automated External Defibrillators in 1,100 schools
citywide over the next three years. Under the Jockey
Club Heart-safe School Project, teachers are also being
given training in cardiopulmonary resuscitation, while
educational programmes will help students appreciate
the importance of good heart health.
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Supporting art,
the French way

For the second year running, the Club’s Charities Trust was the Major Partner
of Le French May arts festival, pledging HK$6 million to support four highlight
programmes - a display of works by renowned French artist Jean Cocteau,
the opera Tales of Hoffmann, the musical Cabaret des Années Folles and
an exhibition by French-based Swiss photo-journalist René Burri (upper left).
The Trust’s donation also supported an educational programme benefiting some
10,000 local young people. Meanwhile, the Gallic theme was complemented by
four special French Nights of horse racing and entertainment at Happy Valley
during May.

CPS project
taking shape
A further milestone was reached
in the Club’s Central Police
Station Compound Revitalisation
project when expressions of
interest were invited from
qualified parties to operate
heritage, contemporary art and
leisure elements on the site, with
the aim of transforming it into
a unique and integrated cultural
destination for all to enjoy.
Meanwhile, renovation work on the heritage buildings is now well under way, as
is foundation work for two new buildings designed by world-renowned architects
Herzog & de Meuron that will house art and cultural facilities and utility plants.
The challenging project to conserve and revitalise the historic compound,
formed by three declared monuments — Central Police Station, Central Magistracy
and Victoria Prison - is being led and funded by the Club’s Charities Trust. The
first parts of the revitalised compound are targeted to open in 2015.

The Club’s Stewards and CEO are briefed on latest
developments during a visit to the Central Police
Station Compound.
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Opening the way to hope

The opening of the Sichuan University - Hong Kong
Polytechnic University Institute for Disaster Management
and Reconstruction HKJC Building on 8 May not only
marked the completion of the seven reconstruction
projects funded by the Club after the disastrous 2008
earthquake in Sichuan, but also broke new ground as
the Institute is the first of its kind established on the
Mainland. This visionary project is aimed at contributing
to the national and worldwide prevention of natural
disasters, or reducing their impact, by building a
knowledge base and training professionals in this area.
Its value has already been demonstrated through the
rapid emergency relief and contingency plans it was
able to provide after another 7.0 magnitude earthquake
hit Lushan, Ya’an, Sichuan on 20 April. The Club
donated HK$10 million to support immediate relief
work after the latest earthquake.
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Standard Chartered
Champions & Chater Cup

Citibank presents:

Hong Kong/

Gold Cup

All-round
excellence
of equine
heroes

Brave as they come but never previously
tested over 2,400m, Tony Cruz’s dual Hong
Kong Cup champion California Memory
proved he has stamina, too, as he stormed
home under Matthew Chadwick to win the
Standard Chartered Champions & Chater
Cup;, final leg of the Triple Crown series, from
stablemate Willie Cazals. In the earlier legs of
this most demanding three-distance series,
John Size-trained Glorious Days prevailed in
afast-run 1,600m Stewards’ Cup in January,
while John Moore’s Military Attack had a
commanding win in the 2,000m Citibank
Hong Kong Gold Cup a month later.

Top awards for
racecourse and
clubhouse facilities

Testifying to the Club’s world-class service
and facilities, the new Owners Box (OB3) at
Sha Tin won the Best Leisure Interior
Award (5 Star) - Hong Kong at this year’s
International Property Awards Asia Pacific
Summit. It also beat 1,242 entries from

23 countries to earn the top Asia

Pacific Regional Award in its category,
guaranteeing a ticket to the Best of the
World finals in the International Property
Awards in London. At the same event, the
Club’s Beijing Clubhouse was honoured
with the Leisure Architecture Award (Highly
Commended) — People’s Republic of China,
a timely celebration for its 5th Anniversary.
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Triple Crown series
winners California
Memory (left),
Military Attack (centre)
and Glorious Days.
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What a time to Excel!

A consistent performer in top races but never
before successful in Hong Kong at Group
level, Dan Excel made trainer John Moore a
happy man as he showed his true colours by
landing victory in the International Group One
Champions Mile, bringing Moore his fourth
consecutive victory in this top international
race and fifth overall. In a hammer-and-tongs
scrap to the wire, Weichong Marwing’s mount
surged past Helene Spirit by a short head,
with Packing Whiz and favourite Glorious
Days claiming third and fourth places.
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HK team F'O@F'S in Lion City

On an amazing night for Hong Kong racing, Military Attack followed the lead of compatriot
Lucky Nine some 50 minutes earlier and slammed a top-class field of international rivals at
Singapore’s Kranji Racecourse on 19 May to give Hong Kong two overseas International
Group One wins on the same day for the first time.

It was also a personal triumph for trainer John Moore, who not only secured his first-ever
International Group One success overseas but made it a quinella, after jockey Zac Purton
propelled Military Attack to victory in the Singapore Airlines International Cup by a 3%-length
margin over stablemate Dan Excel.

In what was widely hailed as the best Singapore International Racing Festival ever
staged in terms of competitor quality, Caspar Fownes-trained Lucky Nine proved earlier that
he remains one of the best sprinters in the world. Under the rein of Brett Prebble, the six-
year-old drew clear for a brilliant three-length victory in the KrisFlyer International Sprint.

Connections of Lucky
Nine (left) and Military
Attack celebrate their
Singapore success.
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Sport for all backed citywide

The Club’s Charities Trust donated HK$5 million to back the 4th Hong Kong
Games, reprising its support for this biennial event in 2011. Athletes from the
city’s 18 Districts competed for their district’s glory in eight sports, including
the Club-sponsored athletics and futsal competitions. Student reporters from
a Club-initiated programme, meanwhile, made history in their own right by
staging a live webcast of the athletics and futsal finals featuring professional
commentators, as well as reporting on other events.
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The 4th Hong Kong Games

2,500

trainees

to benefit
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Meeting future

healthcare needs

Supported by a HK$10.7 million Charities
Trust donation, The Open University of Hong
Kong launched the Jockey Club Community
Healthcare Education Programme in June,
marking another major milestone in its
fruitful partnership with the Club. The
Programme will provide certificate and
diploma courses for some 1,000 students
as well as training courses for about 1,500
carers and volunteers over the next five years,
meeting the mounting demand for medical
and community healthcare services. A total
of 300 scholarships will also be granted by
the Trust to help needy students.

Club Deputy Chairman Dr Simon Ip (3rd left) joins
officiating guests at the launch of the Jockey Club
Community Healthcare Education Programme.
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Membership doubly rewarding

This year’s Members’ Day was an occasion of double significance as
it fell on Father’s Day - so fathers attending the event were treated
to a complimentary meal, on top of the limited edition bracelet and
exclusive shopping privileges given to all Member guests. It was also
a day to celebrate the birthday of The Racing Club, marked by The
Racing Club 5th Anniversary Cup which was won by John Moore-
trained Rewarding Hero. His stablemate Invictus clinched the day’s
Members Cup.
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Pursuit of excellence
recognised

The Club’s commitment to being a Force for Good in
society bore more fruit as its long-standing support to
the community earned it the Charity Partner Award and
an Award for Merit from The Community Chest, while
its all-round sustainability endeavours won the Carbon
Care Label Award bestowed jointly by Carbon Care Asia
and Bloomberg. A Club Telebet Centre and frontline
employees brought the Club further pride by scooping
a remarkable nine awards in the Asia Pacific Customer
Relationships Excellence Awards 2013.
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One-stop
gourmet expedition

Members had no need to travel the globe
in search of the epicurean Holy Grail during
the year, as the Club brought four world-
class culinary masters to the clubhouses.
Specialising in French cuisine were Eric
Pras and Thomas Bihner, both chefs,
committed to adding modern interpretations
to traditional dishes. Also on the illustrious list was Michel Roth
who, like Pras, has been honoured as a Meilleur Ouvrier de France,
the country’s highest trade accolade. Completing the international
line-up was chef Dani Garcia, who treated Members to innovative
Spanish cuisine.
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In the Race for
Community
Building
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Besides celebrating the Club’s valued working partnerships with
district organisations, this year’s 18 Districts Cup Raceday at Sha
Tin sported the Hong Kong: Our Home Cup, a special feature race
honouring the citywide public participation campaign launched by
the Government in April. The campaign’s aims of injecting positive
energy into society, fostering social cohesion and promoting care,
mutual help and solidarity in the community were echoed through an
exhibition and performances at the racecourse featuring people from
all walks of life, jointly staged by the Club and its district partners.
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WEDNESDAYS
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popular Happy Wednesday brand saw further success

achieved in repackaging racing as a social experience,
with attendance at the brand-themed venues at Happy Valley
Racecourse registering growth of 45%. It has become so much
part and parcel of the Valley night meetings that the Club extended
the brand this season to more exciting venues including Stable
Bend Terrace and the rejuvenated Young Members Box. The
demographic make-up of customers also continued to grow
younger and more affluent, while the brand’s Facebook page has
now attracted over 21,000 fans.

The regular lifestyle parties not only offered something for
everyone throughout the season, but also ushered in a new era
of digital racing as the world’s largest multi-touch entertainment
table interface, ibu, as well as the Race Simulator, enabled
customers to enjoy the racing experience in a trendy, user-friendly
and interactive way. The iconic brand also added the coveted
2013 CAPITAL Honor Grand Award for Distinguished Marketing
Strategies to the Club’s trophy cabinet, recognising its success
in rejuvenating horse racing and making the city racetrack a truly
stylish entertainment hotspot for all.

c elebrating its fourth anniversary this year, the Club’s

The Club’s revolutionary ibu interactive
table, live bands, the Race Simulator App
and food and wine promotions are all
helping to make Happy Valley
Racecourse an entertainment hotspot for

younger racegoers.
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Environment 84355

Contest sees
organic growth

A ceremony in July honoured
winning schools in the Hong
Chi-HKJC Community Organic
Farming Competition, a HK$1.5
million project funded by the
Club’s Charities Trust to help
students and the general public
gain knowledge of environmental
protection and organic farming.
A record 100-plus primary,
secondary and special schools
participated in this year’s
campaign, which encompassed
organic cooking, organic
farming and organic knowledge
competitions, workshops, an eco-
tour, exhibitions and community
outreach carnivals, reaching out
to over 160,000 students and
members of the public.
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Elderly Services &%)k

Missing link bridges
generations

To promote understanding and
respect between generations

in the face of Hong Kong’s
ageing population trend, the
Club’s CADENZA project and
The Aberdeen Kai-fong Welfare
Association Social Services
Centre joined forces in July to
launch the CADENZA: LinkAges
Community Project. Through
130 community education
programmes, volunteering
initiatives and cross-generational
arts and cultural events, the
project will strengthen cohesion
among some 45,000 residents of
all ages in Southern District over
the next three years.
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Learning beyond bounds

The Hong Kong Jockey Club OLE Programme, the
city’s first large-scale free educational programme to
be driven by volunteers, was successfully completed in
July. Launched by the Club in collaboration with Tung
Wah Group of Hospitals in academic year 2011/12, it
provided local senior secondary students with learning
opportunities outside the classroom through a wide range
of Club-related activities, in line with the Government’s
New Senior Secondary curriculum which emphasises
Other Learning Experiences (OLE) as a means of
fostering students’ whole-person development. A total
of 120 workshops were planned, organised and led by
200 members of the Club’s CARE@hkjc Volunteer Team,
attracting total attendance of some 6,000.

uﬂf"ﬂ" q:-_.n:ﬂ--!jihmﬂ DHIII:-;_—!

o

ELEFHUBE FEERGRIVER THGERE
FLRERE = AF > R0 ——/—ZBERHN2E
HHE L EERM G EAFIEE - TSR RS EEE
A LR L ETEE) - 30 ACG BUR AT 9 A iR [
fhERE KRR | RO EEOK > LRI F AN N - BETE
LA REBEABATLEM - RSB AR o EEILEAT T
—H ALY > A A AS R LA RREEE > 20
B NUHEIENT -



R s HEME

Special "y
pocial Tickst Spweial Ticket

Uniquely racing, uniquely HK

What more appropriate way of celebrating the 16th
anniversary of Hong Kong’s reunification with China
than enjoying the city’s most favourite spectator
sport? That seemed to be the view of a25,000-strong
crowd who packed the racecourses at Sha Tin and
Happy Valley on 1 July to enjoy some adrenaline-
raising racetrack action and a carnival of on-
course entertainment at the annual Hong Kong
Reunification Raceday, testifying to the famous
pledge that the racing would continue. Club Deputy
Chairman Dr Simon S O Ip (left) described the event
as a fine example of “One Country, Two Systems”
in action, noting that horse racing had gone from strength to strength since the
handover and enabled the Club to make significant contributions to Hong Kong
through its not-for-profit business model, as well as benefiting the development
of the Chinese Mainland.
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“Kitchen therapy”

boosts family ties

Happy Family Kitchen Il, a harmony-
building project launched in 2010 under
the auspices of the Club-initiated FAMILY:
A Jockey Club Initiative for a Harmonious
Society, came to a successful conclusion
of its second phase in July after bringing
together some 1,000 families, 21 NGOs and
20 kindergartens, primary and secondary
schools in Tsuen Wan and Kwai Tsing
Districts. The programme was aimed
at promoting positive communication
among family members through cooking-
related activities, thereby contributing to
family health, happiness and harmony.
During a Family Forum held to mark
the occasion, findings of a preliminary
study were unveiled, confirming the
programme’s effectiveness in enhancing
family communication, strengthening
participants’ mental health and well-being,
and promoting a healthy diet.
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THRILLS
GO RIGHT TO
THE WIRE

as fans
celebrate day
and night

COMBINED
TURNOVER OF
SEASON FINALE
MEETINGS

ong Kong’s racing
fans were given a
double opportunity
to celebrate the end
of a record-breaking 2012/13
season, with special finale
meetings being held at both
Sha Tin and Happy Valley
Racecourses - and true to
form, the thrills kept coming
right to the final moment, with
the coveted Champion Trainer
title being decided in the very
last of the season’s 769 races.
Altogether more than 76,000
people packed the racecourses
for the two events spanning
20 races, producing combined
turnover of HK$2.76 billion. It was
enough to take total turnover
for the 83-meeting season to an
all-time high of HK$93.9 billion,
prompting Club Chief Executive
Officer Winfried Engelbrecht-
Bresges to hail it as “one of the
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PEOPLE PACKED
THE RACECOURSES
tEATE
HEAS

best seasons we’ve had, ever”.

It also took total attendance past
two million for the first time since
the 2003/04 season.

The atmosphere at both
events was electric, with a host
of special attractions laid on.
At Sha Tin on 7 July, racegoers
received a stylish free tote bag
on arrival and later cheered
wildly as the jockeys said their
traditional farewells by waving
and throwing free gifts to
the crowd.

The Sha Tin finale also saw
the majority of the season’s
Champion Awards announced,
with top honour of Horse of
the Year going to John Moore-
trained Military Attack, whose
outstanding season included
International Group One
victories both on home turf in
the Audemars Piguet QEIl Cup
and overseas in the Singapore

Airlines International Cup.
Military Attack was also named
Champion Middle-Distance
Horse and won the public’s vote
for Most Popular Horse of

the Year.

Also collecting multiple
awards was jockey Douglas
Whyte, whose 101 wins made
him Champion Jockey for an
incredible 13th consecutive
season, despite a determined
challenge by Zac Purton. Racing
fans also voted him Most
Popular Jockey of the Year.

However, presentation of
the Champion Trainer award had
to wait until the very final night
at Happy Valley three days later
as Dennis Yip, Tony Cruz and
John Size were all still in the hunt
with just four wins separating
them - and that’s when the fun
really started. Wins in Races
4 and 5 seemed to have given



Cruz the edge as he equalled
Yip’s winning tally and moved
into pole position on second-
place countback, but then a
last-gasp victory by Flying Elite
in Race 9, the very last race of
the season, finally gave the title
to Yip, making him the first local
Chinese trainer to claim the
championship since 2001.

“You probably could not
have written a better script,”
an exhilarated Mr Engelbrecht-
Bresges observed, surveying
stands at the Valley so packed
that admission to the public
enclosure had to be suspended
at one point. “This is what
Hong Kong racing is all about,
the competitiveness that
makes it such an exciting
sporting spectacle.”

As for Yip himself, he
was almost overwhelmed by
the champagne moment as

supporters chanted his name
and waved banners. “I'm very
happy and proud to do this
for Hong Kong - | was born in
Hong Kong, | grew up in Hong
Kong and | would like to thank
the Hong Kong people for
supporting me,” he told them,
revelling in an atmosphere

so electric that it was almost
enough to ignite the post-race
pyrotechnics by itself.

Also honoured during the
finale meetings were retiring
trainers Peter Ng and Andy
Leung, who were presented
with silver-gilt dishes by Club
Chairman T. Brian Stevenson
in recognition of their 30-year
plus service to Hong Kong’s
racing industry.

2012/13 Champion Awards —O—=/—=Z4EBEA5iE

Horse of the Year H8FE

Champion Sprinter &{E2%5

Champion Miler &E—185%

Champion Middle-Distance Horse g £+ &S
Champion Stayer B{ER&ES

Champion Griffin £ 5

Most Improved Horse & Kifs5 BT

2011/12 Hong Kong International Sale Bonus Winner
—O——/——EEEAERETHNESEHREBE

Champion Trainer 73 = £k G

Champion Jockey 73 & 3£

Champion Apprentice Jockey B & & & &kl
Most Popular Horse of the Year* & &0 Ut
Most Popular Jockey of the Year* & 3 &0 &4

Most Admired Overseas Horse of the Year*
BEEBEAMEEIET

Military Attack E5 &
Lucky Nine XX

Ambitious Dragon HENEEE
Military Attack B HE
California Memory &2
All You Wish BEUER

All You Wish BEUBEE
Bullish Friend 4185 &
Dennis Yip E#H

Douglas Whyte £i£

Dicky Lui B£&

Military Attack =5 H &
Douglas Whyte £3Z

Black Caviar (Australia)
BTFRBE CBM)

* public vote HARREZH
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Hong Kong-trained horses that achieved an international rating of 115 or above in 2012/13
ZO—Z/—ZHEESHEERIN —E—TES B LM EEER

Rating i¥% Horse § T

Trainer R G AF Owner F*

124 Ambitious Dragon % EEE
124 Military Attack E= HE
122 California Memory HNE&E
120 Glorious Days ¥ H8¥

120 Lucky Nine XX

119 Packing Whiz B# 1+

118 Dan Excel £ B&ERE

118 Time After Time #I}IEE%
117 Akeed Mofeed E£AE
117 Helene Spirit EEZ4]

117 Joy And Fun B &%

117 Packing OK B#ti%i2

117 Pure Champion j#%%

117 Xtension EE W

116 Real Specialist 5fi#E

115 Dominant Z&%|

115 Eagle Regiment [i& 2@

115 Thumbs Up BB

115 Willie Cazals BRI InE

Tony Millard &1
John Moore X8
Tony Cruz R E

John Size £
Caspar Fownes 5 &4H
Caspar Fownes 7318
John Moore X8 TE
John Moore #J#EE T
Richard Gibson &S 183t
Caspar Fownes A&
Derek Cruz 3E32
John Moore #J8E T
Tony Cruz %2

John Moore #J#EE T
John Size £#&

John Moore XJ&EETE
Manfred Man XxR
Caspar Fownes 75348

Tony Cruz £RE

David Philip Boehm X 1&
Planet Racing Syndicate 41 /5% 5 H 52
Pan Sutong & #&i&E

Mr & Mrs Johnny Wong Chun Nam & #REE L4 K KA
Raymond Lee Man Chun Z=3Xf&

Eugene Chuang Yue Chien & &

Johnson Lam Pui Hung & Anderson Lam Hin Yue #i5# EAAEE 14
Mr & Mrs Steven Lo Kit Sing B#EALER KA
Howard Liang Yum Shing 2 k22

Tom Brown’s Syndicate B4

Dr Chang Fuk To & Maria Chang Lee Ming Shum 3% 285 88 4 B3R 258750
Lee Man Yan %32

Sir Po-shing & Lady Woo, Wilson Woo Ka Wah & Jackson Woo Ka Biu HiEEB TRk kA tREEEHRE

Mr & Mrs Eddie Wong Ming Chak and Kameny Wong Kam Man E&R2 %4 | &k A B2 E 875X
Mr & Mrs Steven Lo Kit Sing B & EER KA

Kenneth Lau Ip Keung & Judy Lau Yap Ai Ai 2|$6HERETE
10/11 John Moore Trainer Syndicate 10/114))EE I 4k S £ % 5 E 52
Cheng Ka Shing Z8Z R
Leung Chung Shan 214

Note: All ratings to be ratified by the World Thoroughbred Rankings Conference in December 2013.
it RNFDALCER-O—=ZF+-ARTHHAFT T F L LS HER



Racing Statistics/ s % s%itws

Average Races per Runner Total Runners
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Average Runners per Race Percentage of Winning Favourites (Handicap Races) Number of Horses Winning Prize Money
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I “ ONGINES Hong Kong Cup REXREER
I “LONGINES Hong Kong Mile SRE X & & — 128342
[ “LONGINES Hong Kong Vase SRZ X & &l

*LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint SRZ & & 8 212712

[ Audemars Piguet QEIl Cup Bk & 2%
[ Champions Mile BE — 12 %

* Sponsor from 2012/13
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Winning Margin (Handicap Races)
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A team of Club cyclists, joined
by one of the Club’s electric
vehicles, participated in an
eco-design tour to raise
community awareness of
sustainable living.
BERHBEEKNRETHP—HE
B)SE S [4R&3E | 5 R H
it Mt EBEEREETE o

Full details of the
Club’s sustainability
performance can be
found in the Club’s
2012/13 Sustainability
Report, which is
available on the
Club’s website at
http://corporate.
hkjc.com/corporate/
operation/english/

annual-12-13.aspx
SERHFERREIFN
R SR EER
SEAUENEEESS
201213 E A EE R
BHE -

\

bl MAKING 3
s HEADWAY

This year the Club has continued to work hard to improve its

sustainability performance. Efforts to better manage electricity
consumption — the major contributor to our CO2-e emissions -
have continued, with new energy-efficient cooling plants being

rolled out at Sha Tin Racecourse and Sha Tin stables. We likewise
continued with our progressive installation of energy-saving lighting in betting branches
and clubhouses, and with the virtualisation of computer servers. As a result, electricity
usage declined by 2.4% last year while total greenhouse gas emissions were 119,972
tonnes of CO2-¢, representing a 2.4% reduction on last year. Carbon intensity was
likewise reduced by 23.3% on our base year of 2009/10. Given the Club’s increasing
levels of business activity this is a positive sign that our energy saving and carbon

reduction efforts are making headway.

HKJC Green Action

The Club’s sustainability effort continues

to draw on the enthusiastic support
of employees, who, through such
activities as HKJC Green Action, have
helped maintain the momentum of our

sustainability campaign. This year’s Green
Action campaign culminated in a Green

Music Festival at Sha Tin Racecourse.

Cutting down

on waste

The Club has stepped up
efforts to reduce materials
consumption and to increase
recycling. At Sha Tin stables
we have successfully trialled a
sealed compactor to facilitate
the separation of horse manure
from paper bedding, and we
are now purchasing more
compactors with a view to
sending greater quantities of
both materials for recycling.

Promoting a sustainable
Hong Kong

To help promote sustainability within
the community, the Club is funding

the HKQAA-HKJC Carbon Disclosure
e-Platform, which will provide a common
database for Hong Kong organisations
to report carbon emissions, as well

as progress in their reduction. Three
stakeholder
engagement forums
were also held to
exchange views
and gain feedback
on the Club’s
sustainability effort.

Staff took part in a Friends
of the Earth tree planting
challenge in April 2013,
planting some 60 trees.
FEETR=0O—=FMIA
SRz & [R5 58 | Bk
178 BET AT 2R -
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Environmental and Employee Data Summary (HK Operations only)

BREEIHERE (RESEEBEERE) 2011/12 2012/13
Carbon footprint (tonnes) T2 E] (AH)
Direct emissions from transportation E# FY E Z 5K 959 948
Fugitive emissions from refrigerants 55 | {9 8% M HERL 3,480 2,780
Indirect emissions from gas & &8RRI YR 2 HERR 548 549
Direct emissions from facilities & i HY E 5 2,627 2,685
Indirect emissions from electricity & 11 YR HER 115,351 113,010
Total carbon footprint 122,965 119,972
s EED
Electricity consumption (kWh) 174,358,074 170,207,042
BIERE (TRE)
Source separation and waste recycling
RESEREYERE
Waste paper (kg) B4 (2 fT) 581,551 491,087
Plastic bottles (kg) ¥2/84& (A ) 55,915 42,930
Iron products (kg) #28 (A f) 2,067 285
Other metals (kg) Eftt £ B & (2 F) 2,764 3,384
Toner cartridges (pcs) & (£) 1,329 1,678
Glass bottles (kg) IHEE (A ) 88,300 100,779
Light tubes (kg) X & (A F) 1,178 982
e-waste (pcs) EFEEY (1) 4,477 2,817
Training hours 35 3| i &
Full-time staff average training hours
28 T 19 & 4 43
Part-time staff average training hours
B T P985 58 12 12
Occupational injuries T{&
HKJC occupational injuries (per 1,000 employees) 12.3 12.0
HAIZENSEEET (B—F8&ET)
HK occupational injuries (per 1,000 employees)* 14.6 141

ERRAIZGER (B-TEXEALD)

* Source: Labour Department, the Hong Kong SAR Government

BERER  BBRERNS TR
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Awards & Honours /s

Record number
of honours
ez Speaks volumes
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A full list of the
awards and honours
won by the Club can
be viewed at

WMART BB ERMBHN A
BIFRRE  THE
http://
corporate.hkjc.com/
corporate/english/
awards-achievements/

index.aspx

Matching its outstanding performance on the business
front, the Club received a total of 88 awards and
recognitions in 2012/13, easily surpassing the previous
record number of 58 achieved the previous year.

Over the years, the Club has been widely recognised
for its unique role in society and contributions to the
community. Therefore this year’s honour of “Employer
Brand to Watch for Corporate Social Responsibility”,
awarded in recognition of the Club’s sustainability
drive, was especially noteworthy.

As one of Hong Kong’s largest employers, the Club
is known for its continuous investment in human
resources and personal development, ranking it
among the Top Ten Most Attractive Employers in the
city. The pivotal Hong Kong Jockey Club College and
training programmes have also been honoured as
leading examples of how organisations can enhance
the quality of the labour market as a whole.

Other accolades added to the trophy cabinet this
past year illustrate the concerted efforts made by

all divisions of the Club’s 24,000-strong team to
consolidate its leadership in the global sporting
entertainment arena. The high level of creativity
demonstrated by the Club’s Customer and

Marketing Division to redefine racing and attract

a new generation of racegoers won the team a
number of prestigious awards. Sharing the spotlight
were the Membership Services and Channels and
Organisational Development teams whose successes
earned them numerous local and overseas honours.
Other divisions also collected their share of top
awards, attesting to their outstanding professionalism.

2012 /July-tH

CONTACT CENTER WORLD

Best Contact Center Design
Gold Medal Award

» Excellent design of Tin Shui Wai
Telebet Centre

Best Use of Self Service
Technology

Silver Award

» Innovative customer-centric
features of Telebet Automatic
Services

Best Technology Innovation
(Internal Solution)

Runner-Up Award

» Simulation Intelligence System in
elevating operator effectiveness
BERF M F0RET

£ %

» F5 8 KK B B RE B oD i) 22 ]
&

BERBRBHEER

A%

» TR TE HERES RA AR S8
R TR

BREAIFME (ABER)

(Pt

» 1 BRI A A S s B R A 7K
R B R B RESR N A P LS R A

THE HONG KONG COUNCIL OF
SOCIAL SERVICE

2012/13 Caring Organisation

» Club’s unceasing efforts to care
for community and fulfil its roles as
a corporate citizen
EEMERTHE

2012/13F E [ AR EAEHAE |

» B e Bt A BB R AE Sy e
R 7R YE

August A H

CAPITAL ENTREPRENEUR
CAPITAL Entrepreneur Green
Enterprise Awards 2012

Green Enterprise Award

» Club’s long-standing support for
green initiatives and excellent
sustainability practices



BAGER
ERMGERZELE012
OERE

» F B 7 Tk B BR AR S BT nT R A
RS

September LA

19TH INTERNATIONAL
CONFERENCE OF RACING
ANALYSTS AND VETERINARIANS

Association of Official Racing
Chemists (AORC) Award

» Dr Terence Wan, Head of Racing
Laboratory

Young Scientist Award
» Dr Jenny Wong, Acting Racing
Chemist

E+NEEFESLRP RRE TS
B ESLERET S (AORC) &S
RER

» {8 B i (R LB )

BENERE
» EFERRI L (BAEEEFALBRAT)

HONG KONG AWARD FOR
ENVIRONMENTAL EXCELLENCE

“Class of Excellence”
Wastewi$e Label

Locations awarded the Wastewi$e
Label for their waste reduction
measures

» Jockey Club Headquarters, Sha Tin

Central Complex, Sha Tin Racecourse,

Happy Valley Racecourse, Happy
Valley Clubhouse, Sha Tin Clubhouse,
Beas River Country Club
EERREMWEE

[ AR R | R R

HERFR 7 B I8 4% T Yo B it ) A

» B - WHE G K - YWH
&3 RIS - ST -
YW H g T - B f R AR g i

October 1A

HONG KONG TOURISM BOARD
Best of the Best Culinary
Awards 2012

Gold with Distinction Award in
Lobster category

» Patrick Lam, Chief Cook of Moon
Koon Restaurant and teammate
Cheung Chi-fung

Silver Award in Reinvented
Classics category

» Ng Kwan, No.1 Stove at Moon
Koon Restaurant and teammate
Yeung Hung-kin

BEBIRBEERR
2012XRZEBAE

[HEMEAH | Bt it

» PRENTRE (LS Hh 55 355 T M 4 )
BB R AR 04

[EHz — HEfG A SRAE
» SR (T B BESSE) BB TR B

THE HONG KONG MANAGEMENT
ASSOCIATION

Award for Excellence in Training
and Development 2012

Gold Prize in Skills Training Category
» Human capital development
programme “Spinning Top in
Service Galaxy” for Off-Course and
On-Course Betting Departments

Outstanding New Trainer Awards
» Takki Chan, Senior People
Development Specialist

» Gloria Kam, Senior People
Development Specialist

EREEEEXBE

2012 BT EEIFIIR

iy Bl AL < 4%

» IS AN B B G B TRt i A
JIEVREE T [ s e

1B 550 Bl 5 48
» BRGIE (R AIEEAE)
» ket (RIAIAIIEAE)

FONTERRA FOODSERVICES
Fonterra Foodservices Pastry
Challenge 2012 Hong Kong
Angliss Media Award in Professional
Chef category

» Adrian Duraffourd, Pastry Chef at
Happy Valley Clubhouse and
teammate Holly Tam

18R 74 2 81 AR 75 50
ERBEXRBBEAE2012
BOERTATAR [ 2245 FEIR € |
» KL (S & BT RE )F
JGT ) B B SRR HE

GERMAN CHEFS ASSOCIATION
IKA Culinary Olympics 2012
Silver in Cold Platters category

Silver in Hot Kitchen category

» Seven-strong Hong Kong Team
including Club chefs Eyck Zimmer
and Tim Chan

BRI ETER 5 1 e
IKABRMIT T ZEEAE2012
TR HRE R A | 4R A%

HGE I AL SR A
» ({6 K5 B 5 il ) K6 4E ~ BRI
T A7 7 Y 5 AL BSG)  BR

SOCIAL WELFARE DEPARTMENT
Award of 10,000 hours for
Volunteer Service

» Club’s contribution of over 10,000
hours of volunteer service to the
community in 2011

HEENES

10,000/ BEF2E TRR %48

» ISR 201 14F EJRK 182 2 10,000

N 2 AL 26 0 T AR

WEB MARKETING ASSOCIATION
Web Marketing Association’s

WebAward 2012 - “Entertainment

Standard of Excellence”
» Internal Sustainability Website

» K5 B 1 ] R AR TN B A
November +—H

THE HONG KONG
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

2012 HKMA Best Annual
Reports Awards

Silver Award in Non-Profit-Making
and Charitable Organisations
category

» 2010/11 HKJC Annual Report
EEEEEXRGE

0125 BB EEEEGBRIEFRE
T 2 I B2 25 B O 1 SR A

» 2010/ 114F £ IS & 4F

TOP TO BOTTOM
HEET
Best of the Best Culinary
Awards 2012
2012ERZRAE
Association of Official
Racing Chemists (AORC)
Award
EIFR BB 1{L B AT 15 & (AORC)
BERER
Young Scientist Award
SFERERE

Award for

Excellence in Training and

Development 2012
2012 F R EE T

WebAward 2012 -

“Entertainment Standard of

Excellence”
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HONG KONG RETAIL MANAGEMENT
ASSOCIATION

2012 Service and Courtesy Awards
Retail (Services) category at
supervisory level

» Alan Chow, Off-Course Betting
Branch Supervisor

Retail (Services) category at junior
front-line level

» Fion Yau, Betting Services Assistant
EETECERE

20124 H AR #% 3%

A (RS AR E A AR S8 TE

» IR (50T 08 5347 £1)

T (55 AL 45 H 4218
» Wesafk (BEFH R

HONG KONG CALL CENTRE
ASSOCIATION

Mystery Caller Assessment
Award 2012

Gold Award

» Club’s Integrated Contact Centre
EEEPPLGE

R FERIK3E2012

i

» R B U s o

MARKETING MAGAZINE

Marketing Excellence Awards 2012
Silver Award in the Excellence in
Mobile Marketing category

» HKJC Hotspot Mobile App

2012HiGHES M AL
TN T 35 4 R AL A SR A
» [ sy | TR

INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY OF
COMMUNICATIONS ARTS AND
SCIENCES/MERCOMM, INC.

Galaxy Awards 2012

Best of Annual Reports

Gold Award in Annual Reports:
Non-Profit Organisations

» 2010/11 HKJC Annual Report

[REFH] €

[ — IR AL AR ) KE A 4 8%
» 2010/114F B J5 & 4F

BEST PRACTICE MANAGEMENT
GROUP

Best Practice Awards 2012
Usability and Simplicity

» ibu (Interactive Best for You), world’s
largest multi-touch entertainment
table interface developed by the Club
REXRBEESE

2012 F RAEXBEBREE

i AL Jeml kA

» [ JG Er R 2 BRI K ) 22 il X
1 4438t ibu

WEN WEI PO

Green China 2012 Environmental
Achievement Awards
Outstanding Sustainability Award —
Organisation

» Club’s achievements in
sustainability

XER

B HE2012 R R A i 88

FE AT R R A 2

» F5 8 A AT R EE R A 5E AR

THE COMMUNITY INVESTMENT AND
INCLUSION FUND

Social Capital Builders Award
» Club’s contributions to supporting
and developing social capital
HEREXZRS
SCBHE&EAE H#&

» Kby Bm i B G SR R AL
EA LR

December +—H

MICHELIN GUIDES

Michelin Guide Hong Kong Macau
2013 listing

» Club’s Moon Koon Restaurant
(RZERER)
CRZEIEREEBIRM2013) N EE
» K5 € i H BE

MARKETING MAGAZINE

Mob-Ex Awards 2012

Silver Prize in Best Location-Based
Marketing category

» HKJC Hotspot Mobile App

2012 F M IBHEREAMAR
[ B AEATE) S (4 B ) 8%
» [ R e s | T

F

TOP TO BOTTOM
AEET
2012 Bridal Awards
FIGESES KE2012
Mob-Ex Awards 2012
2012F WM IBHEE S M AR

2012 Service and Courtesy
Awards

20124 tH AR5 58

Michelin Guide Hong Kong
Macau 2013 listing
CRZEIEmEBIEP2013)
ENEE

GREEN COUNCIL

Hong Kong Green Awards 2012
Green Management (Corporate)
- Gold Award

Corporate Green Governance
Award — Management Systems

» Club’s long-standing commitment to
promoting environmental protection

BRREEG
BB LEKRE012
IR TS () — &8

AR OEREE — EHAR

» &S AW B BR (R

ESDLIFE

2012 Bridal Awards

Best Club Wedding Banquet Award
» Club’s wedding banquet services
at Happy Valley Racecourse
£ES

FISHEE S KE 2012

E NS SN

» F 8 MRS M 16 2 B R AR S RS

CAPITAL CEO

CAPITAL CEO Supreme Brand
Awards 2012

Business Application Innovation Award
» ibu (Interactive Best for You),

the world’s largest multi-touch
entertainment table interface,
developed by the Club

CAPITAL CEO 3E L K E 2012
I FLSERS I8 PRI 7 5 il h 82

» 1S B FEE 2 R OK B9 2 B
PG ibu

VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL (VTC)
VTC 30th Anniversary
Outstanding Sponsor Awards

Strategic Partner Award
» Club’s contributions to
vocational training

B AR
VTC30 A St BE) 5

SO L2
o FG ST SRR HE I TR,



SOCIAL WELFARE DEPARTMENT
Volunteer Service Award 2012
Gold Award for Volunteer Service
(Organisation Category)

» Club’s contribution of over 10,000
hours of volunteer community
service in 2012

Gold Award for Volunteer Service
(Group Category)

» Club’s “OLE Programme”

» Club’s “Hair Cutting Service Team”

Silver Award for Volunteer Service
(Group Category)

» Club’s Regular Service Team for
Home Visits to Sham Shui Po Elderly
Singles

» Club’s Regular Service Team for
Home Visits to Yuen Long Elderly
Singles

Bronze Award for Volunteer Service
(Group Category)

» Club’s Regular Service Team for
“Board Game Land” for Children
HEEFHSZ

2012 F R I RF =M

[ A [ 3605 TAE R ATk

» &R 2012 4F S € 1F
10,000/)MRF 5 LA 19 E ik

Fe T/ [ 3885 TAEF Rk
» B8 [ 277 (28 TR
» Fgr [HE2 36 T/
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» B8 [ TCRAARRI M fe- R e B Rs
41

7 T/NAL [ 3605 TR0 ik |
» g [ R g | e s A

FRIENDS OF THE EARTH (HK)
“Power Smart” 2012
Biggest Unit Saver Award
(Company) Champion

Biggest Charity Saver Certificate
(Company)

» Club’s outstanding achievement in
electricity consumption reduction

Customer
Service
Excellence
Awards 2012
BREERERE
K#2012

FiEihikz &
[FERIEE | BiRELL E 2012
S R (AR

[N | 50 K8E (A FEIAD)
» F5 & 0 40 F 7B 1 it A sk e ik
2013 / February — 4

HONG KONG ASSOCIATION FOR
CUSTOMER SERVICE EXCELLENCE

Customer Service Excellence
Awards 2012

Outstanding Customer Service
Programme Bronze Award

» Cashbet Department Customer
Service Campaign “Brilliant Basics”

Counter Service Category Individual:
— Silver Award

» Alan Yeh, Betting Services Assistant
- Bronze Award

» lvan Leung, Branch Supervisor

EEREBEERGHE
EREEETRBEAE2012
LR IR L ) S 5

» Bl Bl B A A s et
[ AR HEAE |

ek A RIS
_ g

o BERR R (BEESREB)
o

o PRl (BLEEHESH T AT

March =H

INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY OF
COMMUNICATIONS ARTS AND
SCIENCES/MERCOMM, INC.

Mercury Excellence Awards
2012/13

Silver Award, Cover Design:
Abstract/Graphics

» 2011/12 HKJC Annual Report

2012/134EFE Mercury 13 &5 A 28
T AR A%
» 2011/124F B G & 4E 4

TOP TO BOTTOM
HEET

CAPITAL Honor Grand
Award for Distinguished
Marketing Strategies

BAGHTISRBIKBRE

Sing Tao Excellent Services
Brand Awards 2012

B IR 2012

Astrid Awards 2013
2013F EAstrid b ¥R T8

)

?.

CAPITAL MAGAZINE

CAPITAL Honor Grand Award for
Distinguished Marketing
Strategies

» Club’s dedication to rejuvenating
horse racing by attracting a new
generation of racegoers to a sport
that is often seen as being for
older customers

BEAGHTSRBREBRR

» RS ETEME R RS BN EA
MR WABFRERES > s
TR Iy FE G ¥ L B

THE HONG KONG COUNCIL OF
SOCIAL SERVICE

2013/14 Caring Organisation

» Club’s unceasing efforts to care
for community and fulfil its roles as
a corporate citizen
EEMERTHE

2013/14FE [ [F/0NE RS IE#AE |

» B G Bt e R BB A S R
RAZRYE

SING TAO DAILY

Sing Tao Excellent Services
Brand Awards 2012

Outstanding Charity Award

» Club’s contributions to community

EBEHRK

E BRI miEEE2012
HEAL I 2

» B Er A g i =Rk

April gj

INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY OF
COMMUNICATIONS ARTS AND
SCIENCES/MERCOMM, INC.

Astrid Awards 2013
Excellence in Design Honors — Covers
» 2011/12 HKJC Annual Report

20134F £ Astrid %38 5188
ESNIE a5
» 2011/124F 4 55 & 4F
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Awards & Honours / sz

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNMENT
CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER

Hong Kong ICT Awards 2013
Best Lifestyle (Social, Communications
& Media) Bronze Award

» ibu (Interactive Best for You),
world’s largest multi-touch
entertainment table interface,
developed by the Club

BT E A BB A E

2013E &M RBMA R

SR ARZETERE M (hE2E - ML 180) B2
» RS B P B R Bk ImOR (14 2 B Al 2
IR G4 ibu

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNMENT
CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER AND
THE EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES
COMMISSION

Web Accessibility Recognition
Scheme

Silver Award

» Adoption of web accessibility
design in hkjc.com
BREMR AR AZERTSE
KEZEg

EERPEETE

Eii3

» 6B SCRPE R A B R T

RANDSTAD

Randstad Award 2013

Employer Brand to Watch for
Corporate Social Responsibility

» Club’s long-standing commitment
to charity

Top Ten Most Attractive Employers
» Club’s strong employer branding

20134 Randstad % K 88
Fk i B BT A2
» & 2R TR 41T HAT Ay

TR AR 1R £
» B @ IE WA E B &

TOP TO BOTTOM
BHEET
Hang Seng Bank 80th
Anniversary
Long-Term Business Partner
Award

BEENTBAFRASEBHARE

Hong Kong ICT Awards 2013
2013F B & K BAEHHE 2

2013 CorpU Learning
Excellence and
Innovation Awards

2013 CorpU= %3/ 2 £l 2&

Randstad Award 2013
20134 Randstad % K #2

May HH

HANG SENG BANK

Hang Seng Bank 80th Anniversary
Long-Term Business Partner Award
» Close working partnership of the
two organisations which dates back
some 14 years

154 SR1T

BEENTEF

RIAE 1R R 8E

» Bt G L 142 RATIB 1
B 1R

CORPORATE UNIVERSITY XCHANGE
2013 CorpU Learning Excellence
and Innovation Awards

Award of Excellence (Launching)

Best Practice Award (Alliances)

» HKJC College and its 24
recognised training programmes
under Government’s Qualifications
Framework

2013 CorpU = #i3% 3| 5 £l 37 82
S EHC IR IED N

R o B R

» s 7RG B B e BB T 240 B
LA R AT AR

SOCIAL WELFARE DEPARTMENT
Award for 2012-13 HK Citizen -
HK Heart Volunteer Campaign
» Club’s volunteer team for
completing 2012-13 HK Citizen -
HK Heart Volunteer Campaign
HEEMNE

2012-13(EEA - BEL) BT KE
TENE AR

» B8 2 LK 2 B 5E A12012-13
(RN - FHBL) 2] TRMFT

15TH INTERNATIONAL EXHIBITION
OF FOOD & DRINK, HOTEL,
RESTAURANT & FOODSERVICE
EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & SERVICES

Hong Kong International Culinary
Classic 2013

Chinese Cuisine — Creative
Appetiser Gold Award

» Daniel Cheung Long-yin
(Executive Sous Chef of Chinese
Cuisine, Racecourse Catering)

» Li Zhen-long (No.2 Cook of
The Gallop)

Chinese Cuisine — Organic Whole
Chicken Leg Gold Award

» Lai Ka-wing (No.3 Cook of

The Gallop)

Chinese Cuisine — Organic Whole
Chicken Leg Silver Award

» Yung Man-hoi (No.1 Stove of
Qi Suen)

Chinese Cuisine — Organic Whole
Chicken Leg Bronze Award

» Ng Kwan (No.1 Stove of Moon
Koon Restaurant)

The Gourmet Team Challenge
Bronze Award

» Club Chefs Team: Eyck Zimmer
(Chef de Cuisine of Derby
Restaurant); Tim Chan (Sous Chef of
Happy Valley Clubhouse);

Chan Sze-ling (Junior Sous Chef of
Racecourse Catering); Jack Chung
(No.2 Cook of Centurion Restaurant);
Chan Hon-cho (Chef de Partie of
Derby Restaurant); Hung Ming-chung
(No.1 Patissier of Derby Restaurant)
F+REERR R R - EE
BBRENHE HERRBREE
2013 FRBEBRERAE

AR — RIS 5

» SRIRAR (J535 rh e 22 BETE )

» ZIRNE (G 46ME — KRBT ET)

R — AR A e 4
» BEGRGE (G SEME =R GH )

R — AR A LR A%
» 57 it (SLHEREEHEE)
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KERT) - BRBOE (3RS Hbdy B 3221
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JE— AR BT



2003 Asin Pacific CHE Awards Ceremony

Asia Pacific
Customer
Relationship
Excellence
Awards 2013
TmABHEEEER
AR#% #2013

INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MEDIA
International Property Awards
2013-2014

Best Leisure Interior Award (5 Star)
- Hong Kong

Best Leisure Interior Award — ASIA
PACIFIC

» Outstanding design and execution
of Sha Tin Racecourse Owners Box
on 3/F (OB3)

Leisure Architecture Award (Highly
Commended) — People’s Republic
of China

» Excellent design and presentation
of The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Beijing Clubhouse

TR T A (R A SR N
CHPNTE e NLikeE S @i

» RGP B IE TR =M
R

i I [ R[] 2 A A 7
» RGES G RGP O 8T

U-MAGAZINE

U Green Award

Excellence of Environmental
Contributions

» Club’s contributions to the
environment

U- @7

8] B EEERs

B Rk E R R

» J 8 3 BRI (R 1Y L 8RR

June xH

CARBON CARE ASIA AND
BLOOMBERG

Carbon Care Label Awards
» Adoption of green practices
throughout its operations

R EA Lk
EHBIEER
» RER R B BRI S

ASIA PACIFIC CUSTOMER SERVICE
CONSORTIUM

Asia Pacific Customer
Relationship Excellence
Awards 2013

Contact Centre of the Year
(Corporate Category)
(Entertainment — Under 500 Seats)
» Tsing Yi Telebet Centre

Customer Service Manager of the
Year 2012 (Entertainment — Contact
Centre)

» Vincent Hui Wing Tung, Telebet
Support Manager

Customer Service Team Leader of
the Year 2012 (Entertainment —
Contact Centre)

» Derek Wong Man Wai, Telebet
Officer

Customer Service Professional of
the Year 2012 (Entertainment —
Contact Centre)

» Yoki Ngan Wai Yau, Telebet
Services Assistant

Merit — Customer Service Manager
of the Year 2012 (Contact Centre)

» Sandra Chan Yuk Chu, Telebet
Support Manager

Merit — Customer Service Team
Leader of the Year 2012 (Contact
Centre)

» |ris Lam Chau Ying, Telebet Officer
» Brian Leung Wai Kei, Telebet
Officer

Merit — Customer Service Team
Professional of the Year 2012
(Contact Centre)

» Eric Lau Ho Tai, Telebet Services
Assistant

» Michael Chan Wai Yip, Telebet
Services Assistant

DAREERGHE

IR HEERERRISE2013
AER P A% O (24
(43 — 500 2L )

» B A BRI L

2012 4F- {5k i i 5 IR 5 A28 311
(B BrE L — R4gesg)
» FFK R (BB A

20124t B A IR G AL
(BB L — RYeE)
» T EfE (BREHE T

20124F-4 B & IR B B 3E A B
(% W A5 e — IR 4AE)
» BEAFAR (58 Al 15 T e s B 22

2012 4F- {5 1 B %5 IR A8 11
(B L) — pEiE A
» BREZR (BEERTEFH A

20124 H A RS AL =
(PR h0) — B AE
» MBK4E (FEEEBE F1T)
» BAEFL (BEEHEET)

2012 FF A IR HENE
(BB L) — R

» BIEER (ARG IR S Bh3E )
» BRfREZE (B RGH IR TS B3 )

THE COMMUNITY CHEST
Charity Partner Award

Award of Merit

» The Club for its strong support to
The Community Chest over the past
few decades

EELTEE

BEBHRER

DNEEFETHR

» [ B 2 AU At S B
July tH

23RD TAIPEI INTERNATIONAL FOOD
SHOW

United Tastes of America - Asian
Chef Challenge

Grand Champion Prize

» Eyck Zimmer, Chef de Cuisine of
Derby Restaurant

» Sing Lau, Chef de Partie of Derby
Restaurant

E2EAILERRARES
[ ERE 2k — SN ETE 3 |
IR

» ARG HE (Tt AR B 8
» BIEE (FTHLAHE L)

ASIA PACIFIC
PROPERTY
AWARDS

INTERIOR DESIGM

il il pirmss

virdin
aflanhic

2013-2014

TOP TO BOTTOM
AEET
International Property
Awards 2013-2014
The Community Chest
Charity Partner Award
BEBARE
REBMHRE
Carbon Care Label Awards
R EARIRER
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Donations, «unx«

A NEW
RECORD

RURTAC 8%

HK$M

1,950

Charitable Donations
BEBTEZEX

+12.8%

Increase in Donations
EER

160

Charities and
Community Projects
ZEMHEEER

12/13

11712

10711

09/10

08/09

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust charitable and

community donations (HK$M)

THEREAERNESNEELHRN (FHET)

(I) 4(|)0 8(|)O
491 261
491 210

321

1,2|00 l,GIOO 2,?00

760 426

819 | 89

|

385 492

322 398

122 385 194

481 157

5971 §1

— — — —
Community services Education and training Sports, recreation Medical and health
e R HEREA and culture Bes

BE - RERXL
FEEBTREEETESAME T4 The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust has donated

BRI RN T =T BT
BRBAEEE > RGBT
81 25 3 P L B MR AT IR B T > K
Bt @ & B RG o 4 ki 25 1 K i
AR - BB I R A A
b ZO—=/ —=4 > Bl
oS R R SRR e K S ks b
BIE T IE I T # T > B RAE Y
e sz Tt
I8 26 3% B Ak I JH > 5 A RS
E-AaRLE-TTXRH-

an average of more than HK$1.3 billion to the community
every year over the past decade by way of its own major
initiatives and donations, supporting the projects of over
100 charitable groups and organisations each year.
These encompass four major areas, namely Community
Services, Education and Training, Medical and Health,
and Sports, Recreation and Culture. In 2012/13, the total
approved charitable donations were close to HK$1,950
million, an increase of 12.8% over the previous year.

The approved donations will benefit 160 charities and
community projects, as detailed on pages 107 to 116.



Community Services i &}

8E(FHET)
Amount
i/ ik Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
EESESENES Jockey Club Emergency Relief Fund
A ST To provide assistance to:
TETE (5 S B i Sl = SRS R 1 R the victim families of a vessel collision off Lamma Island 3,200
B PRI KGR R B B s N LR % the victim families of an industrial accident on the artificial island being built off Chek 250
AR —oF LRI G E K Lap Kok for the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge
TE RN 2 K 5 325 B K e the victim families of a fire in the stilt houses in Tai O 240
TE G s — o AR R S SO S A R R the victim families of an out-of-control bus crash in Shau Kei Wan 150
TEAF R — BB AE T AR B the family of the deceased worker in a construction accident at Tseung Kwan O 100
S R A2 A T T 3 A IR S5 ) T e two sisters who faced financial hardship due to the death of their parents 100
— 4 TR AL P T T S A58 O R 45 1 /N B a little boy who faced financial hardship due to the death of his parents 100
— % b AN IS T BB a student of the Hong Kong Institute of Education who suffered a bike accident 100
TE LA f2 2R o ) 4 TR K the family of an electrician who died in his workplace 100
TE— RSB A P AR 1 E R B the family of a taxi driver who died in a traffic accident 100
TEVLVE — R3S B A P BEAG s N 1) R )& the victim family of a traffic accident in Jiangxi 100
— A b H LA i A [ ] O B CSE B R the family of a tourist guide who died in an accident while leading a tour in Turkey 100
— B EIRBREEIE Y P T AR B the family of a part-time overnight shift worker who passed away suddenly 100
A LA A ) 18 A £ T W) A ) 5 the family of a truck driver who died in his workplace 100
TR A XS T ANEE the family of a delivery worker who died in his workplace 100
TER AT — R 3@ RS rh i 2 B L R R B the victim family of a bus driver who died in a fatal traffic accident in Aberdeen 100
—ZEWEEENZEE the family of a deceased security guard 60
R] G~ il 7 T 3 48 97 R 45 1) % i a family who faced financial hardship due to the death of their son 50
TEi b R G B 0 Lot — 3@ A A h R g+ F M the family of a taxi driver who died in a traffic accident at Disneyland 50
1R %
TE A 30 [ 582 A 0 A 1) 0 the family of a baker who died in his workplace 50
TE LA R A B B AN A B T ARG the family of a cleansing worker who died in a traffic accident while at work 20
KA AR 2 FEE R E the victim family of a murder in Tai Kok Tsui 15
BERHE Caritas - Hong Kong 142,470
T B % R 1) SR IR Th e T B To fund the redevelopment of its Social Centre in Tsuen Wan
REZERBHS Senior Citizen Home Safety Association 69,090
18 B % & ) SCH B IR o AT RS TR X EE  To fund the renovation and equipping of a new service centre in Ho Man Tin
B
HEBHEES New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association 34,050
68 Bl % € 9 v R 1 7 o o it X A b To fund the enhancement of facilities and equipment of its Tuen Mun Long Stay
Care Home

RBEBE Home Affairs Bureau 22,300
= O0—=/—MEEHF PEEHH To fund the 2013/14 Youth Programme
DEREEHE St James’ Settlement 19,690
B R% € 2 ROLRE R 32 (i IR g5 To fund its Central Kitchen in East Kowloon to provide hot meal service
EEg Hong Chi Association 18,820

IF B RZ B A SR R AT R Mgt e AR - Mt B
A — T & AR O T T AT PR 52

To fund the improvement and development works at the Pinehill Village and conduct
feasibility study for the construction of a residential and training complex
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Donations/ «wmmx

SEB(FHT)
Amount
HiE/ Bis Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
NEREESERAT Bo Charity Foundation Limited 18,550
BENHE TEEa | e mlstH > BEARIEILE  To fund its Food Angel Programme to provide hot meal services for the
T i) 55 S L AR SR B R S underprivileged residing in West Kowloon and the New Territories
EBKRE (THRELSEE) The University of Hong Kong (HKSAR Chief Executive’s Community 14,620
BB TR B w2 55 M e H A7 450 ] #F%%  Projects List)
THH To fund a study on Determinants of Poverty and Potential Interventions to Alleviate
Poverty in Hong Kong

memEeE The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council 13,950
18 B 7 25 T 1O 4 B BRI IR S Bl % 5% )2 To fund the enhancement of facilities and equipment at its Integrated Rehabilitation
S Services Centre in Kwai Chung
EFEEER Jockey Club Centre for Positive Ageing 9,810
B EEAT RIS LR - DA A IR i To fund the renovation of the Centre for service expansion
EBRPARES Hong Kong Blind Union 7,950
TR T2 AN 518 > A= To fund its “E-learning for All” project for three years
ERERRHERBEHTHES Kwai Tsing Safe Community and Healthy City Association 7,760
1% G T QR AT P TS T2 - &) To fund the renovation of its QK Blog’s service centre and to support its operating
H= gt costs for three years
EARAERERS Hong Kong Alzheimer’s Disease Association 5,550
HH BN O R E AL D EFT RIS T - #8  To fund the renovation, upgrading of facilities and procurement of a rehabilitation van
b Rkt K i . — W AR e/ 2 for its Brain Health Centre in Wong Tai Sin
HERBHERES New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association 4,800
TRENE [ R B2 | 5l B =45 To fund its “Shining H.O.PE.S. for Family Wellness” project for three years
ERHESEHS St James’ Settlement 4,290
18 B % & 5 KK [ 55 555 45 B I E) S RUE I A To fund the Animation Training Programme for underprivileged young people in
o B =4E Tin Shui Wai for three years
BERLBPAGES Hong Kong Blind Union 4,280
T Bl aZ & 57 A B 2R S 1 LA T A T AR To fund the renovation of its centre in Tsui Ping Estate, Kwun Tong
FREHS New Home Association 4,200
e KK BH BRI ROFIREEEIT#  To fund the renovation of its service centre for new arrivals in Tin Shui Wai
BT
EEMESEE Hong Kong Air Cadet Corps 3,600
18 % B A S R AL 1L N AR AT i D 4EBTAE S To fund a Youth Anti-Adversity Project at its new Ha Fa Shan Campsite in Tsuen Wan
RTE > R =4 for three years
BEBNEHRY The Boys’ & Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong 2,890
BB T —H AWM AN RE L E DEAGE To fund a two-year Trauma Treatment Service Programme for children and youth
SRR w1
RER Po Leung Kuk 2,310
8 B RS ) o B A MR B SRR To fund the setting-up of the Mobile Toy Library and its operating costs for three years
ERASEYNBEEBHSRBHRL SKH St Joseph’s Church & Social Centre 2,180

15 Bl aZ € £ 70 B 86 H D SO s N R A T — JH 2
RGN

To fund a two-year project for ethnic minorities in Kam Tin, Yuen Long




SBE(TET)

Amount
i/ ik Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
ERERILE Hong Kong Rehabilitation Power 2,050
18 B % & 10 56 IR G IR 0 i3 R DL R To fund the upgrading of facilities in its tele-service training centres and the
— i = AR R A replacement of a 13-seater rehabilitation bus
BEBARE The University of Hong Kong 1,480
BN R B ELA B AR B B S I E F W ST Y45+ To fund its co-hosting with the Social Welfare Department of the 10th International
Ji S B {57 I 5 Conference on Grief and Bereavement in Contemporary Society in Hong Kong
EEeRESREHE The ABM Hong Kong Swatow Baptist Church Community Service 1,180
MBI G HEAT AW =R DEWIE] - K @5t Association
# o RE DR To fund its youth development “ELITE — HKJC Project” for three years
BEE Roads 1,120
18 B aZ% S AT R KK B S # » J A  4F To fund a two-year programme to promote Laughter Yoga to the elderly
RE=Pr Tung Wah Group of Hospitals 936
THEhRZ & L [ Frm bl | — FWEE ekEH  To fund its “i-Run” — Hong Kong Jockey Club Special Marathon 2013
2013
BiERBS Kwun Tong Resident Association 837
16 B % & (0 0 2R BE AL IR 1Y oL AT 2 TR To fund the renovation of its centre in Tsui Ping (North) Estate, Kwun Tong
FRZHNESE Foundation Theodora 792
18 B2 e = B B BE AT B I = 4E /-8 2E 58 To fund the Clown Doctors Programme in three hospitals for three years
EREEREEE Young Men’s Christian Association of Hong Kong 450
HRBhZ & 0 R R B AT A ) gL & 7 To fund the “Youth Development Programme via Community Services and Sports”
KSR Al in Sichuan
Hong Kong Integrated Nepalese Society Hong Kong Integrated Nepalese Society 418
8 Bl aZ € (S T e L Y o DT B T AR To fund the renovation of its Community Centre in Yau Ma Tei
THEEZERESN_O—=/ —HFENESRTSHRETEIRK
The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant from the Trust for 2013/14

SEB(FHET)

Amount
Hets/ AR Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
BEREEHE The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups 3,580
18 B AR 26 T4 To fund its Youth Volunteer Network
BEBEGE SAHK 3,546
By A R A A IR B To fund its Comprehensive Rehabilitation Seating Service
EREEHE St James’ Settlement 3,531
B TRCERIAT | gt st # To fund its Employment and Training Programme for Vulnerable Groups and Youngsters
BRAERE Mother’s Choice Limited 3,088
8 B R W 2 R s To fund its Pregnant Girls Services
BERELENE Hong Kong Playground Association 2,748
B T B4 | G To fund its Unusual Academy
BB ERRE The Boys’ and Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong 2,671

R B B R AT — G S A L

To fund its Hand-in-hand Child-focused Counselling Project for Special Needs Children
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SR(FHT)
Amount
HiE/ Bis Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
BERAYERHESE The Hong Kong Catholic Marriage Advisory Council 2,500
8 Bt EL A 0 8 g s - 31 To fund its Marriage Mediation Counselling Service Project
RE=[R Tung Wah Group of Hospitals 2,480
16 B By i AR s To fund its Parent-Child Interaction Therapy Service
EE® Hong Chi Association 2,332
HOHEEgtgti To fund its Supported-employment Projects for people with intellectual disabilities
B Adventure-Ship Limited 2,103
RN bR A A A R To fund its Nautical Adventure Life Education Project
it E The Salvation Army 2,082
BEH [BXR - KB | FKERAH To fund its Family-friendly Community Based Project
MEZR Harmony House Limited 1,991
TR B [ B 28 100 A1 ) w5t To fund its Moving Forward Against Domestic Violence Project
EBA+ZFES Hong Kong Red Cross 1,840
T Bt L v R I Sty % I 4 To fund its Uniformed Group Leaders & Trainers Development Project
EHBEERLT Suicide Prevention Services Limited 1,780
RENE AT — ANR R H RS To fund its Outreaching Befriending Service for Suicidal Elderly
EREAHES The Hong Kong Society for the Blind 1,635
6 B AR 5 28 5 = U v L To fund its Parent Resource Centre for Visually Impaired Children
EREEHRBE Hong Kong Christian Service 1,622
T8 BhE: [ K A4 | w1 To fund its Integrated Service Centre for Local South Asians
LDHEEARBER Ebenezer School and Home for the Visually Impaired 1,487
18 B A B 4 SE 8 B S A I To fund its Early Intervention Programme for Visually Impaired Children
HEE Heep Hong Society 1,338
165 Bl L B e 22 3 A A S 1B AR To fund its Outside School Support for Students with Special Education Needs and
their families

EBRIERER Agency for Volunteer Service 1,328
HH BN A 25 T 405t S To fund its Volunteer Talent Bank Project
2 TREATS 1,300
5 B H G B K i D AR S R B e BB TR To fund its Integrated Project for Children and Youth in Hong Kong
EBRNIRETESS The Outward Bound Trust of Hong Kong Limited 1,282
B THeEA | Fhs To fund its Second Chance Project
ERLEEHRE The Hong Kong Girl Guides Association 1,280
18 Bl L 4 1% A 7 B A T S To fund its Comprehensive Development for Golden Guides Project
BHBERERRESY Parents’ Association of Pre-School Handicapped Children 1,255
BN [/ EE - el - 7 A 5t To fund its HOPE — Parents’ Networking Project
HEBYEBEZSLIRIE Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong 1,240
6 1 L2 i A 1 A To fund its Kwai Chung Care Network
ITRREESEEIFHE Association for Engineering and Medical Volunteer Services 1,207

35 B S S AR R 0 R

To fund its Computer Rehabilitation Resource Station




SBE(TET)

Amount
i/ ik Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
BEEIRESHEEERIE Visits to Club Premises 1,200
R R AL BB 285 - Ef K% To cover the costs of summer visits by the elderly and the disabled to the Racecourse,
i £21 F  P AI ER AR DA K FE G BV I MN A ATk Tuen Mun and Lei Yue Mun Public Riding Schools and The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau
Bk Public Golf Course
China Coast Community Ltd China Coast Community Ltd 1,119
B A A e R R (4548) 2B A &BiEH  To fund its Subsidy Package for Comprehensive Social Security Allowance recipients
BEFEARME The Friends of Scouting 1,113
FREDHRN [/ | BAR — 1R B fr 36 15 AR 28 - ) To fund its Know the Future — Non-engaged Youth Counselling Scheme
EREAEENHE Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council 1,064
HPHTEES ] — REEMAEH To fund its Positive Life Elderly Suicide Prevention Project
FriEEERESERATF Against Child Abuse Ltd 1,053
B HA: 2 AR e R vyt To fund its Healthy Start Home Visiting Project
BAGERFEEHEFL Holy Carpenter Church Community Centre 1,037
6 B FLRE I A [ 4 A T To fund its Human Re-engineering Project for Building a Better Community
HEBYBEEHS Haven of Hope Christian Service 1,025
TR A AR Al To fund its Holistic Care through Inter-disciplinary Collaboration
EERERMNE Hong Kong Family Welfare Society 1,013
8 B LA Lo Bl K st To fund its Bridge to Competence Project
EARBAEREERS The Samaritan Befrienders Hong Kong 902
BB I B AR w To fund its Suicide Prevention Education Project
BAE The Comfort Care Concern Group 900
By AT 4% Jre i T ) To fund its Comfort Care and Support for the Bereaved
EELYRERBEH O Christian Family Service Centre 890
6 B H B koo 1% 51 To fund its Youngsters in Motion Project
REE Fu Hong Society 860
15 B R R 51 2 To fund its Casa Famiglia — small group home project
EREREEREL International Social Service, (Hong Kong Branch) 800
B [TGILRAT ] — S A Rz wt & To fund its Support Project for Families with Young Kids
ZEEEERAT Hans Andersen Club Limited 798
HE B TR 6T AT 4 R | 5t To fund its Sunshine Community in Tai O
ERRERER Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children 793
B TR ~ B~ B G EERE ] (1) To fund its Whole Learning Project (Phase l)
EEEEM Chung Sing Benevolent Society 674
B TG A | 45 B0 5l To fund its Elderly Lifelong Learning Project
EFERNBESETEFL Jockey Club Cheung Chau Don Bosco Youth Centre 605
By H 7 R R il 2 ) To fund its Adventure-based Counselling Programme for Youth
EREREAENEG The Hong Kong Society for the Aged 585
8 B [ =38 (BT R AR s 1 31 To fund its Insomnia Treatment Project for the Elderly
ERERGAERS Hong Kong Down Syndrome Association 581

T5 B (A S = | i (R SR RS

To fund its SHARE Project — A comprehensive support service for families of children
with Down Syndrome
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SEB(FHET)
Amount
Hets/ g Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
EEE NS Pneumoconiosis Mutual Aid Association 568
T8 Bl EL Ak s A5 L A R AR A To fund its Community Rehabilitation Service for Pneumoconiosis Patients and their families
ERARETEREES The Family Planning Association of Hong Kong 528
8 B AL [ 2 S To fund its Community Level Sex Education Programme
EREBNES Street Sleepers’ Shelter Society Trustees Incorporated 350
BB TS 2K To fund its Wanchai Homeless People Shelter
/NEE (RE g IRES ) 497,412
Sub-total (Community Services)
Education and Training ## K3
SEB(FHET)
Amount
s/ ik Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
1E A B ERR Hang Seng Management College 200,000
B 5% 5 Bt 5 /N U RS ] 7 L e B A A < KA To fund the Student Hostel Complex in its campus in Siu Lek Yuen
EBRREAREREBESAE The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and the Hong Kong 33,050
6 B TR BB A M B A A R A S disE Baptist University
#H To fund the construction of their Joint Student Hostel at Tseung Kwan O
ERYEER (THRREH2EEEE) The Hong Kong Institute of Education (HKSAR Chief Executive’s Community 10,500
HE B TR b 2 — S A 2 Rl 26 B | 5t Projects List)
To fund its “I Learn — Catering for Students’ Individual Diversity” Project
FESEESERERAR Journalism Education Foundation Hong Kong Limited 7,870
8 B 7 051 18 -1 7 T ST A o 0T ) I A A9 254 To fund preparatory works to establish the Hong Kong News-Expo at the Bridges
TAE Street Market
EFERERUEFLERLT Hong Kong Institute of Contemporary Culture Limited 5,680
HUEE S [RAIAR | B0 —=4K%_0—P To fund the Jockey Club Make a Difference School in 2013 and 2014
AR AR
EREEEEESER Hong Kong College of Technology 1,500
5 B o% B2 e 7y ) B2 - B B RIS B BR RS > A3 To fund its Work-integrated Learning Project for sub-degree students for two years
W4
BB Yan Chai Hospital 1,380
REEAT T R REF @R - A=4  To fund its Yan Chai Moral and Civic Education Award Scheme for three years
BERABEMRESERAA The Hong Kong Policy Research Foundation Limited 970
IR O — AR R ik g To fund the 2012 Social Enterprise Summit
EREBEYHEGSMEBNE Hong Kong Taoist Association Shun Yeung Primary School 878
6 By 5% A 46 R S R it To fund the replacement of computer facilities at the school
EJ:R Adventure-Ship Limited 540
8 B 16 6 0k 20k WA OB Y MR Y FE SRR 2E 42 To fund the installation of inflatable life rafts with evacuation slide system on the
F i Jockey Club Huan
HEXTH /B Lok Wah Catholic Primary School 370

I8 B2 A B AT B G R a o  — 2 iR =

To fund the conversion of its open-space canteen into a multi-purpose room




THIRBEZERESN_O—=/ —NFENEERSSHER A RIEK
The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant from the Trust for 2013/14

SE(FHEL)
Amount
i/ R Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
EREEEFH Hong Kong Sea Cadet Corps 1,840
BB HAZ LRI B) To fund its Core Training Programmes
BRI RRERA T AFS Intercultural Exchanges Limited 1,128
8y H AFS B B3 SCAb 3 i g A1 28 T w - To fund the AFS Intercultural Exchanges Sending Programme
SRR B REEE Life Education Activity Programme 472
B HAF IR B AR To fund its Special Needs Programme
REMNEERATHE Direction Association for the Handicapped 383
TRBNE [ A 22~ R WAl 513 To fund its Hopeful Life Project
ANat (BE K5 266,561
Sub-total (Education and Training)
Medical and Health 54
SE(FHT)
Amount
i/ ik Organisation / Purpose (HK$°000)
BREER Hospital Authority 253,280
TH S 7 B I 22 S A IR L R 8 S E B R > #5LL To fund the installation of ceiling hoists and electrically-operated beds in public
FRTHI A0Y SO hospitals to enhance the overall physical and psychological well-being of patients
EEBEERER Hong Kong Academy of Medicine 53,530
1H B BB sk o AR I S @ A B AL B il To fund the establishment of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Innovative Learning Centre
for Medicine
RE=IREAIER ((THRRELSEEE]) TWGHSs Wong Tai Sin Hospital (HKSAR Chief Executive’s Community 29,020
8 B a% e s Sz 18 i B e b0 Projects List)
To fund the establishment of a Rehabilitation Medical Centre
BREER ((THREL2EBEE) Hospital Authority (HKSAR Chief Executive’s Community Projects List) 25,400
By HAg B s AN S v it To fund the Enhanced Home Renal Replacement Therapy Programme
ERBLERFERS The Hong Kong Tuberculosis, Chest & Heart Diseases Association 20,000
BRSO S B B R I i AR RO A R A To fund the purchase of a bi-plane cardiovascular system for the Ruttonjee and Tang
Shiu Kin Hospitals
FEHKE The Chinese University of Hong Kong 15,890
8 B AT — TE A 3 A ) R I TR M et ) - To fund a five-year cancer prevention and screening programme to combat the rising
LT it 7 s K i A8 L 2 4 1) B threat of bowel cancer in Hong Kong
EEIER ((THRRELSEEE) Princess Margaret Hospital (HKSAR Chief Executive’s Community 11,520
8 Bl % e HE A T 40 i 2 2 s i LR Projects List)
To fund the improvement of barrier-free access facilities at the hospital
BEBPIKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong 10,450

T BARZ R B 7S T S0 B 5 AR Y A 1 R
W T

To fund the setting-up of an Integrative Medical Clinic in the Prince of Wales Hospital
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THIMBEZETESN_O—=/ —NFENTERE LR AT RIEK
The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant from the Trust for 2013/14

SR(FHT)
Amount
s/ Rig Organisation / Purpose (HK$°000)
EEBHEHESIITELERS United Christian Nethersole Community Health Service 3,513
5 Bl AL = R (w31 To fund its Community Geriatric Health Maintenance Programme
BEREEY The Society of Rehabilitation and Crime Prevention, Hong Kong 1,490
6 B LAk o T 1 To fund its Project OASIS
ERRSE The Society for the Aid and Rehabilitation of Drug Abusers 1,260
T I3 L [ 2 2 T L R To fund its Peer Counsellor and Internship Schemes
BEBIAREDLERAR Hong Kong Workers’ Health Centre Limited 352
8 B TR B o S (e R 00 | R ) To fund its Occupational Health Promotion for Display Screen Equipment Users
NS E ) 425,705
Sub-total (Medical and Health)
Sports, Recreation and Culture # - B4 %3k
SE(FHT)
Amount
s/ ik Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
EARAERRERECRESTET S Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives
1H B R B A AR B AL st 8 — S HE K To fund the Central Police Station Compound Conservation and Revitalisation Project 300,000
— fifth tranche allocation
Ol T A O M [ L SRt AT R AT RS To carry out a feasibility study on the proposed facilities and master plan for the 20,000
P& k] landfill site at Tseung Kwan O
EESEEMNARSHERREERAT The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited 103,820
6 B TE T VG P B R T R BRERA — B K To fund the construction of a Golf Academy at Kau Sai Chau — second tranche
allocation
EHEEEER Hong Kong Sports Institute 103,200
TEBIRZ R NG B A ) B 1 & e £ f%% To fund the conversion of the old athletes’ hostel into a multi-purpose training and
i TR R L coaching centre
ERERLEHS Hong Kong Playground Association 43,610
HETE T B DAL R P AN g Supplementary grant for the redevelopment of the Silvermine Bay Outdoor Recreation
Camp
RESHKEAE Home Affairs Department 40,000
8 B k3 KAl v [ g TR o 9 AL [ e To fund the enhancement and revitalisation of two community facilities identified in
Sha Tin District
RER Po Leung Kuk 30,090
HFEAR A DA L RS Supplementary grant for the redevelopment of the Pak Tam Chung Holiday Camp
ERAP  SEEMREM A RRITER Lei Yue Mun, Pokfulam and Tuen Mun Public Riding Schools 17,730

BEH = O—=/— UM AL

To fund their net operating deficits in 2013/14




SRE(TET)

Amount
Mg/ g Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
BERGRERHS Riding for the Disabled Association Limited 16,480
18 BhaZ & AT Pk o RS it B A K s PN RS AT 2 To fund its Rehabilitation Riding Programmes, and the Para-Equestrian Squad
RHIE R SRR T8 > & B G @ B iipkst# > &  Programme at the Pokfulam and Tuen Mun Public Riding Schools for three years
=45
BRERLBHE Leisure and Cultural Services Department 15,430
BERZEN O — SRS =IE R 4t #  To fund three Exhibitions/Education programmes in Hong Kong in 2013: “The
Al TERAWIE - RRAREKRGEHCHE] - Wonders of Ancient Mesopotamia”, “The Splendours of Royal Costume: Qing Court
[EREATE — WA E R | T [ %l o Hiqy Attire” and “Andy Warhol: 15 Minutes Eternal”
43 S Ak A
ERLEENE (THRRELSEBGHE) Hong Kong Adventure Corps (HKSAR Chief Executive’s Community 14,160
HHHE LB SRS & S I Projects List)

Supplementary grant for the renovation of the Hong Kong Jockey Club High Island
Training Camp

EREMBHEERAR Hong Kong Arts Festival Society Ltd 11,150
B O~ ANEFEBUEN [FEEEGEHA  To fund The Jockey Club Series for the 2016 Hong Kong Arts Festival; to support “The
Bl 15 B O —VUAEF B 0 [ FHEE®  HKJC Student Matinee” Programme and a local creative programme “The HKJC
BB | KA BAMAIEE H [20144F#  Contemporary Dance Series 2014” for the 2014 Hong Kong Arts Festival
EETHERERET6 K5
EBERHE The Hong Kong Philharmonic Society Limited 6,390
[ H 905 | BERH > B =4 To fund the “Keys to Music” Education Programme for three years
EBISALEER A E Association Culturelle France - Hong Kong Limited 6,000
Bl = O — = ARk L H 24 i A& S E To fund programmes of Le French May 2013
RERLEBLE Leisure and Cultural Services Department 5,000
6 By S A U i A s ) To sponsor the 4th Hong Kong Games
DERREHE St James’ Settlement 4,880
BN HEAT (R 2 R e SCLEES#] - & To fund the launch of the “Community Classroom: Jockey Club Programme on
HY =4 heritage preservation” for three years
EREENE The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups 3,000
AT e [ | H4AESEE# > bl To fund a citywide youth development programme “Co-create Hong Kong”, as an
SCRFBUR Y [ R | ) effort to support the “Hong Kong: Our Home” Campaign
EREENHE The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups 2,850
18 Bha% G B — O — = B R = A IR To fund the Hong Kong 2013 International a Cappella Festival
BEEPLE Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra 2,670
B AP E = O — =4+ A MRS &~ To fund the Russia Tour of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra in October 2013
RFIEH
BEREM RO Hong Kong Arts Centre 2,500
RO T I S A R BN A To fund a Youth Education Programme on Street Music for 16 months
Very Hong Kong Festival Foundation Very Hong Kong Festival Foundation Association 2,100

Association
16 Bh JF % & W B4 f — O — = Event Horizon 2
BT

To fund a public art exhibition “Event Horizon” at the Very Hong Kong Festival 2013
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SEB(FHET)
Amount
HiE/ Bis Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
BRI BEE Leisure and Cultural Services Department 1,820
BOITE = O — = 4EF L B S BT W H /L7 To fund two Student Events and a Transportation Subsidy Scheme cum Guided Tour
B~ PR R K PR at the Hong Kong Flower Show 2013
ERERAS The Hong Kong Football Association Limited 1,440
EBIRZ G S S G R B A L EREEEE O To fund the Hong Kong Jockey Club International Youth Invitational Football Tournament
— =R O—UEEYH I+ sk Ll T e 2Es B2 2013 and the Asian Football Confederation u-14 Championship 2014 Qualifiers
ERREKREERAT Hong Kong Typhoons Ice Hockey Club Limited 830
5 B HEAT 58 G B K b AR Bk > A0 A To fund its Community Hockey Programme for underprivileged children for two years
ERRNREREAE Joint Association of Traditional Dragon Boats in Tai O, Hong Kong 365
TH BB — O — = AR K IR (A HE Y 2 T 1 ) To fund the organisation of the Tai O Traditional Dragon Boat Water Parade in 2013
ERAEELEASERAT Federation of HK Chiu Chow Community Organisations Limited 359
65 8 25 0 — AR A v\ o B 6 2% 46 To fund its field studies and data collection project for the traditional Yu Lan Ghost
Festival in the Chiu Chow Community for one year
ERRNAKPEREES Hong Kong Cheung Chau Bun Festival Committee 354
TR — O — = A RN KT 15 To fund the organisation of the Cheung Chau Jiao Festival in 2013
REL UL HBEERFOLERAT The Conservancy Association Centre for Heritage Limited 334
18 B A 10— 4E A B R R S R R To fund an Intangible Cultural Heritage Educational Programme for one year
ERETEEMNHE Hong Kong Youth Arts Foundation 314
8 Bl a% € B0 N 2 % T P AT i O A Al To fund the upgrading of equipment at its office and two arts education studios
THREEZ ERAESN-O—=/ " MEENAEEBRETSHEEDHEIRR
The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant from the Trust for 2013/14
SR(THET)
Amount
Wi/ ik Organisation / Purpose (HK$’000)
EEREENE Arts with the Disabled Association Hong Kong 1,997
5 By A i AT ) To fund its Inclusive Arts Project
ERREHKRRES Hong Kong Special Olympics 1,177
18 B = T Rk R B To fund its Golf Development Project
ANiE(BEE - RREE K Ab) 760,050
Sub-total (Sports, Recreation and Culture)
#45T Total 1,949,728




Trust's Major Initiatives on
Community Projects /sa:sxmuais

PROACTIVE
APPROACH

E BRI R AR

6

Community Projects
o= |

F 7 308 I A TR K P 31K B 26
FeAtIE I B AL - HAEE AR Rk I IR
WU By > 78 L S R T B v
W > EEHEAT RAR B — &R B S DA
e Y A o D LT P o T oy R
IR~ FEA B T B4 R A AT 2%
HH » DESE AT ZAL - @OrfsiR
BE ~ R RERE - AR E
SALRE > BRI AR R
EAL TR o e O/ =4
JIE T i e R U Ay g ) B AL N
BHH e

Whilst The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
continues to invest a significant amount of money in
charitable and community projects through annual
donations, it has taken an even more proactive,
preventive and far-sighted approach to tackling larger
and more complicated social issues. The Trust has been
working with various Government departments, non-
governmental organisations and academics to devise
and implement a number of major community projects
that address longer-term challenges such as an ageing
population, family harmony, students with specific
learning difficulties, positive youth development, heritage
preservation and environmental sustainability. In 2012/13,
the Trust has approved six programmes under various
major initiatives.

Environment Project 53t #)

#is/ ik Organisation / Purpose

EEg Hong Chi Association

15 DAY 2 8 R S 8 B 1 it 3 To fund the Hong Chi Jockey Club Glass Bottle Recycling Project
HHBEERAAE Mission Healthy Greens Limited

BEET R R — B GRE S OATEIEE To fund Mission Healthy Greens — Jockey Club Elderly Green Living Programme
BEBER Radio Television Hong Kong

AU B S IA RIRIREE T H)

To launch a public education campaign on the environment in collaboration with Radio Television

Hong Kong

PREEHS

TR R s Ty > S SRR

St James’ Settlement

To fund the setting-up of an Up-Cycling Centre and its operating costs for three years

FAMILY: A Jockey Club Initiative For a Harmonious Society & + A : 255 & fua# ik &5t #)

s/ g

Organisation / Purpose

BEAE

B E A BE GGt BNE

FER)IEE) K H

The University of Hong Kong

To continue the sixth year of the FAMILY: A Jockey Club Initiative For a Harmonious Society Project

P.A.T.H.S. to Adulthood: A Jockey Club Youth Enhancement Scheme S8R s — 2856 & % 445 55 & 51 8

s/ s

Organisation / Purpose

BEREAREBIHE

S B SO PR S AR AT B L B 2B A R

Radio Television Hong Kong and Wai Yin Association
To launch a drug prevention programme in collaboration with Radio Television Hong Kong and Wai

Yin Association

7
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Financial Review usux
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Contribution to the Hong Kong
Community (HK$M)
HEBLENKBEERM (FEBT)

Total &%
28,888

I Betting and Lottery Duty 51 & 5 5 % B
I Profits tax FISH

[0 Lotteries Fund %54

I Charitable donations ZE 183

[ | Employment and other spending
EEFHM R A X

REEE
EREFE ([FE]) R—RILNNRBERA
A ERH2EREWEARERFEESEYE
RAF - BESERRERERAINEBFER
FARAT  BFEEABERELEEEEFTEY
BREENEEES B TENBLRESS
SEEHARLR IEEEEFSSEMNTAER
BRI o

ERESEREETES ([FRES2]) B—
BARBEAS  TEHNEYRBNEBSHBN
HEFE -

ZEMR
FEEEEEFLANME  BEXBRIRER
LMEAEENEEER - SEEFSNENHE
BEBANRBOVEGOR - SEENEHBER -
HBUEEEMBRHFERZBRAREBEAREDH
BRI o

HREENEETERETBIET  FTUEEHN
BERRHEENERRREEAZE - —0—Z

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
Sources of Income for the Allocations Fund and Charitable Donations (HK$M)
EEBRSEEERRESRTESNBRNKREMESER(EEET)

1,400 53
12/13 1,950
12 1,600 M s6
1,729
500 T 53
08/09 1,368
0 200 400 600 800 1,000 1,200 1,400 1,600 1,800

I Charitable donations ZZ183k I Appropriations from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Group

EEREEEEBR

Financial income Bt 7§ A
I Forfeited dividends and refunds A R4EZ £ BB
I Transfer from Capital Fund $# 5 & AE S

The Hong Kong Jockey Club’s not-for-profit business model is unique in the industry and much
admired worldwide. It has proved to be a huge asset to the Hong Kong community over the years,
enabling the Club to provide world-class sporting entertainment while channelling public gaming
demand into community benefits, and ensuring that these services are run in a regulated and
responsible manner. The Club continues to be Hong Kong’s single largest taxpayer and ranks
amongst the world’s leading charity benefactors. Total contributions made by The Hong Kong
Jockey Club and The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust to the Hong Kong community
amounted to HK$28.9 billion for the 2012/13 financial year.

GROUP STRUCTURE
The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) is a not-for-profit organisation, and is a company with
liability limited by guarantee. Through its wholly-owned subsidiaries HKJC Horse Race Betting
Limited, HKJC Football Betting Limited and HKJC Lotteries Limited, the Club holds the sole
licences for the operation and management of Hong Kong’s horse race betting, football betting
and Mark Six lottery. The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited, another principal subsidiary,
manages Members’ social and recreational facilities.

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) is a public charity and is primarily
engaged in supporting charitable organisations and community projects in Hong Kong.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Notwithstanding its not-for-profit nature, the Group adopts prudent commercial practices in the
planning and management of its businesses. By maintaining a well-run business operation and
a strong financial position, the Club’s goal is to generate sufficient surplus for maintaining and
enhancing its role as Hong Kong’s top charity and community benefactor.

As the bulk of the Group’s operations are in Hong Kong, the economic conditions in Hong
Kong have a significant impact on its business performance. The Hong Kong economy regained
some growth momentum in the second half of 2012, largely due to a vibrant Chinese economy
and a slight stabilisation of the Euro debt crisis. The moderate growth continued in the first half
of 2013, against a backdrop of relatively low unemployment at 3.5% and a stable inflation rate in
consumer prices. Although the global economic environment improved somewhat during 2012/13,
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a number of factors called for a cautionary outlook. Some of the Euro zone economies were still
unsettled by austerity measures proposed by their governments, although interest rate easing by
the European Central Bank provided some relief. Meanwhile, the economic recovery in the United
States was still slow and uncertain. Fortunately, the sustained growth of the Chinese economy
continued to mitigate the negative impact of the sluggish developed economies.

Aside from the macro-economic environment, other factors continued to pose significant
challenges to the Club’s long-term performance and competitiveness. These included the ongoing
expansion of Macau’s gaming industry, the growing ability of illegal and offshore operators to
solicit business online, the ageing population of local racing fans, the changing lifestyles of
customers and the alternative choices of leisure entertainment available to them, coupled with an
unfavourable betting duty regime for the Club’s wagering businesses.

To counter the negative macro-economic conditions and to address the above-mentioned
downside threats, the Club formulated and implemented comprehensive strategies to enhance
the attractiveness of its products and services, refresh its customer facilities and venues (both on
and off-course as well as at clubhouses), target customer segments with growth potential, and
carry out continuous improvement of its business operations. These strategies have led to positive
business results and higher customer satisfaction.

Racecourse attendance increased against last year, reflecting the continuing improvement in
the Club’s product and service offerings for various customer segments, its customer relationship
management programmes and its information dissemination via conventional and digital channels.
The continuation of the Racecourse Master Plan also provided new and refreshed venues for
raceday customers, including a Young Members’ Box and Racing Club Noodle Bar at Happy
Valley, upgraded Owners’ Boxes at Sha Tin, and enhanced venues in the public areas of both
racecourses. Meanwhile, “Happy Wednesday” events at the races continued to draw attendance
to Happy Valley Racecourse, with different thematic events being held during the year including
Oktoberfest, Asian Pop, Wines, Magic and French Nights.

Horse race betting turnover reached a record high of HK$94,370 million, a 12.3% increase
on last year, as a result of these strategies and improvements to revitalise racing. Racing income
reached HK$4,118 million, higher than last year by HK$409 million, despite a slightly lower net
margin rate as a result of rebates and the progressive scale in betting duty assessment.

Football betting achieved another record high turnover of HK$50,606 million, growth of 7.0%
on last year, in the tenth year of its operation. New bet types, more matches offering in-play betting,
and an increase in the number of non-televised matches streamed on the Club’s websites were
instrumental in capturing higher turnover. Match results also continued to be in bookmakers’ favour
and betting income reached HK$4,206 million, a HK$265 million improvement on last year.

The Mark Six lottery turnover at HK$7,627 million was similar to last year’s, with an essentially
flat income at HK$458 million.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The 2012/13 and 2011/12 financial years contained 84 and 81 race meetings respectively, while
both racing seasons had 83 race meetings as they did not coincide with the financial years.

The Group’s total revenue in this financial year of HK$29,968 million was higher than the
HK$28,422 million in 2011/12 by 5.4%. After excluding the effect of one-off disposal income from
investment property from last year’s revenue base, the Group’s total revenue increase was 8.8%.
The increase was mainly attributable to higher turnover from the horse race and football betting
businesses, as well as football results which favoured the bookmakers.

The Group’s operating costs of HK$7,919 million were 7.8% or HK$573 million over last year.
The increase in operating costs was a result of higher employment costs, marketing expenses and
supplies and utilities, as well as depreciation of property, plant and equipment.

Global financial markets experienced another volatile year, shaken by uncertainty over the
direction of the Federal Reserve’s monetary policy and signs of cooling growth in emerging markets.
In the year under review, the Group was able to record a financial surplus (excluding surplus from
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Group Revenue and Operating Costs (HK$M)
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the Contingency Fund) of HK$905 million, as compared with the HK$541 million surplus recorded
in 2011/12. The Group’s investment portfolio, while not immune to volatility in financial markets,
is globally diversified across different geographical regions and asset classes, making it less
susceptible to sudden movements arising from any particular region or investment.

The financial assets of both the Club and the Trust are managed under a rigorous framework
with oversight from the Finance and General Purposes Committee, which regularly reviews and
approves all investment policies. These assets are managed by the Club’s Treasury Department
and external professional fund managers. The portfolios managed by the in-house Treasury team
are primarily for working capital and liquidity, and are predominantly invested in bank deposits and
high credit quality debt securities. The portfolios managed by external fund managers are mainly
for long-term capital growth, and are invested in an array of asset classes across the globe with
the aim of achieving consistent returns with effective risk diversification.

The Group remains Hong Kong’s single largest taxpayer, with total tax payments (comprising

Tax Contribution (HK$M)
BR(EEET)
0 3,000 6,000 9,000 12,000 15,000 18,000
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08/09 8,228 2,900 | 1,607 WXl
6.8
0 3 6 9 12 15 18% B AL
I % of Group’s tax contribution to total taxes I Horse Race betting duty & EE 8
collected by Inland Revenue Department I Football betting duty EHREEH:

SEFABRETERBHKNE DL B Lottery duty S8

Bl Profits tax FI1S%
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betting duty, lottery duty and profits tax) of HK$17,641 million in 2012/13. These payments were
equivalent to 7.3% of the total taxes collected by the Inland Revenue Department. Due to the
higher turnover and revenues, the Group’s total tax contribution over the past year increased by
9.1% or HK$1,468 million.

The Group’s net surplus for the year, excluding surplus from the Contingency Fund, was
HK$4,198 million, 1.7% or HK$73 million lower than in 2011/12. After excluding the effect of
one-off disposal income from investment property from last year’s net surplus, the Group’s net
surplus increased by HK$810 million or 23.9%. Appropriations for charity purposes reached
HK$1,900 million, setting a record high and reflecting the Group’s continuing commitment
to charitable causes when financial resources are available. In 2012/13, the Trust approved
record high donations of HK$1,950 million to charitable organisations to fund capital projects and
agency subventions.

The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited Development Fund (HK$M)
ESQeEEHARANAERESAR(EREET)

12/13
11712

10711

09/10

08/09

o

200 400 600 800 1,000 1,200

MEMBERSHIP SERVICES

Catering revenue in the current financial year amounted to HK$725 million, a 8.9% increase over
the previous year. The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited offered the best quality of food
and services at best value for its Members by continuously enhancing product offerings and
upgrading its catering facilities, as well as reducing its operating costs through direct sourcing
from suppliers and conducting periodic menu revisions.

A number of major cyclical refurbishment projects at the clubhouses were completed
to enhance customer satisfaction, such as the remodelling of Gallop Restaurant at Happy
Valley Clubhouse, and upgrades to the croquet lawn and outdoor playground at Beas River
Country Club.

Beijing Clubhouse continues to be one of the favourite venues for personal and business
gatherings in the capital among Members and their guests. This year marked its 5th Anniversary,
and since opening in 2008, nearly 10,000 Hong Kong Members and 800 Mainland Members in
total have visited and enjoyed its facilities and services.

The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited Development Fund, dedicated to improving
membership facilities and services, stood at HK$1,095 million, which included a HK$53 million
appropriation from The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited this year.
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REPORT OF THE STEWARDS
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The Stewards have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (“the Club”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Group was primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in
Hong Kong and in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries,
and in managing members’ social and recreational facilities. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are shown on pages 170 to 171.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results and appropriations of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 126. All figures in the annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements are expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Club during the year are set out in notes 26 to
28 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group appropriated HK$1,900 million to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities
Trust and donated HK$118 million for other charitable purposes.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Club are shown
in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

STEWARDS
The Board of Stewards during the year and up to the date of this annual report were listed on
page 3.

Mr T. Brian Stevenson and Dr Simon S O Ip were elected Chairman and Deputy Chairman
respectively immediately after the Annual General Meeting 2012.

Dr Donald K T Li retired as a Steward on 31 March 2013. On 1 April 2013, Mr Martin C K Liao
was co-opted as a Steward to replace Dr Donald K T Li.

In accordance with the Club’s Articles of Association, Mr Philip N L Chen, Mr Stephen Ip Shu
Kwan and Dr Rita Fan Hsu Lai Tai will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
The three Stewards retiring by rotation, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. Mr
Martin C K Liao was co-opted as a Steward to replace Dr Donald K T Li until the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting, and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year
under review. No Steward had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any contract
of significance to the business of the Club or any of its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Club were entered into or existed during the year.

AUDITORS
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Stewards and is signed
for and on behalf of the Board.

T. Brian Stevenson
Chairman
26 July 2013
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TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB
(incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 126 to 171 which comprise the
consolidated and the Club’s statements of financial position as at 30 June 2013, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

STEWARDS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Stewards of the Club are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Stewards determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Stewards, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the Club as at 30 June 2013, and of the Group’s surplus and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 July 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

REWamR

BEXA=THLEE

for the year ended 30 June

HEET in HK$ million Hi3E Note 2013 2012
(Fi#aE note 1) (Ht3E note 1)
BEESHYE Number of race meetings 84 81
FEERIEBEE Amounts wagered by customers 2.2 152,603 138,997
EEREFWA Betting and lottery revenue 2.2 27,175 25,082
EEBRRSELH Betting and lottery duty (17,221) (15,768)
FFRF Hhith B S HehE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (28) (48)
REES Lotteries Fund (1,144) (1,154)
R REE Net margin and commission 4 8,782 8,112
Hg A Other revenue 5 2,793 3,340
11,575 11,452
R A Operating costs 6 (7,919) (7,346)
KRR Operating surplus 3,656 4,106
TR 2 i Interest income from deposits 154 125
BERERRPBREHSHRR Surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios 7 757 425
BERESRENRE Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 8 1,319 194
BisE A Finance costs 23 (6) 9)
Bk Financial surplus 2,224 735
Frib HREFIE R F] Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 16 95 49
HIRBIE - BIERSEAESEZERBIUR Surplus before taxation, charitable donations to
BERTHEAESRBERESHNER Charities Trust, transfer to Contingency Fund
and Development Fund 5,975 4,890
HiiE Taxation 9 (458) (425)
HRBIER  BEZSEEESERERR Surplus after taxation and before charitable donations to
BERTHEAESRBEESHNER Charities Trust, transfer to Contingency Fund
and Development Fund 5,517 4,465
BRTERBESSLERETES Appropriations to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 10
- BRES - Allocations Fund (1,400) (1,600)
- EXES - Capital Fund (500) (200)
BREBRBREZENFERS Net surplus after appropriations and taxation 3,617 2,665
ERTERAES Transfer to Contingency Fund 27 (1,319) (194)
ERTRRES Transfer to Development Fund 28 (53) (18)
REBEBNBTERE Retained surplus transferred to Accumulated Reserves 26 2,245 2,453

F-BE=t-HEZE-Htt-ENHEBAGEMBEHREMN—5 - The notes on pages 132 to 171 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REETERER

BEAA=THLEE

for the year ended 30 June

HEET in HK$ million Hi3E Note 2013 2012
BREBRBEZENFERA Net surplus after appropriations and taxation 3,617 2,665
Hitn2mEU = Other comprehensive income
HEEEH»E ltems that may be reclassified subsequently
BAKERWER to income statement
AEHENKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
EEEH Change in value
BEESRRARELAS Debt securities and long-term investment portfolios 26 215 (402)
ERESKRE Contingency Fund investments 27 (286) (857)
BRESRIPREAS Development Fund long-term investment portfolios 28 13 (10)
EMHRELRSE Currency translation differences 26 926 9
AEERBBAEMEERE /(EBE) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 38 (1,260)
AREEZEZEWELEE Total comprehensive income for the year 3,655 1,405

E-B=t-EE-BtT-ENNEBEAGEUBRRN -2 -

The notes on pages 132 to 171 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

127



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 3 AR OR &
BERNA=TALEE at 30 June #%& Consolidated 5& Club
HEET in HK$ million HiEE Note 2013 2012 2013 2012
FREBEE Non-current assets
M - REREM Property, plant and equipment 12 6,087 4,987 4,922 4,179
EERHBE TR b fF AR Leasehold land and land use rights
under operating leases 13 1,367 1,346 - -
REYE Investment properties 14 3 3 3 3
B ARIRE Investments in subsidiaries 15 - - 1,140 1,140
HEEHERRE Investment in a jointly controlled entity 16 204 103 - -
HRESRE Contingency Fund investments 27 12,824 11,841 12,824 11,841
REREAS Long-term investment portfolios 17 13,618 13,049 11,044 10,552
THEeRmIA -EREERE Derivative financial instruments —
Contingency Fund investments 27,29 12 16 12 16
PTESMIA - HibiRE Derivative financial instruments —
other investments 29 13 19 13 19
REFFERTIE Long-term prepayments 18 427 443 - -
HihEE Other assets 19 323 353 323 353
34,878 32,160 30,281 28,103
REEE Current assets
BERFSEE Debt securities portfolio 20 467 526 467 526
[ B8 A B FRER B X Loans to subsidiaries 15 - - 1,677 1,909
FssEERE Assets held for sale 14 - = - =
HitREEE Other current assets 21 949 880 520 466
FEW BB A RMRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 15 - = 1,763 901
THEeRMIA -ERESRE Derivative financial instruments —
Contingency Fund investments 27,29 85 22 85 22
PTESMIA - HibiRE Derivative financial instruments —
other investments 29 92 18 92 18
ySHEER N Short-term deposits 22 8,436 6,961 6,447 5,408
RITER  BEREMRBHES Bank balances, cash and other liquid funds 22 1,270 1,160 465 454
11,299 9,567 11,516 9,704
nREBEE Current liabilities
HHEIER Short-term loans 23 (120) (141) - -
T BRA R FE U R IE Creditors and receipts in advance 24 (5,390) (4,625) (3,516) (2,863)
FEF B A R RYFRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 15 - - (4,104)  (3,694)
FEfIBiE Taxation payable (416) (457) (101) (121)
THEeRMIA -EREERE Derivative financial instruments —
Contingency Fund investments 27, 29 (46) (36) (46) (36)
PTESMIA - HibiRE Derivative financial instruments —
other investments 29 (46) 43) (46) (43)
(6,018) (5,302) (7,813) (6,757)
MBEEFAE Net current assets 5,281 4,265 3,703 2,947




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (cont.)

MBRR R (8

BEAA=THLEE at 30 June #%& Consolidated 5& Club
HEBT in HK$ million HzE Note 2013 2012 2013 2012
FERBAE Non-current liabilities
BRI EEE Deferred tax liabilities 25 (226) (144) (193) (137)
THEeRMIA -EREERE Derivative financial instruments —
Contingency Fund investments 27,29 (17) (18) (17) (18)
PTESMIA - HibiRE Derivative financial instruments —
other investments 29 (19) (21) (19) 21)
(262) (183) (229) (176)
39,897 36,242 33,755 30,874
& Reserves 26 25,944 23,388 20,897 19,049
ERES Contingency Fund 27 12,858 11,825 12,858 11,825
BRES Development Fund 28 1,095 1,029 - -
ERAE Total equity 39,897 36,242 33,755 30,874
£ T. Brian Stevenson
B aH Simon S O Ip
=R Stewards

E-B=t-EE-BtT-ENNEBEAGEUBRRN -2 -

The notes on pages 132 to 171 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

TREERBEX
BRES BRES
f##%  Contingency Development wEE
BEBT in HK$ million Reserves Fund Fund Total
—O—=—HtA—RB&H% Balance at 1 July 2012 23,388 11,825 1,029 36,242
REEZHEKHEEE Total comprehensive
income for the year 2,556 1,033 66 3,655
—O—=FxB=1+H#&& Balance at 30 June 2013 25,944 12,858 1,095 39,897
—O——%tB—H#&& Balance at 1 July 2011 21,328 12,488 1,021 34,837
NEEZEWE / (F1B) 85 Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year 2,060 (663) 8 1,405
ZO—=—HEXRA=THEH Balance at 30 June 2012 23,388 11,825 1,029 36,242

E-B=t-EE-BtT-ENNEBEAGEUBRRN -2 -

The notes on pages 132 to 171 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REREREX

BEXA=THLEE

for the year ended 30 June

HEBT in HK$ million HiEE Note 2013 2012
=E ST Operating activities
EETEMELENRS Cash generated from operations 30 5,275 4,297
EXHRE Interest paid (6) 9)
EFEH Income tax paid (417) (265)
ERENMEHRBINR Income tax refunded - 25
BRTEAEEREEETES Appropriations to
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (1,900) (1,800)
EETBMEENTRS Net cash generated from operating activities 2,952 2,248
REES Investing activities
BEYE - REREM Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,933) (1,188)
HEREWE Sale of investment property 18 883
HEME - RIBEREM Sale of property, plant and equipment - 2
2 WERRI S Interest received 479 500
EUWER S Dividends received 293 173
BEAHEENKEE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (33,022 (14,400)
HETHEEMEEE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets 32,959 13,171
HER AT EEES Sale of other financial assets
BRIBRNEMETEEE at fair value through profit or loss 23 29
HITESBMI AR (4)/ WFERE Net (payment)/receipt for derivative financial instruments (165) 284
REPREASHFR (38M) /#D (Increase)/decrease in deposits held in
long-term investment portfolios (140) 83
RETBFANFRS Net cash used in investing activities (1,488) (463)
REES Financing activities
EEEE Repayment of borrowings (25) (43)
RMETBFANFRS Net cash used in financing activities (25) (43)
ReERESEEBYFIEM Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,439 1,742
FORERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8,121 6,327
Rl Exchange gains 146 52
FRESRRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9,706 8,121
RERREZENEFIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
ySHEER N Short-term deposits 22 8,436 6,961
RITER B REMRHES Bank balances, cash and other liquid funds 22 1,270 1,160
9,706 8,121

E-B=t-EE-BtT-ENNEBEAGEUBRRN -2 -

The notes on pages 132 to 171 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION
The Group is primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong Kong and in
operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and in managing
Members’ social and recreational facilities. The Club is incorporated in Hong Kong with liability
limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office is One Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong
Kong. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out on pages 170 to 171.

The last five race meetings of the 2011/12 racing season were held on 1 July 2012, 4 July 2012,
8 July 2012, 11 July 2012 and 15 July 2012 (“July 2012 race meetings”) and the last four race
meetings of the 2012/13 racing season were held on 1 July 2013, 4 July 2013, 7 July 2013 and
10 July 2013 (“July 2013 race meetings”). Accordingly, the financial results of July 2012 race
meetings have been included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2013 and the financial results of July 2013 race meetings will be included in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2014. The 2011/12 and 2012/13 proforma
consolidated income statement for the full racing season is shown on page 172.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$
million), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 126 to 171 were approved by the Board of
Stewards on 26 July 2013.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and derivative financial instruments which are carried
at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

(a) Amendments to standards that are effective for the current accounting period
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income

The adoption of the amendments to this standard does not have any impact on the consolidated
financial statements and has not led to any changes in the Group’s accounting policies.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(b) New and revised standards and amendments that are relevant to the Group’s operations but

are not yet effective and not early adopted

The following new and revised standards and amendments have been published and are mandatory
for the Group’s accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2013.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group is still in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these new and
revised standards and amendments will be in the period of initial application, but not yet in a
position to state whether these new and revised standards and amendments will have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

2.2 Betting and lottery revenue

The Group reports net gains and losses arising from all betting and lottery activities as revenue,
which is the amounts wagered net of betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes. A reconciliation

of the amounts wagered by customers to betting and lottery revenue is shown below.

2013
BEARB=THLFE for the year ended 30 June Horgszéff; Ei:fjﬁ P @i
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
FEEIREHEE Amounts wagered by customers 94,370 50,606 7,627 152,603
BEXL BNRESRS Betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes (79,116) (42,193) (4,119)  (125,428)
BEREZBA Betting and lottery revenue 15,254 8,413 3,508 27,175
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
2.2 Betting and lottery revenue (cont.)

2012
BEARB=THLFE for the year ended 30 June Hoﬁfffé Eoiif:ﬁ s @i
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
FEEIRE MR Amounts wagered by customers 84,019 47,285 7,693 138,997
BEXL BNRESRS Betting dividends, rebates and lottery prizes (70,357) (39,404) (4,154) (113,915)
BERESRRA Betting and lottery revenue 13,662 7,881 3,539 25,082
GEWERENEEFRIAE  BEEREHRSE The consolidated income statement presents the amounts wagered by customers but this is for
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information purposes only. Amounts wagered represent amounts received in respect of bets placed
by customers on betting and lottery activities during the year.

2.3 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements, made up to 30 June 2013,
of the Club and its direct and indirect subsidiaries.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Club’s statement of financial position, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising
from contingent consideration amendments. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Club on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

(b) Jointly controlled entities

Jointly controlled entities (“JCE”) are joint ventures whereby the Group and other parties undertake
an economic activity which is subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

The Group’s interests in JCE are accounted for by proportionate consolidation. The Group
combines its share of the JCE’s individual income and expenses, assets and liabilities and cash
flows on a line-by-line basis with similar items in the Group’s financial statements.

When the Group sells assets to the JCE, recognition of any portion of a gain or loss from the
transaction shall reflect the substance of the transaction. When the assets are retained by the
JCE, and provided the Group has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership, the
Group shall recognise that portion of the gain or loss that is attributable to the interests of the
other JCE unit holders. However, a loss on the transaction shall be recognised immediately if the
loss provides evidence of a permanent reduction in the net realisable value of current assets or
impairment loss.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.4 Contingency Fund

The Club’s Contingency Fund is held to provide a source of funds in the event that income
from betting operations should cease temporarily; to finance major capital projects, either for the
Club or for the Hong Kong community; to finance major renovations to improve the Club’s
substantial investment in property, plant and equipment; or for any other special purposes as
deemed appropriate by the Stewards. The Contingency Fund represents the market value of the
Contingency Fund investments and this is adjusted annually through the receipt of investment
income, realised surplus or deficit, revaluation of investments and, when necessary, the transfer
of additional funds.

The Contingency Fund investments are held for non-trading purposes and are stated at fair
value except for loans and receivables which are stated at amortised cost at the end of the reporting
period. The surplus derived from Contingency Fund investments is reinvested and deficit absorbed
in the Contingency Fund portfolio. The accounting policy for the financial assets of the Contingency
Fund investments is stated in note 2.8 below.

2.5 Development Fund

The Development Fund maintained under The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited, is held
to accumulate adequate funds to finance future membership facilities. The annual transfer from
the net surplus of the year is approved by the Stewards taking into consideration the operating
surplus, investment income earned by this Fund, and the amounts of entrance and qualification
fees of Full and Corporate Members, and Country Concession Scheme joining fees received during
the year. The financial assets of the Development Fund are included in long-term investment
portfolios.

2.6 Long-term investment portfolios
The primary purpose of the long-term investment portfolios is to invest surplus funds in excess
of normal operational requirements for capital appreciation over the medium to long-term.
These portfolios are held for non-trading purposes and are stated at fair value except for loans
and receivables which are stated at amortised cost at the end of the reporting period. The surplus
derived from these investments is reinvested and deficit absorbed within these portfolios. The
accounting policy for the financial assets of the long-term investment portfolios is stated in note
2.8 below.

2.7 Debt securities portfolio

The primary purpose of debt securities is to invest surplus funds for cash management and yield
enhancement. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The accounting
policy for the financial assets of debt securities portfolio is stated in note 2.8 below.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
2.8 Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and cash and
cash equivalents. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of the financial assets at initial recognition
and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date. The Contingency Fund investments,
long-term investment portfolios, and debt securities portfolio may contain these financial assets.
Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade day - the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the assets. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period. They comprise local and overseas listed or unlisted equities, debt securities
and/or alternative investments. Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and retained in the investment revaluation reserve until the assets are sold. On the sale
of these assets, the differences between the net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income and subsequently
reclassified from investment revaluation reserve to income are included in “Surplus/deficit from
securities investments and long-term investment portfolios” or “Surplus/deficit from Contingency
Fund investments”.

Alternative investments include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds and private
real estate funds. For those which do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their fair
values will be determined with reference to the values established by external fund managers
using valuation techniques.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category consists of notes with derivative financial instruments and embedded derivatives.
The Group uses derivatives such as interest rate swaps, equity options, foreign exchange forward
contracts and future contracts to manage its financial risks and to facilitate the implementation
of its investment strategies. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.

Changes in the fair value of these assets are included in the consolidated income statement in
the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference between the net sale
proceeds or the net payment and the carrying value is included in the consolidated income
statement unless the derivatives are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current assets.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
2.8 Financial assets (cont.)
(c) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method and are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period where these are classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s loans and receivables comprise “Loans and receivables” as shown in note 21.

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. In the consolidated and the Club’s statements of financial
position, deposits placed at bank for a fixed term are classified as “Short-term deposits” while
other elements of cash and cash equivalents are classified as “Bank balances, cash and other
liquid funds”.

2.9 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. It may not
be possible to identify a single, discrete event that caused the impairment. Rather the combined
effect of several events may have caused the impairment. Losses expected as a result of future
events, no matter how likely, are not recognised.

(a) Assets classified as available-for-sale

For equity securities and alternative investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence
of impairment for an investment may include information about significant changes taking place
in the technological, market, economic or legal environment which indicates that the cost of
the investment may not be recovered, as well as a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment below its cost. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the
consolidated income statement, is reclassified from investment revaluation reserve to
consolidated income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments and alternative investments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

(b) Assets carried at amortised cost

For debt securities and loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land under finance leases are depreciated
or amortised on a straight-line basis at the following rates:

Leasehold land under finance leases over the lease term

Buildings 25 years

Plant and equipment ranging from 10% to 33% per annum

Projects in progress no depreciation is provided on projects in progress until
they are ready for use in the manner as intended by
management. On completion, the project costs are
transferred to the appropriate property, plant and

equipment.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount
(note 2.23).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is de-recognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year in which they are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

2.11 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are
not occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as investment properties. Investment
properties are measured initially at their cost, including related transaction costs, and subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. They are
depreciated over the period of their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis at the same rate
as buildings.

2.12 Leases

Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases of assets where the lessee has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the
lower of the fair value of the leased assets or the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the capital and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the capital balances outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in non-current liabilities. The finance charges are charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease term.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives
or the lease term.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.13 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held-for-sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

2.14 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
weighted average cost less provision for diminution in value.

2.15 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Club’s subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entity operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise from employee benefits, depreciation
on property, plant and equipment and investment properties. Taxation rates enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period are used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.16 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Club’s functional currency.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.16 Foreign currency translation (cont.)

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions are
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. Assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period. The
differences arising from translation are recognised in the consolidated income statement except
for translation differences on non-monetary items of available-for-sale financial assets, such as
equities, which are included in the investment revaluation reserve.

The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency different
from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

— assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of each reporting period;

— income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign entity is partially
disposed of or sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.17 Borrowings and borrowing costs
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalised when they are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

2.18 Trade payables
Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.19 Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
2.20 Revenue recognition
Revenue from horse race betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends and rebates
and is recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from football betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends and is
recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from the lottery represents commission income and is recognised when the relevant
betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from membership subscription fees is recognised over the subscription period.

Revenue from membership entrance and qualification fees is recognised in the month of election
of members and when no significant uncertainty as to its collectibility exists.

Revenue from gate admission to race events and racing sponsorship income is recognised
when the event has been held.

Revenue from food and beverage sales, other member services and livery charges is recognised
when the relevant services have been rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Royalty income is recorded net of overseas withholding taxes and recognised on an accruals
basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a) Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) provides pension benefits to employees upon
retirement with reference to their final salaries.

The retirement benefit costs are assessed using the projected unit credit method and the cost
of providing pensions is charged to the consolidated income statement so as to spread the cost
over the estimated service lives of employees in accordance with the advice of the actuary who
carries out a full valuation of the Scheme annually. The pension obligation is measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows using market yields of government securities
which have terms of maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Actuarial gains and
losses, to the extent that any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss exceeds ten per cent
of the greater of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of Scheme
assets, are recognised over the average remaining estimated service lives of employees.

Past service costs, if any, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the benefits become vested.

Pension liabilities, if any, are included under other liabilities in the consolidated and Club’s
statements of financial position. They represent the net total of the Group and Club’s pension
obligations; plus any unrecognised actuarial gains (less any actuarial losses); minus any
unrecognised past service costs; and minus the fair value of Scheme assets. If the net total
determined is negative, then the resulting asset, which is included under other assets in the
consolidated and Club’s statements of financial position, is limited to the net total of any cumulative
unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs and the present value of any future refunds
from the Scheme or reductions in future contributions to the Scheme.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.21 Employee benefits (cont.)

(b) Defined contribution scheme

Employer’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme applicable to each year are charged
to the consolidated income statement for the year and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully for the contributions. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

(c) Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
Employer’s contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the “MPF scheme”) are
charged to the consolidated income statement for the year.

(d) Bonus and annual leave

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. A provision for bonus is recognised
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation. Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

2.22 Related party

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is considered to be related
to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or
where the Group and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals
or entities.

2.23 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested at least
annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to exercise significant
judgements in the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates
and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions
or using different assumptions.

3.1 Estimated useful life and depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The Group estimates the useful lives of the various categories of property, plant and equipment
on the basis of a planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage experience. Depreciation
is calculated using the straight-line method at rates sufficient to write off their cost over their
estimated useful lives (note 2.10).

Actual useful lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in a
change in estimated useful lives and therefore depreciation expense in future periods.

3.2 Pension costs

The Group employs an independent actuary to conduct annual actuarial valuation of the Group’s
retirement plans. The determination of the Group’s obligation and expense for the defined benefit
element of these plans is dependent on certain assumptions and factors provided by the Club,
which are disclosed in note 19. Changes to the principal actuarial assumptions can affect the
present value of plan obligations and service costs in future periods.

3.3 Income tax

Certain tax treatments adopted by the Group in past years are yet to be finalised with the relevant
tax authority. In assessing the Group’s income tax and deferred taxation in the 2013 consolidated
financial statements, the Group recognises liabilities based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be payable. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

3.4 Asset impairment

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing
whether: (1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values; (2) the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows from the asset using estimated
cash flow projections; and (3) the cash flows are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions adopted by management to determine the level, if any, of impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could significantly
affect the Group’s reported financial position and results of operations.

4 NET MARGIN AND COMMISSION
Net margin represents the amounts wagered on horse race betting and football betting net of the
related betting dividends, rebates, betting duty, and payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong
Kong. Betting duty is calculated in accordance with the Betting Duty Ordinance and the Betting
Duty Regulations.

Commission represents the amounts wagered on the lottery net of related prizes, duty and
payment to the Lotteries Fund.

AEER in HK$ million 2013 2012
BEEHEMATR Horse race betting net margin 4,118 3,709
BIRERALF Football betting net margin 4,206 3,941
R"EEL Lottery commission 458 462

8,782 8,112
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5 OTHER REVENUE

Other revenue of the Group principally comprises membership entrance, qualification and
subscription fees, gate admission charges, livery charges, royalty income, catering sales, charges

for services provided to Members and gain on disposal of investment property.

6 HEEME 6 OPERATING COSTS
TEET in HK$ million 2013 2012
BT (BiEE11) Staff costs (note 11) 3,449 3,059
BERD Prize money 865 810
B EEXENES Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 143 134
ZEIRTEN & Auditor’s remuneration 5 4
EES Stewards’ remuneration - =
W - RERBMITE (HFE12) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 12) 1,029 897
EEBENEEL R Amortisation for leasehold land and

T tth{E FARERREY (FfIEE13) land use rights under operating leases (note 13) 29 29
FIAIEEITTRIE R MEHEEARL Capitalisation of amortisation to projects in progress (29) (29)
W - RERBMEE (HEE12) Impairment of property, plant and equipment (note 12) 1 5

EEmEA Cost of inventories sold 524 499
HIEREER Repairs and maintenance 201 190
IR R A B Supplies and utilities 602 577
H & AN Other operating costs 1,100 1,171

7,919 7,346

7 EHRERRUREEECHRE

7 SURPLUS FROM SECURITIES INVESTMENTS AND LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS

HEET in HK$ million 2013 2012
HETHHEMBEENRER Surplus on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 720 31
AR HEM B EERE (KE) Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets (note) (292) -
FIRERE R Dividend income from listed equities 45 43
SERERE WG Dividend income from alternative investments 141 24
LT ERE S E W a Interest income from listed debt securities 131 137
Ik I ERE SR B Interest income from unlisted debt securities 51 70
PTESMIANT (F58)/ I Net (losses)/gains of derivative financial instruments (21) 135
EEWE Management fees (18) (15)

757 425

MiEE - EEMAIHEENKEERE  CEHEEEBE—
EITRER > MEBTEMGRESEFHETN_E
NWF-—EEBREHFIE  FABEZO—=FxA=
THEFE (ZO—=F | &) NEKREWERRA ©

Note: The Group’s investments in available-for-sale financial assets were individually reviewed for
impairment by management. As a result of the review, the Group reclassified HK$292 million from
investment revaluation reserve and recognised it in the consolidated income statement for the

year ended 30 June 2013 (2012: nil).
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8 SURPLUS FROM CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS

HEET in HK$ million 2013 2012
HEMHBENKEENREE / (FE) Surplus/(deficit) on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 1,186 (127)
FIBRERE R Dividend income from listed equities 107 106
LT ERE S E W a Interest income from listed debt securities 114 113
Ik b EHS 5 F S Wa Interest income from unlisted debt securities 40 64
PTESBMIANT (F5E)/ I Net (losses)/gains of derivative financial instruments (95) 69
T E Management fees (33) (31)
1,319 194
9 HIE 9 TAXATION
TEET in HK$ million 2013 2012
RER PSR Current income tax
- &% - Hong Kong 355 345
- BB - outside Hong Kong 21 16
- BEFERAR — adjustments in respect of prior years - (16)
EAERIIE (KiEE25) Deferred taxation (note 25)
- &% - Hong Kong 65 76
- BB - outside Hong Kong 17 4
458 425

BRFEHDRBEAFE AT ERBEFIRBED 2175
BA(ZO—Z=HF @z tAHA) REHE - H8
BUMNERRTBUR R FTEE VPSS - CRARBEEAN
iR o

EERBARSAEENERTIR - BRBEFBFE
B ETTENBIRZFENT ¢

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong has been provided at the

rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The taxation on the Group’s surplus before taxation differed from the theoretical amount that

would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

HEBET in HK$ million 2013 2012
HIRBIE - BERSEAESEZERBIUR Surplus before taxation, charitable donations to Charities Trust,

EERTERESRERESAINRE transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund 5,975 4,890
BFE16.5% (ZO—=%F :16.5%) st& Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) 986 807
HiBERFEEBHENTE Effect of different income tax rates in other countries 9 6
BARB UGBS 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (389) (285)
FA0%i % H R & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 30 76
RABERANRETE Tax effect of approved charitable donations (191) (186)
BEEEAR Adjustments in respect of prior years - (16)
Hth Others 13 23
HIEXH Taxation charge 458 425
10 B 10 APPROPRIATIONS

BRTEAESEREATEES ([FREL]) 2ES
SEENID FRBHERZETESERBR - HER
ERE -

Appropriations to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) represent transfer of
part of the Group’s net surplus as donations to the Trust for charitable purposes.
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11 BIRE 11 STAFF COSTS
HEET in HK$ million 2013 2012
FHEREAMBKAR Salaries and other costs 3,220 2,938
RBIRE A - REMFREE Pension costs — defined contribution plan 37 32
BIREHA - REBAGHE (FIFE19) Pension costs — the Scheme (note 19) 115 22
BB AR Contributions to MPF scheme 77 67
3,449 3,059
12 Y%  RiEREH 12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
£8 Group
AMERNEE L EETH
Leasehold RAB R EEM IRER
land under gF Plantand  Projects in ko)
BEBT in HK$ million finance leases Buildings  equipment progress Total
—O—Z—HtB—HEAE Cost at 1 July 2012 1,561 3,878 10,071 727 16,237
BE Additions - 200 1,028 882 2,110
LLte Transfers - 69 175 (244) -
ERTIFEEEE Transfer to assets held for sale (4) - - = (@)
BE Disposals (4) - (166) - (170)
EWHRELRSE Currency translation differences - - 15 15 30
ZO—Z=FEXRA=1THRAKE Cost at 30 June 2013 1,553 4,147 11,1238 1,380 18,203
ZO—=FtRA—HEBRERHE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2012 (1,008) (2,690) (7,548) 4) (11,250)
REENE Depreciation for the year 17) (120) (892) - (1,029)
REERE Impairment for the year - - = (1) (1)
ERTRBSEERE Transfer to assets held for sale 4 - - = 4
BE Disposals 4 - 164 171
BE¥HIRERE Currency translation differences - (11) = (11)
TO—=FEARA=THEBITERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2013 (1,017) (2,810) (8,287) 2 (12,116)
ZO—=FX~A=THEREFE Net book value at 30 June 2013 536 1,337 2,836 1,378 6,087
—O——FtB—HEAE Cost at 1 July 2011 1,561 3,750 9,318 582 15,211
BE Additions - 106 812 B3] 1,291
B Transfers - 32 198 (230) -
ERTREYE Transfer to investment properties - (10) - - (10)
BE Disposals - - (264) (264)
EMHRELRE Currency translation differences - - 7 9
“O—=—FXRA=1+HEAE Cost at 30 June 2012 1,561 3,878 10,071 727 16,237
—O——E+tA—HEBWERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2011 (992) (2,588) (7,036) - (10,616)
REERE Depreciation for the year (16) (112) (769) - (897)
REERE Impairment for the year - - (1) 4 (5)
EERTREYE Transfer to investment properties - 10 - - 10
BE Disposals - - 262 - 262
BE¥HIAERE Currency translation differences - - @) = @)
TO—ZHERA=ZTHEBITERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2012 (1,008) (2,690) (7,548) 4) (11,250)
ZO—Z=ZEXA=1tHEREZE Net book value at 30 June 2012 553 1,188 2,523 723 4,987




12 Y% « RIERB[H (8)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont.)

E& Club
AMERNEE L EETH
Leasehold RAB R EEM IRER
land under gF Plantand  Projects in ko)
BEBT in HK$ million finance leases Buildings  equipment progress Total
—O—Z=—HtB—HEAE Cost at 1 July 2012 1,541 3,392 8,628 456 14,017
BE Additions - 199 942 451 1,592
i Transfers - 69 161 (230) -
ERTIFSEEE Transfer to assets held for sale (4) - - = (@)
NE) 2 E R Inter-company transfer - - 2 - 2
BE Disposals (4) - (148) - (152)
—O—=FXRA=1+HEAHE Cost at 30 June 2013 1,533 3,660 9,585 677 15,455
ZO—=FtRA—HEBRERHE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2012 (1,008) (2,317) (6,509) (4) (9,838)
REERE Depreciation for the year (10) (104) (740) - (854)
ERTRBSEERE Transfer to assets held for sale 4 - - = 4
A AE 2 B Inter-company transfer - - 1 - 1
28 Disposals 4 - 147 154
ZO—=FEARA=THEBITERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2013 (1,010) (2,421) (7,101) (1) (10,533)
—O—=FARA=THEREFE Net book value at 30 June 2013 523 1,239 2,484 676 4,922
—O——HtB—HEAE Cost at 1 July 2011 1,541 3,270 7,948 461 13,220
BE Additions - 100 742 219 1,061
B Transfers - 32 193 (225) -
EERTREYE Transfer to investment properties - (10) - - (10)
NE) 2 R Inter-company transfer - - 2) (1)
BE Disposals - - (253) - (253)
—O—=FRA=tHEKE Cost at 30 June 2012 1,541 3,392 8,628 456 14,017
—O——E+tA—HEBWERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2011 (992) (2,281)  (6,158) = (9,381)
REERE Depreciation for the year (16) (96) (604) - (716)
REEZRE Impairment for the year = - - ) @)
ERTREYE Transfer to investment properties - 10 - - 10
NE) 2 E R Inter-company transfer - - 2 - 2
BE Disposals - - 251 - 251
TO—ZHEARA=THEBITERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2012 (1,008) (2,317) (6,509) (4) (9,838)
ZO—Z=ZEXA=1tHEREZE Net book value at 30 June 2012 533 1,075 2,119 452 4,179

AA=TRERERATHENEE D A REFE
H 8 -

The net book value at 30 June of leasehold land under finance leases comprised the following:

£8 Group F& Club
TEET in HK$ million 2013 2012 2013 2012
EEBREN Held in Hong Kong
REAEN (E+FUL) Long-term leases (over 50 years) 193 193 193 193
FERN (TFEZEETF) Medium-term leases (10 — 50 years) 343 360 330 340
536 558 523 588
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13 BEMNAS IR T ERE

13 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

£8 Group 58 Club
HEBT in HK$ million 2013 2012 2013 2012
+tA—HBAE Cost at 1 July 1,401 1,379 - =
EMHRELRE Currency translation differences 52 22 - -
NE=tTHRRE Cost at 30 June 1,453 1,401 = =
+tA—ARE#H Accumulated amortisation at 1 July (55) (26) - -
NEE#H Amortisation for the year (29) (29) - =
B HRERE Currency translation differences 2 - - =
RA=T B RE#H Accumulated amortisation at 30 June (86) (55) - -
NE=1THREFE Net book value at 30 June 1,367 1,346 - -

AA=TREEXREATHENEE LR + 1A
HEREVFE - AP AR

The net book value at 30 June of leasehold land and land use rights under operating leases
comprised the following:

£8 Group 58 Club
HEET in HK$ million 2013 2012 2013 2012
EBBEIMNFEN Held outside Hong Kong

FEFN (TFEZEETF) Medium-term leases (10 — 50 years) 1,367 1,346 - -
1,367 1,346 - -

14 #EY%E 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
£EREE Group and Club
HEET in HK$ million 2013 2012
+tA—HBAE Cost at 1 July 35 25
ERRET Transfer from buildings - 10
BRTRESEEE Transfer to assets held for sale 4) -
BE Disposals @ B
RAZ=ZTHRAME Cost at 30 June 29 35
+tA—HRBERE Accumulated depreciation at 1 July (32) (22)
ERRET Transfer from buildings - (10)
ERTRBSEERE Transfer to assets held for sale 4 =
2E Disposals 2 =
RA=ZTHBEBITE Accumulated depreciation at 30 June (26) (32)
RAZTHEREFE Net book value at 30 June 3 3

BRENEEN-—O—Z=ZFARA=+THAR=O0O—=FA
=18 G ABYNESEREXGEN [HMEBTARN
A ETEHNMLE - MEUARRERTSHRTERS
EUEELT - TAREMEHDURNEE - REHRHPR - &
ENENLATFEEANEATNAEESRT (Z0—=
£ \EET) -

RZO—=FA=-1HH  UBKR-REBEES
HE-RREVE - AEAXZRFAAR=0O—=FNA
TR RZO—Z=ZFAA=+H ZEREVEREEH
M RERB[HCEF D ERARBSEESE -

The investment properties were revalued at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 by independent,
professionally qualified valuer Jones Lang LaSalle Limited. Valuations were based on current
prices in an active market. The investment properties are located in Hong Kong. The fair value
of the investment properties was HK$898 million (2012: HK$800 million) at the end of the
reporting period.

On 24 June, 2013, the Finance and General Purposes Committee approved the disposal of an
investment property. The transaction is expected to be completed in September 2013. The
investment property and related property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2013 was reclassified
to assets held for sale.



15 MBATIRE - ERRER

15 INVESTMENTS IN, LOANS TO AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES

£8 Group 58 Club
B in HK$ million 2013 2012 2013 2012
MEARRE - Investments in subsidiaries —
kMR BEANME Unlisted shares, at cost - = 1,140 1,140
kBN B FENERK Loans to subsidiaries - - 1,677 1,909
FEW B KB A R SR8 Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 1,763 901
FEAS T FI B A BRI HYFRIR Amounts due to subsidiaries - - (4,104) (3,694)

BB AR AENERIEIER - FEWRAE - &
REHEREHEE - ERNREEE - BEAQXVEE
EE=

FEWR B MY B A B M RR A BRI R - RBANE
ARMEHZEREFERE - SBRFIRIKA - RIS LUERNT
SHEFE - WERMEHEREBEE - BEFCENERE
BEEEQNPEERS -

FES T M8 A B FIR L BRI - RIS LUERHNTS
FRETE - WARMEHERHER - BREFURNIREE
EEAENVEEES °

BATHBARNME  TR2RIEFATNSTHER
EBBARE R BREERDERENFURARE AR
HYBREE ©

SERTEMBARIENGEUBBRE—B LT
BEE-Htt—H-

16 HFEIEFHIERIRE

The loans to subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. The
carrying amounts of the loans approximated their fair values.

The majority of the amounts due from subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. The remaining balance was unsecured, interest bearing at prevailing market
rates and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts approximated their fair values.

Amounts due to subsidiaries were unsecured, interest bearing at prevailing market rates and
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts approximated their fair values.

Amount due to subsidiaries mainly represented amounts received net of amounts paid by the
parent company on behalf of the wagering subsidiaries in the normal course of the wagering
businesses.

The principal subsidiaries of the Club are shown on pages 170 to 171 of the consolidated
financial statements.

16 INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

&8 Group 58 Club
BEBT in HK$ million 2013 2012 2013 2012
+tA—H At 1 July 103 54 - -
Fr itz A Share of profit 95 49 - -
EMHRELRE Currency translation differences 6 - - -
~A=1+H At 30 June 204 1083 - =
HEZFIERFEOT ¢ Details of the jointly controlled entity are as follows:
EREARKEANE ([FE]) FHAZWEMERERAT : EERAR M RRA SERESENBRES T
Incorporated in The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), FEEK Authorised and Effective percentage
limited by registered capital Principal activities paid up capital held by the Club indirectly
I RPREEEREMERAR REBEBE - FAEEIIR ARERTER 90%

China Sports Lottery HKJC Infotech
(Beijing) Co., Ltd

RESEQANZE  UESELANSUABERLRTE
BREERRMARARDKEIEMNES HMZGE - Eit
SEHERIEHLEEFERALRK -

B EMAAR
provision of computer technology,
technical training and
business information consultancy

RMB60,000,000

Under the joint venture agreement, none of the joint venture partners has unilateral control over
the economic activities of China Sports Lottery HKJC Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd and hence, the
Group’s interests are accounted for as a jointly controlled entity.
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16 HEIFHIFRERE (8)
REXAREFEEEZA=1THLENEEERAFRN

16 INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY (cont.)
A summary of financial information of the jointly controlled entity based on its

management

MEEREENT ¢ accounts as of 30 June is as follows:
&8 Group 5& Club

BEET in HK$ million 2013 2012 2013 2012
EEEFEN EEEFEN BEEEN FEEEN
BERESL ERED BRAESL EC R
Group’s Group’s Club’s Club’s
effective effective effective effective
interest interest interest interest
100% 90% 100% 90% - - - -
FERBEE Non-current assets 72 65 32 29 - - = =
MENEE Current assets 329 206 255 229 - - = =
nREBEE Current liabilities (174) (157) (172) (155) - - = =
Pt Equity 227 204 115 103 - - - -
Wz Income 297 267 234 211 - - = =
S Expenses 172 155 156 140 - - - -
BRFE BT Profit after taxation 106 95 55 49 - - = =

SEEELAREFERSENERYESREMIAREE -

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity.

17 REIREHS 17 LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS
&8 Group 58 Club
HEBT in HK$ million 2013 2012 2013 2012
At EKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
S Equities
ERBLM Listed in Hong Kong 1,129 1,093 1,129 1,093
8 Em Listed overseas 1,224 1,946 1,224 1,946
3k Ei Unlisted 48 48 48 48
2,401 3,087 2,401 3,087
BEXFS Debt securities
EEBLM Listed in Hong Kong 97 98 - -
1w/ Em Listed overseas 3,965 4,112 2,551 2,708
3 b Unlisted 1,285 1,472 1,159 1,234
5,347 5,682 3,710 3,942
BERE Alternative investments
w8 Em Listed overseas - 98 - 98
JFEET Unlisted 4,042 3,759 3,597 3,354
4,042 3,857 3,597 3,452
11,790 12,626 9,708 10,481
HIFRENES Funds awaiting investment 1,336 71 1,336 71
= Deposits 492 352 - -
13,618 13,049 11,044 10,552
fTESMIA (FfEk29) Derivative financial instruments (note 29) 28 (26) 28 (26)
13,646 13,023 11,072 10,526

EERBEMFNERESRERNMETHERF =
DRBRBERZ=HENAR=ZHE— (ZO—Z525588
DRUHEARNENA-)  EERSERENERRE
ZREFNREEEREE AP EERS
BTHRASHALFRAF (ZO-ZF05 B EF

RAF) »

mENEF

The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 2.78% and
3.10% for the Group and Club respectively (2012: 4.06% and 4.91% respectively). The carrying
amounts of the debt securities and deposits approximated their fair values and their weighted
average remaining maturities were 7 years and 9 years for the Group and Club respectively (2012:
7 years and 9 years respectively).



17 REHREAES (8)

17 LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS (cont.)

£8 Group 58 Club
2013 2012 2013 2012
REREASUTIIERINE : Long-term investment portfolios are
denominated in the following currencies:

=TT uUsD 65% 68% 59% 62%
BT HKD 12% 9% 14% 11%
|63 EUR 6% 11% 8% 14%
%5 GBP 5% 3% 6% 4%
H JPY 2% 2% 2% 3%
Hh &% Other currencies 10% 7% 11% 6%
100% 100% 100% 100%

HENETREMENRE  YHEBRESTEREE
SHEE ZEESRENR-ZO—=Z/—=FERIHERE
TIEEE  URERZAFEER - BER-_O0O—=FR
B=t+HEZLREHERMENER (BRERARE
HekEAESRE) AR 20 TREL -

BN ETRIFLTESAENRE » XBHHIH
Stellar Performer Global Series ( “E%#EE") &5 -
ZEFESRENR-OON/OEFENIL » URERES
AIBEK EEN-_O0O—=EXA=+HaEZESXE
LENER (BRRAREEGRERESRE) A
BAZE+EEN

18 REIAMARIE
ROANRERERLREEFESMERATN L
RPEZANEGES  HEFEREBE LM RYEN
fhETAIE A F A B AR EESE o

The investments in listed overseas equities are held under the HKJC Equity Trust Fund which was
a jointly controlled entity (“JCE”) set up during 2012/13. The principal activity of the Fund is
investment in equities. The interest of the Club in the JCE (including the long-term investment
portfolios and the Contingency Fund investments) was 45.7% as of 30 June 2013.

The majority of investments in listed overseas and unlisted debt securities are held under the
Stellar Performer Global Series (“Bond Trust”) set up during 2004/05. The principal activity of this
Bond Trust is investment in debt securities. The interest of the Club in the Bond Trust (including
the long-term investment portfolios and the Contingency Fund investments) was 45.8% as of
30 June 2013.

18 LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Long-term prepayments represented prepayments of rental for the land and property of Beijing
Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited which are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives.
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19 HihiEE 19 OTHER ASSETS
£EREE Group and Club

HEET in HK$ million 2013 2012
HinEERIBEVKMRREKRA Other assets represented pension assets of

ERINEERE the Group’s Scheme recognised in the statement of

BRFERAREEENT ! financial position which were determined as follows:

ANFPEASRE Present value of obligation 3,262 3,479

STEEENATER Fair value of Scheme assets (2,666) (2,568)
Eia Deficit 596 911
RIERMBEEE R Unrecognised actuarial losses 919 1,264
SRR RAIIBARSFERE Net pension assets in the statement of financial position (323) (353)
REBRAFTEIMNRELROT ¢ Reconciliation of the present value of

the defined benefit obligation was as follows:

tA—H At 1 July 3,479 3,122

HRE S ERENRITIRIE R Current service cost net of employee contributions 153 138

R B R Interest cost 33 69

EREXTHNENE Actual benefits paid (202) (270)

BNENSWREE (x)/ BE Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation (201) 419

BERES MK Actual employee contributions - 1
NE=tTHAMFNEANERE Present value of obligation at 30 June 3,262 3,479
FRFEEEATFEEEBHNOT ! The movement in the fair value of

Scheme assets of the year was as follows:

tA—A At 1 July 2,568 2,870

sFEIEENTESTER Expected return on Scheme assets 175 209

BERE/ (BE) Actuarial gains/(losses) 38 (330)

EEMHR Employer contributions 87 88

EEMHR Employee contributions - 1

EXfAHEANE Benefits paid (202) (270)
ANA=THWEFEEEAFEE Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2,666 2,568




19 HEfhvi&EE (&)

19 OTHER ASSETS (cont.)

%@ Group

B in HK$ million 2013 2012
ERFERFEERWRELT ¢ The amounts recognised in the income statement were as follows:

RIS BN Current service cost 153 138

R B AL Interest cost 33 69

sTEIEENTARTEIIR Expected return on Scheme assets (175) (210)

ERRNEEFEE Net actuarial losses recognised 104 25
FFABIRAMWAAEE (FEE11) Total included in staff costs (note 11) 115 22

ERANGTEEEERERAEG —_FE—THEERET
(ZO—=F . BiE—E=-TESBRT) °

The actual return on Scheme assets recognised was a gain of HK$214 million (2012: loss of
HK$120 million).

£E RS Group and Club

HEBT in HK$ million 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
RERAGEINRE Present value of

defined benefit obligation 3,262 3,479 3,122 3,046 3,047
FEEENATER Fair value of Scheme assets (2,666) (2,568) (2,870) (2,500) (2,317)
Eia Deficit 596 911 252 546 730
FEIEENAREE /(W) Experience losses/(gains)

on Scheme liabilities 44 60 27) (111) B
TEIEENER (W) / Bia Experience (gains)/losses

on Scheme assets (38) 330 (276) (121) 782

EER-O-NFENHEMHRERANA/NTEER
BT (ZO—Z=ZF: \THAFEET) °

The Group expects to contribute approximately HK$85 million for the year 2014 (2013: HK$85
million).

£E &5 Group and Club

HEET in HK$ million 2013 2012
STEIEEERE Scheme assets were comprised as follows :
BE Equities 1,482 56% 1,514 59%
EEBEFRES Fixed income securities and cash 860 32% 758 30%
HHhES Hedge funds 324 12% 296 11%
2,666 100% 2,568 100%

FRANEERERRS  FREBEIZ-HN
(ZO—=% BEoz—) ' stHEENRBBATER
RREAZE (ZO—ZF  BoZtHR)  MFS
AR RPBTLERAZFL2W (ZO—ZF : BD
zZm) e

SEAEENRPASEHRUERTREBRETERE
ENFERREE - RE - EEESREPESHAETT
EEGES ST IR S SEE B

The principal actuarial assumptions used were: discount rate 1.90% (2012: 1.00%), long-term
expected rate of return on Scheme assets 7.00% (2012: 7.50%) and long-term expected rate of
salary increases 4.00% (2012: 4.00%).

The long-term expected return on Scheme assets was determined by considering the expected
returns available on the assets under the current investment policy. Expected returns on equities,
fixed income securities and hedge funds reflected long-term average rates of return.
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20 EBESEE

20 DEBT SECURITIES PORTFOLIO

£EREE Group and Club

B in HK$ million 2013 2012

AEHENKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
BRES Debt securities

EEBLH Listed in Hong Kong 37 -

FEm Unlisted 430 503

467 503

RAFEEZERBRIIRNEMBEEE Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 23

467 526

SEREEAENESESNINEFIERIZEE D
Z-EHEN(ZO—Z=F : Boaz=-&Ht—) - KEHK
BEMENEREESNRAEEEEATEBEESE M
HEMEFIRTEHREIA—F (ZO—=F : —F) -
BERESF LB THETIE -

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rate of 2.78% for the Group and

Cl

ub (2012: 2.71%). The carrying amounts of the debt securities approximated their fair values

and their weighted average remaining maturities were 1 year for the Group and Club (2012:

1

year). The debt securities were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) or United States

Dollars (“USD”).

21 HimehEE 21 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
&8 Group 58 Club
HEBT in HK$ million 2013 2012 2013 2012
HitREEE Other current assets
=& Inventories 106 97 43 41
BR R EWRIE (FFE34.1.c.ii) Loans and receivables (note 34.1.c.ii) 365 317 271 250
TR Prepayments 478 466 206 175
949 880 520 466

EEREENERREBRFEFIREE2ZE Tt
RAAZET= (ZO—ZF2RREIZLTRE
Dzttt) BUBREE - HBUEMERIRTE -

22 EHMER  RITER HEREpEHES

(@) KERSENERFROMEFIIERRE 25
BRAPZ—HENAER—ENAN(ZO—ZF55%
SH-ERZE-N) KERFSENERFRN
SREEEEANFPEEMRS  MEMEFIERTH
RoBB—BE-—+t=-AR—BZ=-R (ZO0—=F
DRIRETARBRATNE) - BEFERUET
ETHARKEIFE -

BE-O—=FXA=tHL SENETHEL
AEFERZRNRTEFOSEESRRSEENA
BE+HEEATEET (ZO—=F: +—ENOThH
BEBT)  UARBERERFE  UWEHEIIE

BB o

EERFENRERASEBYEETNEATE
BEETHEREEES (ZO—ZF  tARtF=
BEBT)  WEFREMARRENSEHE &
BEREE24 -

57% and 72% of the loans and receivables were denominated in HKD for the Group and Club
respectively (2012: 70% and 77% respectively), the rest of the balances were denominated in
other currencies.

22 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES, CASH AND OTHER LIQUID FUNDS
(@) The weighted average effective interest rates on short-term deposits were 1.97% and 1.88%

for the Group and Club respectively (2012: 2.17% and 2.14% respectively). The carrying
amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their weighted average
remaining maturities were 112 days and 102 days for the Group and Club respectively (2012:
75 days and 69 days respectively). The short-term deposits were denominated in HKD, USD
or Renminbi (“RMB”).

As at 30 June 2013, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$1,590 million
(2012: HK$1,149 million) denominated in RMB and USD which were held by certain subsidiaries
with bank accounts operating in the PRC where exchange controls apply.

Cash and cash equivalents included HK$1,995 million of customer funds for the Group and
Club (2012: HK$1,673 million) that were matched by liabilities of an equal value as disclosed
in note 24.



23 EHMER

23 SHORT-TERM LOANS

£8 Group 58 Club
B in HK$ million 2013 2012 2013 2012
EIEWER Unsecured loans 120 141 - -
L ER R HRITRRER - BHEAER - £F=A  The above were unsecured short-term revolving bank loans with maturities of six months and

BAOZAEZNZERAHN A (ZO—=F : BO2EH
ARELRFENT) - ERNREEEEE A FEERES -
BRUANRBEIE -

FANERFEXHAREERT (ZO—ZF 1 N1
BEBTRT) -

24 FEfTER R TEULFRIE

interest rates were between 5.04% and 5.85% per annum (2012: between 5.60% and 5.85% per
annum). The carrying amounts of the loans approximated their fair values. The loans were
denominated in RMB.

The loan interest expense incurred for the year was HK$6 million (2012: HK$9 million).

24 CREDITORS AND RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

£8 Group 58 Club
HEBT in HK$ million 2013 2012 2013 2012
B ZEMRR R ERFE Trade payables and receipts in advance 3,812 3,228 2,560 2,054
HihpE(FBRFA R EFTRRIE Other payables and accruals 1,578 1,397 956 809

5,390 4,625 3,516 2,863

EERFENEZRARIRBLREE  BF T EN
THEBEBINEERFER (ZO—=F : +x8t
T=ZEEER)  WERBREBEERERREEEY
AEEFRBNISBREE S - SBERME22 -

25 BIEBIIE (BfF)/ EE
FREFAFBARRRARELSE (BF)/ EEEB
RHESBERNT :

Trade payables and receipts in advance included HK$1,995 million of customer accounts’ deposits
for the Group and Club (2012: HK$1,673 million). This was offset by an equivalent amount of
customer funds held which was included in cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in note 22.

25 DEFERRED TAX (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS
The components of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets recognised in the statement of financial position,
and the movements during the year were as follows:

£ M Group 5% Club
DR BERIK DR BERIK
HERER BRIEA kR BRI
Accelerated Employee Accelerated Employee
depreciation retirement Hity ko) depreciation retirement Hity ko)
BEBT in HK$ million allowances benefit cost Others Total allowances benefit cost Others Total
—O—=%tA—H At 1 July 2012 (108) (35) (1) (144) (103) (35) 1 (137)
(f08)/BAMKEE (Charged)/credited to
income statement (70) 5 17) (82) (61) 5 - (56)
—O—=%xA=tH At 30 June 2013 (178) (30) (18) (226) (164) (30) 1 (193)
—O——%+tA—H At 1 July 2011 (69) - 5 (64) (66) - 1 (65)
HBWEE Charged to
income statement (89) (35) (6) (80) 87) (35) - (72)
—O—=fxA=t+H At 30 June 2012 (108) (35) (1) (144) (103) (35) 1 (137)
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26 f#f& 26 RESERVES
£[@ Group 5® Club
REBHEFHE REBHFHE
REMHE  Investment EREE REME  Investment
Accumulated*  revaluation Exchange Bz Accumulated  revaluation b
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve reserve Total reserves reserve Total
—O—=f+tHB—H At 1 July 2012 23,312 (11) 87 23,388 19,184 (135) 19,049
FRRBEER Retained surplus
for the year 2,245 = = 2,245 1,615 = 1,615
B HRERE Currency translation
differences - - 96 96 = = =
aEHE Deficit on revaluation
MR EENEGEE of available-for-sale
financial assets - (23) - (23) - (5) (5)
At ERKEE Realised losses on disposal
HERNERBRBERREE and impairment of
B ERARRE available-for-sale financial
assets reclassified
to income statement - 238 - 238 - 238 238
- 215 - 215 - 233 233
—O—=%xA=tH At 30 June 2013 25,557 204 183 25,944 20,799 98 20,897
—O——%+tA—H At 1 July 2011 20,859 391 78 21,328 17,363 295 17,658
FRIRBEER Retained surplus
for the year 2,453 = = 2,453 1,821 = 1,821
B HRERE Currency translation
differences - - 9 9 - - —
A E Deficit on revaluation
MR EENE-EE of available-for-sale
financial assets - (179) - (179) - (207) (207)
AR HENKERE Realised gains on disposal
HERNE 2B a of available-for-sale
B ERARRE financial assets
reclassified to
income statement - (2283) - (223) - (223) (223)
- (402) - (402) - (430) (430)
—O—=fxA=t+H At 30 June 2012 23,312 (11) 87 23,388 19,184 (135) 19,049

*REERARETRE  EEAKHEALKE TR
FEFFENRLBES 2 TRAEERBLARS  HE
ZARENEREIIMEANE D 2B TRIL - EE
BRLABESKEERERRER - JALURHRFEE

BINEARYIRFT T

RZO—=FARA=1+H ZEBHLAEESE-Tt
BHEBLT (ZO—ZH:—FT—@F&88BT) -

losses, to increase capital or to expand the business.

* The Group is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit from PRC entities as reported in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC to the statutory reserve
fund until the balance of such fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserve
fund can only be used upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset against accumulated

As at 30 June 2013, the statutory reserve fund amounted to HK$27 million (2012:
HK$11 million).




27 ERES

27 CONTINGENCY FUND

£E &S Group and Club

REEMFEE
HEeite Investment
Fund revaluation wE
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total
—O—=—%tAH—H At 1 July 2012 11,630 195 11,825
ERRWREK Transfer from income statement 1,319 - 1,319
AR HENKEENEMER Deficit on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - (283) (283)
A ER R E E HE R Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale
EERUREFHBRAMEER financial assets reclassified to income statement - 3) (3)
- (286) (286)
—O—=%x~A=+H At 30 June 2013 12,949 (91) 12,858
—O——%tA—H At 1 July 2011 11,436 1,052 12,488
ERRkWRE Transfer from income statement 194 - 194
AR HENKEENEMER Deficit on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets - (572) (572)
A ER & E HE R Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale
ERREWNEEHN S ERANGEE financial assets reclassified to income statement - (285) (285)
- (857) (857)
—O—=%xA=+H At 30 June 2012 11,630 195 11,825
BRESRERK ! Represented by:
£EREE Group and Club
TEET in HK$ million 2013 2012
ERESKRE Contingency Fund investments:
AEHENKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
S Equities
EEBLm Listed in Hong Kong 2,709 2,650
V=2 k) Listed overseas 2,938 4,690
5,647 7,340
BERES Debt securities
V=2 k) Listed overseas 2,838 2,772
L™ Unlisted 1,353 1,334
4,191 4,106
HERENES Funds awaiting investment 2,986 395
12,824 11,841
BRESKRE — TEERT A (FEE29) Contingency Fund investments —
Derivative financial instruments: (note 29) 34 (16)
12,858 11,825

SEREEAENERESNINEFIERIZEE D
ZEE——(ZO—Z=F: BHaZOEELN) - £FEK
BEMENERESNRAEEREATEBEESE - m
HEFHOSRTHRIAAE (ZO—=F : LF) -

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rate of 3.21% for the Group
and Club (2012: 4.78%). The carrying amounts of the debt securities approximated their fair
values and their weighted remaining average maturities were 9 years for the Group and Club (2012:

9 years).
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27 ERESE (8

27 CONTINGENCY FUND (cont.)

£EREE Group and Club
2013 2012

ERESREUTIEERE Contingency Fund investments are denominated

in the following currencies:

Epv UsD 39% 47%
BT HKD 24% 24%
/¢ EUR 8% 12%
HEE GBP 8% 4%
H JPY 3% 6%
Hih g Other currencies 18% 7%
100% 100%

HEMETREMENIRE  THERESEREES
BE ZESRER-O—=/—=FERINHERESF
B UREREATEERE - FER_O0—=5F7A
ST HEZRREZEFERAFNER (BERBKRER
ERERESRE) AES 2N +HEL -

HENETRIFLTESAENRE » KBHHH
Stellar Performer Global Series (“f&%&E&”) &F4H -
ZEFESENR-OON/OEFENYL » URERES
AFTEER EEN-_O0—Z=ZEXA=+HaEZESXE
SFENER (BERMREASREREESRE) A
BAZHE+TEEN -

The investments in listed overseas equities are held under the HKJC Equity Trust Fund which was
a jointly controlled entity (“JCE”) set up during 2012/13. The principal activity of the Fund is
investment in equities. The interest of the Club in the JCE (including the long-term investment
portfolios and the Contingency Fund investments) was 45.7% as of 30 June 2013.

The majority of investments in listed overseas and unlisted debt securities are held under the
Stellar Performer Global Series (“Bond Trust”) set up during 2004/05. The principal activity of this
Bond Trust is investment in debt securities. The interest of the Club in the Bond Trust (including
the long-term investment portfolios and the Contingency Fund investments) was 45.8% as of

30 June 2018.

28 BRES 28 DEVELOPMENT FUND
%@ Group 5& Club
REEHERE REBHFHE
E&4&8  Investment He#8  Investment
Fund  revaluation Fet] Fund  revaluation wE
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total balance reserve Total
—O—=—%tAH—H At 1 July 2012 1,033 4) 1,029 - - =
ERRWREK Transfer from
income statement 53 - 53 = = =
AHHENKEENEHRER Surplus on revaluation
of available-for-sale
financial assets - 11 11 - - -
A HER A E L ER Realised losses on disposal
EERBEENIBERAKEER of available-for-sale
financial assets
reclassified to
income statement - 2 2 - - -
- 13 13 - - -
—O—=%x~A=+H At 30 June 2013 1,086 9 1,095 - - -
—O——%tA—H At 1 July 2011 1,015 6 1,021 - - -
ERRkWREK Transfer from
income statement 18 - 18 - - -
AR HENKEENEMRER Deficit on revaluation
of available-for-sale
financial assets - (10) (10) - - -
—O—=%xA=+H At 30 June 2012 1,033 4) 1,029 - - -

BRRESHNIKEE - BIARBKREASZR -

The financial assets of the Development Fund are included in long-term investment portfolios.
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29 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

£EREE Group and Club
Hh#% & Other investments

BRESRE REBBREHEE
Contingency Fund Long-term Hith ko)
investments investment portfolios Other Total
&E afE BE afE &E & &E afE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BEBT in HK$ million (note 27) (note 17)
EHESFEN Forward contracts on bonds 1 () 1 3) - - 2 (6)
EHINESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts 43 (29) 42 (26) 19 7) 104 (62)
HE Futures 33 (18) 20 (14) - - 53 (32)
HifE Options 1 (1) 1 1) = = 2 @
a5 Swaps 19 (12) 22 (14) - - 41 (26)
—O—=%x~A=+H At 30 June 2013 97 (63) 86 (58) 19 (7) 202 (128)
AHWMT ¢ Analysed as:
FEDED Current 85 (46) 73 (39) 19 ) 177 92)
IEREN D Non-current 12 (17) 13 (19) - - 25 (36)
97 (63) 86 (58) 19 (7) 202 (128)
EHESFEN Forward contracts on bonds 2 - 2 - - - 4 =
EHNESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts 11 (31) 12 (36) - - 23 (67)
BE Futures 8 () 3 2 - - 11 @)
HAfE Options 3 () 3 2 - - 6 4)
1550 Swaps 14 (19) 17 23) - ) 31 (43)
—O—=%x~A=+H At 30 June 2012 38 (54) 37 (63) - (1) 75 (118)
AHWMT ¢ Analysed as:
FBED Current 22 (36) 18 42) - () 40 (79)
IEREN D Non-current 16 (18) 19 (1) - - 35 (39)
38 (54) 37 (63) - (1) 75 (118)
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30 MEFHIE BIEREERELEZBHURERETF 30 RECONCILIATION OF SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION, CHARITABLE DONATIONS TO
ERELRERESHNBMESLEEHMELNFIR  CHARITIES TRUST, TRANSFER TO CONTINGENCY FUND AND DEVELOPMENT FUND TO NET

160

SHR CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
%@ Group

HEBT in HK$ million 2013 2012
HIRBIE - BIERSEAESEZERBIUR Surplus before taxation, charitable donations to Charities Trust,

EERTERESRERESAINRE transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund 5,975 4,890
PG HEIESI B EREF] Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity (95) (49)
HETMHBENKEEN (BER)/BE (Surplus)/deficit on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets (1,855) 142
BB s Dividend income (293) (173)
B Y as Interest income (490) (509)
FE X H Interest expense 6 9
PTESBMIANTFEE/ (W) Net losses/(gains) of derivative financial instruments 116 (204)
HEREMERER Gain on disposal of investment property (18) (883)
HEME - RERSEMEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1 =
W - RIERBMITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,029 897
Y2~ RRABEREBEMRE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 1 5
At EN K EERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 292 -
EEESEH Movement in working capital

FEEM Increase in inventories 9) )

BRI EWGRIEIE N Increase in loans and receivables (32) 9)

FEATFRIEE AN Increase in prepayments (10) (93)

FEATBRFRIE AN Increase in creditors 596 319
REFEARERD Decrease in long-term prepayments 31 30
Hib&ERD / (38h0) Decrease/(increase) in other assets 30 (66)
EETBMEENRS Cash generated from operations 5,275 4,297

31 F&iE 31 COMMITMENTS
31.1 BEREIE 31.1 Capital commitments
REBIARGREENERZHWOT ¢ Capital expenditures not yet incurred at the end of the reporting period were as follows:
%@ Group

HEBT in HK$ million 2013 2012
BRI L EHERELEE Contracted but not provided for 1,915 1,538
ERUEBRTZEN Authorised but not contracted for 2,912 2,021

4,827 3,559
31.2 AERE 31.2 Lease commitments

RAA=TH  REFTTEENEEBRIRE - HRA

XAHNREEEEZRNT

As at 30 June, the total future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases were as follows:

%@ Group
BEET in HK$ million 2013 2012
preieal Buildings
R—FR Within one year 89 81
REZZFERFR In the second to fifth year inclusive 77 110
RERFE After the fifth year 30 35
196 226




32 BHEE
EEAEMESRKRY T —BAERAF IR —HEREM
et 8 o WA EIIRIE (RERARTT EURBI) 7 -
YHBVEEAEE - ltHh - KEETESE-HEENE
BB LRSS - IR BIRE CREIE I EEST
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33 HAMEALZRS
HREEEERRETERETETEESFTA  UR
ESSEAMNORESRABGERARNNESE YR
FERAREERHNE  FULEEHERES BEFS
EBEMNABRESEARGERATARESEXREER
DRI EEE -

SEEAFRHEEREMEBEALTDETNRS
M

33.1 EEEH
FA - EEREHRTEEXERY - 0ETESRRE
BERAT=G8ET (ZO— = ATEERT) -

33.2 HEEGIEEATELNKES

EEEFAR L RPREEREESRMAR D R WEIER T
HUBRSEATERTREREREN\EEET (Z0
—ZF BB -TLtEBRBIRE) -

33.3 HAMRY
EEZEBTENLR  KE=HFTEXK BEEEY -
REREE - URAEERS BEXBHAATSRAN
DHRE - NAEERY - ERRE - ARBAERS
XE URSEBNEEMRERAMEG - EERALN
B REEERREXBUIE VR BRAERENE
2

BREBK: EEABUREEEE 905K
SRBNIRIER - ERNSERS - EEFABRZE
BHEE R - EEEHARKHEAH - AIRRAE
KREERERR 2R ABSEY - EBREY - URA
BRRE-HEIREBR A -

334 TEEEEHMH

EEBEFEMESEREE  YHEERZSSHHERE -
EZREEREEENERBERSHRERESHNE
A WEARETEERHER EHEEZESREEEE
BEHEE  URESREE - HTHBEEMAKEN
REENEL SENTIEEEENEESRUKATT
BAS - WM (ZO—=%F 1 \1) $I1TREN®
(ZO0—=%F W) REARNEEZES  F5BR
RERET-HE+=H-

32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme and a defined contribution scheme. Members of
both schemes are full-time employees of the Group. Both schemes are registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and administered by independent trustees. The
Group also participates in a master trust MPF scheme registered under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme is operated by two independent service providers.

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Club is related to the Trust, The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited
(“KSCGC”) and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) as the Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees
of the Trust and the Directors of KSCGC and CPS.

The following transactions were carried out by the Group with the jointly controlled entity and
other related parties:

33.1 Management expenses
During the year, the Group recharged management expenses of HK$53 million (2012: HK$50
million) to the Trust for provision of administrative and support services.

33.2 Income from a jointly controlled entity

During the year, the Group received software license fee income and consultancy fee income of
HK$50 million and HK$8 million respectively (2012: HK$17 million and nil respectively) from China
Sports Lottery HKJC Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

33.3 Shared services

The Group operates three primary businesses - horse race betting, football betting and the Mark
Six lottery through separate legal entities. In order to maximise the Group’s operational efficiencies
and cost economies, these businesses share the use of the Club’s established common selling
and distribution channels, corporate management services and infrastructure facilities, as well as
back office support. The Group adopts a policy to fulfil its objectives of financial independence
with no cross-subsidy amongst its different businesses.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and overall financial results are maintained in the
separate books of accounts of each business. Business specific revenue and expenses are directly
accounted for in those business results. The Group’s expenses on the shared services are charged
to each main line of business of horse race betting, football betting and the Mark Six lottery at
cost plus an appropriate mark-up.

33.4 Key management compensation

The Hong Kong Jockey Club is governed by a Board of Stewards with assistance from a Board
of Management. The Stewards are responsible for the overall policy and direction of the Group
and its funds as a whole, and have the power to effect and carry out the objects of the Group.
The Board of Management is responsible for the operational management of the Group and is
overseen by the Board of Stewards. To align with the disclosures of other major institutions in
Hong Kong, key management consists of the Board of Stewards and the Board of Management
which comprises the Chief Executive Officer, nine (2012: eight) Executive Directors and two (2012:
two) Directors, as detailed on pages 12 to 13 of the Annual Report.
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33 EFMAEALZRS (F)
334 IEREEEHFH (F)

s

BZEEZHEFRANETMS B=MED :
(a) EXH=
EAHSEFEERTS RERAEMZBENBNRIE o

(b) BRI 2
ERMERBEARRNEBRETITRM -

(c) B 1hEF
RABFIEEEARAESHRIRERNG BT
WimE - BT HEEREEBE  BEIAANER
RARBEH - EXARERE RN SIGHHRNARNE
HERRESTHIEE -

EEZEERREFANEFHOT

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont.)

33.4 Key management compensation (cont.)

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the years
under review.

The Board of Management’s remuneration consists of the following three components:

(a) Basic compensation
Basic compensation consists of base salary, housing and other allowances and benefits
in kind.

(b) Performance-related compensation
This represents discretionary payments depending on individual performance and the performance
of the Group.

(c) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits relate to the Group’s contribution to retirement funds or gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions. For purposes of meaningful comparison, gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions are disclosed on an accrual basis, notwithstanding the contractual
entitlement and date of payment.

The remuneration for the Board of Management during the year was as follows:

HEET in HK$ million 2013 2012
HINE < Basic compensation 64 55
BEREHMPMNE Performance-related compensation 25 22
RIREF Retirement benefits 15 12
104 89
FMRBIMT The remuneration fell in the following bands:
AE Number of individuals 2013 2012
E2R O E Remuneration bands
1,000,001 T £ 2,000,000 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 - 1
4,000,001 & 7t £5,000,0007& 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 1 1
5,000,001 /& 7t 26,000,000 T HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 3 2
6,000,001 & 7t 27,000,000 7T HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 2 2
7,000,001 7 7T £ 8,000,000 7T HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 2 2
8,000,001 & 7t £9,000,0007& 7T HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,000,000 3 2
9,000,001 &7t £ 10,000,000 7T HK$9,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 1 1
17,000,001 7T £ 18,000,000 7T HK$17,000,001 to HK$18,000,000 - 1
18,000,001 7T £ 19,000,000 T HK$18,000,001 to HK$19,000,000 1 -
13 12
RERABESENETEEEEAS Key management left the Club before end of year 1 1

12 11
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

34.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s investment activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, equity price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk exposures.

The Group’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Treasury Department of the Club and external professional
fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Treasury Department of the Club under investment
policies and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Finance and General Purposes
Committee. Investment constraints and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-
specific restrictions and guidelines are set according to the investment objectives of each fund
to control risks of the investments.

(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating
to investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in HKD, USD or RMB. The HKD
is pegged to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. Majority
of RMB holdings are to meet future committed charitable donations and core operation
requirements in PRC. The remaining currency exposure arises from globally diversified
investments in equities and bonds.

The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major
currencies had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus would have increased/decreased
as follows:

£8 Group

2013 2012
EEWRTY HERKRBER W EEBERTY HFEARBE
ERiad:d) BENHE B BENEE
TEEEIEE/ E5 Effect on (BE#EE/ #55 Effect on
If currency post-tax If currency post-tax
strengthened/ surplus for  strengthened/ surplus for
BEBT in HK$ million weakened by the year weakened by the year
AR RMB 5% 140 5% 146
Bz EUR 5% 33 5% 29
HEE GBP 5% 15 5% 3
H JPY 5% 11 5% 24

5 Club

2013 2012
EEWRTY  HERKRBER EEBERTY HFEARBEZ
ERiad:y) BENHE B BENEE
TEEEIE/ E5 Effect on (BE#EE/ #55 Effect on
If currency post-tax If currency post-tax
strengthened/ surplus for strengthened/ surplus for
BEBT in HK$ million weakened by the year weakened by the year
AR RMB 5% 130 5% 137
Bz EUR 5% 33 5% 29
HEE GBP 5% 15 5% 3
H JPY 5% 11 5% 24
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(a) Market risk (cont.)
(ii) Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in equity prices. The Group is exposed
to equity price risk as the value of its equity investments will decline if equity prices fall. These
investments are classified as available-for-sale financial assets in the consolidated and Club’s
statements of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective equity instruments had been

5% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s investment revaluation
surplus included within total equity would have increased/decreased by HK$614 million (2012:
HK$570 million) as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This can
be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial
asset will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to both
fair value and cash flow interest rate risks as the Group has significant investments that are
interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if there
had been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus for the year would have been HK$56 million higher (2012:
HK$46 million). The investment revaluation surplus included within total equity would have been
approximately HK$245 million lower (2012: HK$243 million) in response to the general increase
in interest rates.

The Group controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-HKD/USD/RMB
exposure. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s China operations is
managed primarily through forward contracts and borrowings denominated in RMB. Equity price
risk is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and by securities.
Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing across a
spectrum of fixed and floating rate instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as
they fall due. In addition, the Group may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price close
to fair value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid
financial markets and instruments.

The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting
the amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that all
liabilities due and known funding requirements can be met.

The non-derivative financial liabilities and gross-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Group
and Club as at 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual
maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows:
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
34.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(b) ZEE LA () (b) Liquidity risk (cont.)
£8 Group
2013 2012
Z@ARUT =Z@BAZE—F —FHE ZEARUT =Z@BAZE—F —FHE
Upto >3 months Over et Upto >3 months Over aEE
BEBT in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
FITEHEE Non-derivative
financial liabilities
HHEIER Short-term loans - 120 - 120 116 25 - 141
FETBRR Creditors 4,625 335 - 4,960 4,028 216 = 4,244
LUERREELEN Gross-settled derivative
PTHEBEEE financial liabilities 85 7 36 128 75 4 39 118
4,710 462 36 5,208 4,219 245 39 4,503
58 Club
2013 2012
Z@ARUAT =Z@BAZE—F —FHE ZEARUT =Z@BAZE—F —FHE
Upto >3 months Over et Upto >3 months Over aEa
BEBT in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
FITEHEE Non-derivative
financial liabilities
FETBRR Creditors 3,017 307 - 3,324 2,539 187 = 2,726
EAFHEAR Amounts due to
HIFRIE subsidiaries 4,104 - - 4,104 3,694 - - 3,694
LUEREELEN Gross-settled derivative
PTHEBEEE financial liabilities 85 7 36 128 75 4 39 118
7,206 314 36 7,556 6,308 191 39 6,538

RZO—=Fx~A=+H0 KEKEEMEENARFER
REMNESHNBRSEEEELEAST EBRETAEE
BT (ZO—ZF . ATAEBLFEHEESBT) - TR
HEEREEEZ-_O— =X A=1+HLER=0—=
FEARA=ZTHLEWARFERIMESHEL D > SLL
BHRBRBELEE  YRERTEHNEHAE S EEH
PRAR - TRABEENRBEASHARTERSRE &
FERBEMBAMREAINRDEE (AHE) RE -

As at 30 June 2013, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts held by the Group and Club were HK$6,156 million (2012: HK$6,675 million). The table
below analyses the Group and Club’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30
June 2013 and 2012 that would be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based
on their remaining contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are contractual
undiscounted cash flows, which are different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the
consolidated and Club’s statements of financial position.

£E RS Group and Club

2013 2012
=@EASUT =@BBEZE—F ZEARUT =@AZE—F
Upto >3 months “wEE Upto >3 months wEE
BEBT in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year Total
EHNESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts
piitas] Outflows (5,558) (598) (6,156) (6,279) (396) (6,675)
A Inflows 5,598 600 6,198 6,236 395 6,631
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing
to perform its contractual obligations in full when due. It arises mainly from the Group’s deposit
placements, debt securities and derivative transactions.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification and deposits are only placed with financial institutions with good credit standing.
Credit limits are established to control the overall exposure to each authorised counterparty based
on its credit ratings and financial strength. Counterparty credit exposures are measured according
to the risk nature of financial products involved in the transaction.

(i) Exposure to credit risk

As at 30 June 2013, the Group and Club’s maximum exposure to the credit risk of financial
assets as defined in note 2.8 approximated their carrying amounts in the consolidated and
Club’s statements of financial position.

(i) Financial assets that were past due but not impaired

As at 30 June 20183, the trade receivables included in loans and receivables that were past due
but not determined to be impaired were HK$74 million and HK$17 million for the Group and
Club respectively (2012: HK$59 million and HK$9 million respectively). The overall impact of
trade receivables on the consolidated and Club’s financial statements is insignificant because
the Group’s principal businesses are transacted in cash with customers. The trade receivables
mainly relate to the Membership business where the credit risks are assumed by a licensed
bank under an affinity card agreement. All the receivables are due within one year.

34.2 Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to
— provide a variety of world-class sporting entertainment to the community, while making
contributions in the form of duties, taxes and charitable donations, and
— support the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group monitors its capital which is same as the total equity shown in its statement of
financial position to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the form of
donations through the Trust.
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

34.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure for financial instruments that are measured at fair value by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
financial instruments.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar financial instruments,
or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis) in
which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

The financial assets classified as level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of alternative
investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued based on information
derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers
and considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The following table presents the Group’s financial instruments that were measured at fair value
as at 30 June 2013:

£8 Group
BEBT in HK$ million W5l Level 1 W5l Level 2 7 Level 3 44 %8 Total
&E Assets
BERESRE Contingency Fund investments
AR EMEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BRE Equities 5,647 - - 5,647
BEEEE Debt securities = 4,191 = 4,191
PTESmMIA Derivative financial instruments 33 64 - 97
REREAS Long-term investment portfolios
AR EMEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
[ Equities 2,353 - 48 2,401
BEEEE Debt securities = 5,347 = 5,347
BERE Alternative investments - - 4,042 4,042
PTESmMIA Derivative financial instruments 20 66 - 86
BREEFEE Debt securities portfolio
AR EMEEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BREFS Debt securities - 467 - 467
Hithig & Other investments
PTESmMIA Derivative financial instruments - 19 - 19
8f& Liabilities
TEE€@MITE Derivative financial instruments
HERESRE Contingency Fund investments (18) (45) - (63)
REREHSE Long-term investment portfolios (14) (44) - (58)
HiiR&E Other investments - ) - 7
8,021 10,058 4,090 22,169
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34 BBRKRERE (&) 34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
34.3 AR EEM (&) 34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)
TREATM-O—-FENA=THEUAFEEENE The following table presents the Group’s financial instruments that were measured at fair value

168

EemMIA: as at 30 June 2012:
£8 Group
BEBT in HK$ million W5l Level 1 W5l Level 2 #&5l Level 3 #%8 Total
BE Assets
BERESRE Contingency Fund investments
A HERKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
[ Equities 7,340 - - 7,340
BEEEE Debt securities = 4,106 = 4,106
THESHmIA Derivative financial instruments 8 30 - 38
REREAS Long-term investment portfolios
A HERKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
BE Equities 3,039 - 48 3,087
BEEEE Debt securities = 5,682 = 5,682
BERE Alternative investments 98 - 3,759 3,857
THESHmMIA Derivative financial instruments 3 34 - 37
BEEHES Debt securities portfolio
A HERKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
BERES Debt securities - 503 - 503
RATFEEZERBRYIRN Other financial assets at
Hihgg&ERE fair value through profit or loss - 23 - 23
=L Liabilities
fTESRTI A Derivative financial instruments
BERESRE Contingency Fund investments @ (52) - (54)
REREHESE Long-term investment portfolios 2 (61) - (63)
HAtpir & Other investments - (1) - (1)
10,484 10,264 3,807 24,555
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
34.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)
During the years of 2013 and 2012, there were no significant transfers of financial instruments
among the three levels of fair value hierarchy classifications.

The movements of the balance of financial instruments measured at fair value based on Level
3 were as follows:

%@ Group
HEBT in HK$ million 2013 2012
tA—H At 1 July 3,807 2,935
TEUTHRRERH (F58)/ WEE5E Total (losses)/gains recognised in
LVEnE. Income statement (267) -
2HENER Statement of comprehensive income 423 (32)
BA Purchases 779 1,273
HE Sales (652) (369)
~A=1+H At 30 June 4,090 3,807
FRFTARSERLIERFIRER Total losses for the year included in income statement and
RUREASRBNEISEEE presented in surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios (267) =
ERPRISENEEREE Total losses for the year included in income statement
RERFARERLIMERFRER for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period
REBREASBRNEEEE and presented in surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios (292) =

35 BHRMEEE
MEER=O—=Ft ABIB2013FEEH (B7]) &
PIESR AP S ERHSEREMENEEERNT

EA¥
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BE %5
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35 EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Legislative Council approved the Betting Duty (Amendment Bill) 2013 in July 2013. The key
changes to the betting duty provisions are as follows:

Inbound commingled bets

Previously, the betting duty on non-local inbound commingled bets was charged at the progressive
betting duty rates on net stake receipts with a discount rate as stipulated in the Betting Duty
Ordinance. Under the Amendment Bill, no betting duty will be levied on the non-local bets managed
in the Club’s commingled pools.

Outbound commingled bets

Previously, local bets on non-local races in separate pools were subject to betting duty at
progressive rates in the same manner as local bets placed on local races in accordance with the
Betting Duty Ordinance. Under the Amendment Bill, a flat betting duty rate at 72.5% on net stake
receipts subject to certain deductions will be applied to local bets on non-local races in either
separate or commingled pools.

Guarantee

Under the Amendment Bill, the Club will guarantee to the Hong Kong SAR Government that betting
duty arising from Hong Kong bets on non-local races will be no less than HK$175 million per
season for three seasons from 2013/14 onwards.
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MIBAT
RZO—=%A<A=1+H EENEEHBEQLARAEHE
BEREANERE
FEEK ERTRBZRAZMESR HiZ i3
EEBAMEKY  FE2EHEFN
BROBRAE] :
EEERESHEYERAT reBSHELER “RERESR—BTNEERR G 100
EEESRRELERAT e RIRIERER —ERER BTN BERERAG 100
EEERRSFERAT RERNETEEEK —BEERER—BINEERRKRHG 100
EES28EKERAR EEEEEEEENHERERIE —BERER BTN ERRS 100
EBESE (K1) ARAT ERETRNBERGTENEEA MRER BTN ERRS 100
HREERAR EEEEGRENEL —TERSR —BTHZBERRKS 100
HAREEEEERAT EEEHERREERAR —BRER—BTHZBERRS 100
BEBENERK
EEEREKARBRAT BESEEINERRE —ERER BTN BERERS 100
EEEREKAR (RE) BRAF BESBEERNERRE AERSR—EATHSBERR G 100
BEREESIRERRAT :
EBEEE (EE) ARATF REEBESSETERBEENRBEAR - 100
BELEEEESSMERATANKRE
EEREAMEY EE2EHEN
BROBRAE] :
HKJC Reinsurance Limited ARENERETRRERE TZEBRBR—ETHNRHG 100
TERZENREFIEFMET
BE2EHENGFMEREGRAT :
TFREBEESMERAT EEEHEEE WX HEERELR ATREEET 100
T REREERMNERERAT 12 (4 5B SRR 1 % BR A A9 3 91 3 3% I A R AR A —TEER 100
ENEREEEESINIRERAT ERLEE R L& B IHIARS AREB+HEENTET 100
FIEREERIMBEERERAT 12 4 5B SRR 1 % R A A9 5 91 3 B8 I A R AR A% —HBXTT 100
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SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Club’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2013:

Issued and fully paid up

Effective percentage
held by the Club

Principal activities share capital / registered capital Directly  Indirectly
Incorporated in Hong Kong, limited
by share capital and wholly owned:
HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited operates the horse race betting business 200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
HKJC Football Betting Limited operates the football betting business 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
HKJC Lotteries Limited operates the Mark Six lottery business 1,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
The Jockey Club Membership manages Members’ social and 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
Services Limited recreational facilities
The Hong Kong Jockey Club acts as administrator for staff 2 ordinary shares of HK$10 each 100
(Managers) Limited retirement benefits scheme
HKJC Racing Club Limited manages the Racing Club’s operations 10,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
The Racing Club manages the HKJC Racing Club 10,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
Horse Management Limited Limited’s horse related activities
HKJC Business Ventures Limited holds the equity interests of the Group’s 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
overseas business ventures
HKJC Business Ventures holds the equity interests of the Group’s 500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100
(China) Limited business ventures in China
Limited by guarantee and
wholly controlled:
The Hong Kong Jockey Club acts as nominee for selected projects - 100
(Charities) Limited and holds investments in the Beijing
Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse
Limited, on behalf of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club
Incorporated in Bermuda, limited by
share capital and wholly owned:
HKJC Reinsurance Limited insures the Group against certain 120,000 shares of US$1 each 100
risks and exposures
Incorporated in The People’s
Republic of China, limited by
registered capital and wholly owned:
Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club manages Members’ social and US$65,000,000 100
Clubhouse Limited recreational facilities
Beijing HKJC Technology provides computer hardware and US$10,000,000 100
Development Limited software technology development
and consulting services
Guangzhou HKJC Race Horse constructs and operates horse RMB1,540,000,000 100
Training Limited training facilities in Conghua
Shenzhen HKJC Technology provides computer hardware and US$3,000,000 100

Development Limited

software technology development
and consulting services
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PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR FULL RACING SEASON

BEE2EABEREWER
HEET in HK$ million 2013+ 2012*
ESHHE Number of race meetings 83 83
FEERIEBEE Amounts wagered by customers 152,189 141,095
EEREFWA Betting and lottery revenue 27,080 25,422
EEB R RS ELH Betting and lottery duty (17,158) (16,022)
FFRF ohith B S HeAE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (26) (48)
REEE Lotteries Fund (1,144) (1,154)
R RAE Net margin and commission 8,752 8,198
Hg A Other revenue 2,792 3,345
11,544 11,543
R R Operating costs (7,911) (7,374)
RERE Operating surplus 3,633 4,169
TR 2 i Interest income from deposits 154 125
BERERRPREHSHRR Surplus from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios 757 425
BERESRENRE Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 1,319 194
BisEMA Finance costs (6) 9)
B B ER Financial surplus 2,224 735
PG HEIESI B BT Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 95 49
HIRBIE - BERSEEESEZERBAUR Surplus before taxation, charitable donations to Charities Trust,
EERTERESRERESAINRE transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund 5,952 4,953
HiiE Taxation (455) (432)
HRBIER  BEZSEEESRERA Surplus after taxation and before charitable donations to
BERTHEAESRBEREESHNER Charities Trust, transfer to Contingency Fund and
Development Fund 5,497 4,521
BRTERESSLERETES Appropriations to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
- BRES — Allocations Fund (1,400) (1,600)
- EXES - Capital Fund (500) (200)
BREBRBEZNFERA Net surplus after appropriations and taxation 3,597 2,721
ERTHERAES Transfer to Contingency Fund (1,319) (194)
ERTRRES Transfer to Development Fund (53) (18)
REBEHEBARERE Retained surplus transferred to Accumulated Reserves 2,225 2,509
*ESHE-—A=tTZEME - * Refer to note 1 on page 132.




SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

ERBE
EEERTERE THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP
BEERIEERE RACING AND BETTING FACILITIES
HEET in HK$ million 2013* 2012* 2011 2010* 2009*
ESHHE Number of race meetings 83 83 83 83 78
ESHEREER A Amounts wagered by customers

on horse race betting 93,956 86,117 80,413 75,497 66,820
EFEEEERET Horse race betting

dividends and rebates (78,797) (72,115) (67,211) (63,056) (55,583)
ESEERA Horse race betting revenue 15,159 14,002 13,202 12,441 11,237
EEEEH Horse race betting duty (11,045) (10,159)  (9,557)  (9,002)  (8,120)
FFRF ohith B S HeAE Payment to racing jurisdictions

outside Hong Kong (26) (48) (51) 41) (32)
EEBYAR Horse race betting net margin 4,088 3,795 3,594 3,398 3,085
EREYEEREETE Amounts wagered by

customers on football betting 50,606 47,285 39,763 38,908 35,108
EERBELE Football betting dividends (42,193) (39,404) (32,643) (32,494) (29,308)
EEREBEWA Football betting revenue 8,413 7,881 7,120 6,414 5,800
EBRIEEH Football betting duty (4,207) (8,940) (8,560) (3,207) (2,900)
EEREBEAR Football betting net margin 4,206 3,941 3,560 3,207 2,900
REBEERIERH Amounts wagered by

customers on lottery 7,627 7,693 6,866 6,375 6,429
RERE Lottery prizes (4,119)  (4,154)  (3,708)  (3,442)  (3,472)
BHEWA Lottery revenue 3,508 3,539 3,158 2,933 2,957
RHEEH Lottery duty (1,906) (1,923) (1,716)  (1,594)  (1,607)
REES Lotteries Fund (1,144) (1,154)  (1,030) (956) (964)
REEL Lottery commission 458 462 412 383 386
HiguA Other net revenue 1,228 1,903 965 933 727
I S Total operating income 9,980 10,101 8,531 7,921 7,098
BELERAR Direct operating costs (5,377)  (4,921)  (4,561)  (4,410)  (4,224)
BB Miscellaneous donations (118) 279) (203) (62) (50)
e - # REREEXEH Depreciation, amortisation, impairment

and expensed project costs (890) (757) (750) (767) (667)
IS AR Total operating costs (6,385)  (5,957) (5,514)  (5,239)  (4,941)
RERE Operating surplus 3,595 4,144 3,017 2,682 2,157
s REe / (&iE) Financial surplus/(deficit) 2,121 691 1,437 942 (2,258)
HIRBIE - BIBRSEEESRERN Surplus/(deficit) before taxation,

URERTFEAEESR charitable donations to Charities Trust,
BRESHNREE/ (FB) transfer to Contingency Fund and

Development Fund 5,716 4,835 4,454 3,624 (101)
BASSELWHEIRERS Unclaimed prizes transferred

to the Snowball Pool 61 91 54 68 65

YT OEEE RIUE R IR0 - BB
ESRERAURERTHALERERESHREE -

*REREUHER -

The above figures represent the results before taxation, charitable donations to Charities Trust,
transfer to Contingency Fund and Development Fund of racing and betting facilities.

* Financial data is for full seasons.
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SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS % #i 2

ERNSEEEBHERAT THE JOCKEY CLUB MEMBERSHIP SERVICES LIMITED
28R MEMBERSHIP FACILITIES
HEET in HK$ million 2013* 2012* 2011 2010" 2009"
Wz Income
[ Membership subscriptions 233 217 172 166 160
BEASEBRESEERE Members’ entrance
and qualification fees 130 130 109 81 80
BEER (5518)/ Bt Catering (deficit)/surplus (30) (23) 2 7 (6)
HibFFBEREK W= Other non-catering income 44 39 35 32 32
377 363 314 286 266
SEEKEETHREY Direct membership
administration costs (284) (267) (229) (214) (179)
EREBEEXSH Depreciation and
expensed project costs (88) 91) (94) (87) (72)
(372) (358) (823) (801) (251)
KERER/ (B18) Operating surplus/(deficit) 5 5 ) (15) 15
Bk Financial surplus 51 26 32 11 24
BREAIZER / (B518) Surplus/(deficit) before taxation 56 31 23 @) 39

R=ZO—=FX"A=+H EES2E2TKERIAK
HFEATNAEBNTAEESEBLT (ZO—=F: +/\E
tFNEEERT)  BENE RERSM=EBZLE
BEL(ZO—Z—F : =B=TFT/\BE#ERT)  REKR
BHRET—EBATERRT (ZO—Z&: +EBAT=E
BEn EEXFEEENEESET(ZO—Z=f:
FEEBEBL)  RBEEAMEATEHEEBT(ZO
——F . XENT-EE8ERT)  BERBEE—REN
FT—EBBT (ZO—Z=F: —&8xn) °

*REREUHER -

The net assets of The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited at 30 June 2013 were HK$1,946
million (2012: HK$1,878 million), including property, plant and equipment of HK$309 million (2012:
HK$338 million), long-term investment portfolios of HK$1,160 million (2012: HK$1,093 million),
deferred tax assets of HK$4 million (2012: HK$5 million), current assets of HK$664 million (2012:
HK$642 million), less current liabilities of HK$191 million (2012: HK$200 million).

* Financial data is for full seasons.



STATISTICAL SUMMARY

BB FTHE
'S RACING
2013+ 2012 2011 2010* 2009*
ESHYE Race meetings
BHEXE Day meetings 46 46 47 47 47
RERE Night meetings 37 37 36 36 31
HRE Total number of meetings 83 83 83 83 78
B BEFSH Races on turf 689 689 689 691 655
2 RIRMBEEFSH Races on all-weather track 80 80 78 76 78
HBIZE Total number of races 769 769 767 767 733
B Horses
B HBEERH Total runners 9,653 9,704 9,502 9,736 9,179
B —5ESETHE Horses winning 1 race 276 321 321 328 279
BHWSESETHE Horses winning 2 races 132 112 113 119 120
BH=5EEETHE Horses winning 3 races 60 46 44 39 43
BH=SU LEEETHE Horses winning over 3 races 11 20 20 18 19
BHEEFTHA Horses with winnings 479 499 498 504 461
FREBHESEBANESTHE Horses not winning — placed 425 422 399 397 420
AREBHESIEBAVESFTTHE Horses not winning — unplaced 379 380 380 374 324
REHEFTHAE Horses not raced 301 273 279 260 255
Brag Total horse population 1,584 1,574 1,556 1,535 1,460
BRET Retirements 444 438 430 397 360
BERS Prize money
REBE (BEBT) Total prize money (HK$ million) 858 826 785 782 763
FI5F9RE (FBT) Average prize money
per race (HK$’000) 1,115 1,074 1,023 1,020 1,042
BUETHYRS (F8T) Average prize money
per horse (HK$’000) 541 525 504 509 523
FRERSREFT Percentage of horses
HETAZESL winning prize money in the year 61% 63% 62% 64% 64%
FRERSREFT Percentage of individual runners
HHBESTAZE DL winning prize money in the year 75% 76% 75% 77% 78%
FRBEEAEFTEAS Percentage of horses recovering
BEZREFEHEDL basic costs or more in the year 38% 38% 36% 38% 38%
EFAFHABAZ (F) Average attendance
per meeting (’000)
fiaf=h:i) Happy Valley 18.1 17.8 17.1 17.5 17.7
WH Sha Tin 29.6 28.8 27.7 28.2 29.3
EFRIE (AEER) Racing Turnover (HK$ million)
BRIt Standard bets 81,427 74,530 69,523 64,884 57,114
HERIF Exotic bets 11,796 10,967 10,325 10,064 9,310
B E BE Rt Fixed odds bets 733 620 565 549 396
#azg Total 93,956 86,117 80,413 75,497 66,820
*2EBERTEH - * Racing statistical data is for full seasons.
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STATISTICAL SUMMARY #tat 87 B2

A% FINANCIAL
BEBT in HK$ million 2013* 2012 2011 2010 2009
A BEBBRFBIR Payments of duty and taxation

to Hong Kong Government
BEEBEH Horse race betting duty 11,045 10,159 9,557 9,002 8,120
BBRIEEH Football betting duty 4,207 3,940 3,560 3,207 2,900
RHEEH Lottery duty 1,906 1,923 1,716 1,594 1,607
FIEH Profits tax 417 412 322 295 238

17,575 16,434 15,155 14,098 12,865

RAB ' BIBEBLES Donation in lieu of

Entertainments tax* to

The Community Chest

of Hong Kong 2 2 3 3 3

PRGBS F N A — BERE - SERESE
SRS RENESASREREBAES  BHT
FE-OO=#ZA=t+—8 HEEWNE-O—HF
=A=t-R-

# Entertainments tax was abolished with effect from 1 April 1993. The Club agreed to donate sums
equivalent to entertainments tax on racecourse admission to The Community Chest of Hong Kong
for ten years up to 31 March 2003, subsequently extended to 31 March 2015.

28 MEMBERSHIP
RABA=+8 as at 30 June 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
EREFEEEAY Number of Hong Kong
Jockey Club Members
2EEE Full Members 14,292 14,064 13,910 13,635 13,382
2EEE (9) Full Members (S) 185 184 189 187 189
EERHMEE Racing and other Members 8,154 8,058 7,928 7,674 7,429
HREEE Absent Members 4,915 4,863 4,798 4,792 4,771
AFEEE Corporate Members 180 178 178 171 168
27,726 27,347 27,003 26,459 25,939
HEEEEAY Number of The Racing Club Members
HBREEE Racing Club Members 747 619 535 450 358
BEANEBA# Number of Mainland Members
BAEE Individual Members 708 587 459 345 169
AFEEE Corporate Members 90 72 55 40 17
29,271 28,625 28,052 27,294 26,483
KBRS GROUP EMPLOYEES
RABA=+8 as at 30 June 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
25 Full-time 5,737 5,545 5,385 5,310 5,303
FRE Part-time 18,427 20,859 21,428 20,981 20,956
*EEBEHEER * Financial data is for full seasons.
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The Trustees have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) was primarily engaged
in supporting charitable organisations and community projects in Hong Kong in accordance with
the Trust Deed.

RESULTS

The results of the Trust for the year are set out in the income statement on page 179. All figures
in the annual report and the audited financial statements are expressed in millions of Hong Kong
dollars, unless otherwise stated.

FUNDS
Movements in funds of the Trust during the year are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Trust allocated HK$1,950 million for charitable purposes, as shown on pages
106 to 116.

TRUSTEES
The Trustees of the Trust are the twelve Stewards of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) as
listed on page 3 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Trust were entered into or existed during the year.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Trustees and is signed for
and on behalf of the Board.

T. Brian Stevenson
Chairman
26 July 2013
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TO THE TRUSTEES OF THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB CHARITIES TRUST
(established in Hong Kong)

We have audited the financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the
“Trust”) set out on pages 179 to 198, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30
June 2013, and the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in funds and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Trustees are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Deed,
and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust Deed and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Trustees, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Trust
as at 30 June 2013, and of its surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 July 2013



INCOME STATEMENT
iy 3 &

BEAA=THLFE for the year ended 30 June EARE$ Capital Fund BFE S Allocations Fund #%8 Total
HEET in HK$ million HiEE Note 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
BREAEEGESEE Appropriations from
The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Group 500 200 1,400 1,600 1,900 1,800
HERENRE / (FIB) Surplus/(deficit)
on sale of investments 1,663 (393) 152 (138) 1,815 (531)
REEREWE Dividend income from investments
— k™ - listed 178 164 17 21 195 185
- SHERE - alternative investments 98 16 78 42 176 58
RE SR SRR Interest income from investments
— k™ - listed 154 162 107 127 261 289
— 3t — unlisted 53 90 36 40 89 130
FRA Bk Interest income from deposits 2 2 17 12 19 14
TESMIANTF (BR)/ Wa Net (losses)/gains of derivative
financial instruments (102) 116 7 142 (95) 258
RAFEEZERBRSIRN Net gains of other financial
Hib g EEN TGS assets at fair value
through profit or loss - = 1 1 1 1
BAREELERER Forfeited dividends and refunds - - 53 56 53 56
EEER Management expenses - - (53) (50) (53) (50)
BRIBREHER Surplus before allocation to
BTN R charitable organisations
and community projects 2,546 357 1,815 1,853 4,361 2,210
1= R B A VIR A 1R Previous allocations not utilised - - 511 67 511 67
BRTREMBREETE Allocation to charitable
organisations and
community projects - - (1,950) (1,729) (1,950) (1,729)
BAERSHNTHERG Net surplus transferred
to Funds 8 2,546 357 376 191 2,922 548

E-B\tHNEZ-BATNENHEEATBRERGO—HD o

The notes on pages 184 to 198 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2HEKE K
BEAA=THLFE for the year ended 30 June EARES Capital Fund BFE S Allocations Fund #%8 Total
BEET in HK$ million HzE Note 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
BAESHNTHERG Net surplus transferred
to Funds 2,546 357 376 191 2,922 548
Hith 2 HEEE Other comprehensive loss
HEmREHSERA Items that may be
R HIEE reclassified subsequently
to income statement
AEHEMKERE Available-for-sale
financial assets
BEEZE Change in value 8 (166)  (1,077) (21) (124) (187)  (1,201)
AEEZEA Total comprehensive
Wz / (E518) #58 income/(loss) for the year 2,380 (720) 355 67 2,735 (653)

E-B\tHNEZ-BATNENHEEATBRERGO—HD o

The notes on pages 184 to 198 are an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 7% AR O 3R
~A=+AH at 30 June EARES Capital Fund B E£ Allocations Fund #%8 Total
HEBT in HK$ million K3 Note 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
FERBEE Non-current assets
RERE Long-term investments 4 22,311 18,998 - - 22,311 18,998
PTESRMIA Derivative financial
instruments 9 16 24 11 19 27 43
22,327 19,022 11 19 22,338 19,041
MENEE Current assets
AUEDZEEBENRE Investments held to
fund charitable projects 5 - - 5,925 6,846 5,925 6,846
Bk EWFIE Loans and receivables - - 37 36 37 36
PTESRMIA Derivative financial
instruments 9 118 37 54 21 172 58
ySE-IEER Short-term deposits 6 - - 2,349 1,953 2,349 1,953
IRITIER Bank balances - - 11 18 11 18
118 37 8,376 8,874 8,494 8,911
mEEE Current liabilities
EEESERE O Allocations
awaiting payment 7 - - (7,303) (7,159) (7,303) (7,159)
H b EFRIE Other payables - - (11) ()] (11) @)
PTESmMIA Derivative financial
instruments 9 (63) (54) (36) 43) (99) 97)
(63) (54) (7,350) (7,204) (7,413) (7,258)
REBEE/(ARE) 58 Net current assets/(liabilities) 55 (17) 1,026 1,670 1,081 1,653
FERBAE Non-current liabilities
TESmMIA Derivative financial
instruments 9 (24) (27) (15) (22) (39) (49)
(24) 27) (15) (22) (39) 49)
22,358 18,978 1,022 1,667 23,380 20,645
=& Funds 8 22,358 18,978 1,022 1,667 23,380 20,645
HEEEA T. Brian Stevenson
i B aH Simon S O Ip
EoR Trustees

E-B\tHNEZ-BATNENHEEATBRERGO—HD o

The notes on pages 184 to 198 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

HEe#gyx
EAES Capital Fund B E S Allocations Fund #8%8 Total

BEBT in HK$ million 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
BEtA—HIEWESHEE Total funds at 1 July 18,978 19,698 1,667 1,600 20,645 21,298
NEEZEWE /(B1E) 458 Total comprehensive

income/(loss) for the year 2,380 (720) 355 67 2,735 (653)
BEHHAR Re-allocation 1,000 - (1,000) - - -
BEAA=THLEWESHE Total funds at 30 June 22,358 18,978 1,022 1,667 23,380 20,645

E-B\tHNEZ-BATNENHEEATBRERGO—HD o

The notes on pages 184 to 198 are an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REREX

BEXA=THLEE

for the year ended 30 June

HEET in HK$ million Hi3E Note 2013 2012
=E ST Operating activities
BARBELETRERK Forfeited dividends and refunds 53 56
BRERREEEEE Appropriations from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Group 1,900 1,800
FRTFRESHERTEE Payments to charitable organisations and community projects (1,295) (1,000)
W IER Decrease in receivables - 1
H A e FRIEE BN Increase in other payables 9 -
ESSEANARSH RIS Loan repayment from
BRABFTHEER The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited - 29
EEHEA Management expenses (53) (50)
EXTBMEENFRE Net cash generated from operating activities 614 836
REES Investing activities
2 WERRI S Interest received 368 435
EUWER S Dividends received 371 243
BEAHEENKEE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (35,872) (20,001)
HETHEEMEEE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets 35,019 18,372
HERATFEEBRBEREIR Sale of other financial assets at fair value through profit
WEMEI K ERE or loss 24 17
HITESRMI AR (1F)/ BUFEEFRIE Net (payment)/ receipt for derivative financial instruments (199) 313
RETHFANZERE Net cash used in investing activities (289) (621)
ReERESEEBYFIEM Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 325 215
FURERRLZEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,971 1,812
Higlas /(&) Exchange gains/(losses) 64 (56)
FRESRRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,360 1,971
RERREZENEFIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
ySHEER N Short-term deposits 6 2,349 1,953
RITIFER Bank balances 11 18
2,360 1,971

E-B\tHNEZ-BATNENHEEATBRERGO—HD o

The notes on pages 184 to 198 are an integral part of these financial statements.

183



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION
The Trust is primarily engaged in supporting charitable organisations and community projects in
Hong Kong in accordance with the Trust Deed.

The Trust is established in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is One Sports Road,
Happy Valley, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million), unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements on pages 179 to 198 were approved by the Board of Trustees on 26
July 2013.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, and derivative financial instruments which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Trust’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in note 3.

(a) Amendments to standards that are effective for the current accounting period

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income

The adoption of the amendments to this standard does not have any impact on the Trust’s financial
statements and has not led to any changes in the Trust’s accounting policies.

(b) New standards and amendments that are relevant to the Trust’s operations but are not yet
effective and not early adopted

The following new standards and amendments have been published and are mandatory for the
Trust’s accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2013.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Trust is still in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these new standards
and amendments will be in the period of initial application, but not yet in a position to state whether
these new standards and amendments will have a significant impact on the Trust’s results of
operations and financial position.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.2 Jointly controlled entities

Jointly controlled entities (“JCE”) are joint ventures whereby the Trust and other parties undertake
an economic activity which is subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

The Trust’s interests in JCE are accounted for by proportionate consolidation. The Trust
combines its share of the JCE’s individual income and expenses, assets and liabilities and cash
flows on a line-by-line basis with similar items in the Trust’s financial statements.

When the Trust sells assets to the JCE, recognition of any portion of a gain or loss from the
transaction shall reflect the substance of the transaction. When the assets are retained by the
JCE, and provided the Trust has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership, the
Trust shall recognise that portion of the gain or loss that is attributable to the interests of the other
JCE unit holders. However, a loss on the transaction shall be recognised immediately if the loss
provides evidence of a permanent reduction in the net realisable value of current assets or
impairment loss.

2.3 Funds

The Trust comprises two funds, the Capital Fund and the Allocations Fund. The Capital Fund is
held in the form of long-term investments with income reinvested for the future. The Allocations
Fund is invested in securities and short-term deposits, and is used for charitable donations. Income
to the Allocations Fund includes income from investments, interest earned on deposits,
appropriations from the Club and its subsidiaries, forfeited dividends and refunds, and transfers
from the Capital Fund as approved by the Trustees.

2.4 Long-term investments

Long-term investments are held for non-trading purposes and are stated at fair value except for
loans and receivables which are stated at amortised cost at the end of the reporting period. The
accounting policy for the financial assets of the long-term investments is stated in note 2.6 below.

2.5 Investments held to fund charitable projects

The primary purpose of investments held to fund charitable projects is to invest surplus funds for
cash management and yield enhancement. They are stated at fair value except for loans and
receivables which are stated at amortised cost at the end of the reporting period. The accounting
policy for the financial assets of the investments held to fund charitable projects is stated in note
2.6 below.

2.6 Financial assets
The Trust classifies its financial assets in the following categories: available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and cash and
cash equivalents. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of the financial assets at initial recognition
and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date. Purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade day — the date on which the Trust commits to purchase or sell the assets.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Trust has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.6 Financial assets (cont.)

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period. They comprise local and overseas listed or unlisted equities, debt securities and/
or alternative investments. Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and retained in the investment revaluation reserve until the assets are sold. On the sale of these
assets, the differences between the net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income and subsequently
reclassified from investment revaluation reserve to income are included in “Surplus/deficit on sale
of investments”.

Alternative investments include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds and private
real estate funds. For those which do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their fair
values will be determined with reference to the values established by external fund managers
using valuation techniques.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category consists of notes with derivative financial instruments and embedded derivatives.
The Trust uses derivatives such as interest rate swaps, equity options, foreign exchange forward
contracts and future contracts to manage its financial risks and to facilitate the implementation
of its investment strategies. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.

Changes in the fair value of these assets are included in the income statement in the period in
which they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference between the net sale proceeds or
the net payment and the carrying value is included in the income statement unless the derivatives
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets.

(c) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method and are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period where these are classified as non-current assets. The Trust’s
loans and receivables comprise “Loans and receivables” in the statement of financial position.

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. In the Trust’s statement of financial position, deposits placed
at bank for a fixed term are classified as “Short-term deposits” while other elements of cash and
cash equivalents represent “Bank balances”.

2.7 Impairment of financial asset

The Trust assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset is impaired. A financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if,
and only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated. It may not
be possible to identify a single, discrete event that caused the impairment. Rather the combined
effect of several events may have caused the impairment. Losses expected as a result of future
events, no matter how likely, are not recognised.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.7 Impairment of financial asset (cont.)

(a) Assets classified as available-for-sale

For equity securities and alternative investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence
of impairment for an investment may include information about significant changes taking place
in the technological, market, economic or legal environment which indicates that the cost of the
investment may not be recovered, as well as a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment below its cost. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement is reclassified from investment revaluation reserve to income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments and alternative investments are
not reversed through the income statement.

(b) Assets carried at amortised cost

For debt securities and loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement.

2.8 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Trust are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The Trust financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Trust’s
functional currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions are
recognised directly in the income statement. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period. The differences arising from
translation are recognised in the income statement except for translation differences on non-
monetary items of available-for-sale financial assets, such as equities, which are included in the
investment revaluation reserve.

2.9 Revenue recognition
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.10 Allocations to charitable organisations and community projects
Allocations to charitable organisations and community projects are charged to the income
statement when they are approved by the Board of Trustees.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

2.11 Forfeited dividends and refunds

In accordance with The Hong Kong Jockey Club’s Betting Rules, dividends and refunds which
are not claimed within the specified period are deemed to be donated for charitable purposes.
These amounts are paid directly to the Trust.

2.12 Related party

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Trust if
the Trust has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence
over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Trust and
the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to exercise significant judgements
in the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates and
assumptions. The basis of valuation of financial instruments that are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties are disclosed in note 12.3.

4 RERE 4 LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
EARES Capital Fund
HEET in HK$ million 2013 2012
AR HENKERE Available-for-sale financial assets
S Equities
EEBLm Listed in Hong Kong 3,799 3,400
V=2 k) Listed overseas 4,128 5,947
7,927 9,347
BRES Debt securities
V=2 k) Listed overseas 3,825 3,973
FEm Unlisted 1,800 1,892
5,625 5,865
BSERE Alternative investments
L™ Unlisted 3,660 3,008
17,212 18,220
HERENES Funds awaiting investment 4,223 509
= Deposits 876 269
22,311 18,998
PTESMI A (FiEE9) Derivative financial instruments (note 9) 47 (20)
22,358 18,978

ERBEREFRNINEFIERNERLBD 2 =8N
(ZO—=F : gozmERt) - EBEFFREFXRNIEK
EEEEEAFEERS  MEMEFIRTHRAS
NE(ZO—=F: h#F) -

The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rate of 2.86% (2012:
4.57%). The carrying amounts of the debt securities and deposits approximated their fair values
and their weighted average remaining maturity was 8 years (2012: 9 years).



4 REHRE (B

4 LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS (cont.)

2013 2012
REREUTHERINE ! Long-term investments are denominated in the following currencies:

Epv uUSsD 51% 54%
BT HKD 19% 20%
/¢ EUR 7% 10%
TR GBP 7% 4%

H JPY 2% 4%
Hih &5 ¥ Other currencies 14% 8%
100% 100%

HEMETREMENRE  HEREFEREES
BE ZEERR-O—=/—=FERIMWHERESF
B UREREATEXER - GREEN=-0—=F
ARA=ZtHREZLAREHERMENER (ERFRAR
ERAUNEBZEEANRE) BES 2T+ N\Bx o

BN ETRIFLTESAENRE » XEBHIH
Stellar Performer Global Series (“f&%&E&”) &85 -
ZEFESREN-OOW/ORFEMRYL » URERESH
AFTBEER - EREESN-O—Z=E~A=1+HEZE
SESHEFENER (BERIPRERANEDZESER
WiRE) Ao 20+ Nt -

5 AUEMZRSIRENRE

The investments in listed overseas equities are held under the HKJC Equity Trust Fund which was
a jointly controlled entity (“JCE”) set up during 2012/13. The principal activity of the Fund is
investment in equities. The interest of the Trust in the JCE (including the long-term investments
and the investments held to fund charitable projects) was 48.6% as of 30 June 2013.

The majority of investments in listed overseas and unlisted debt securities are held under the
Stellar Performer Global Series (“Bond Trust”) set up during 2004/05. The principal activity of this
Bond Trust is investment in debt securities. The interest of the Trust in the Bond Trust (including
the long-term investments and the investments held to fund charitable projects) was 49.7% as of
30 June 2013.

5 INVESTMENTS HELD TO FUND CHARITABLE PROJECTS

FE £ Allocations Fund

HEBT in HK$ million 2013 2012
AHHERKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
S Equities
EBBLD Listed in Hong Kong 279 311
ey =2 Snl 7] Listed overseas 303 515
582 826
BERES Debt securities
ERBLM Listed in Hong Kong 303 321
1=/ Emm Listed overseas 2,023 2,949
FEm Unlisted 1,138 1,147
3,464 4,417
SERE Alternative investments
FEm Unlisted 1,446 1,658
5,492 6,901
RAFEEZERBRIIRNEMEEE Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 24
HERENES Funds awaiting investment 433 -
ERRERE Amounts payable for investment - (79)
5,925 6,846
PTEEMIA (EE9) Derivative financial instruments (note 9) 14 (25)
5,939 6,821

BEREFSZNNEFHERNESBD Z2=HFN (=0
—ZH H2ZOHAMN) - ERESHIRAEEERE
NP EEME  MEANEFIBETHRIB/NE (ZO
—ZFINF)o

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rate of 3.08% (2012: 4.94%). The
carrying amounts of the debt securities approximated their fair values and their weighted average
remaining maturity was 8 years (2012: 8 years).
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5 INVESTMENTS HELD TO FUND CHARITABLE PROJECTS (cont.)

2013 2012
AUEMZEEENREUTIIEMTE : Investments held to fund charitable projects are denominated
in the following currencies:

Epv uUsD 65% 63%
/¢ EUR 10% 15%
HEE GBP 8% 7%
BT HKD 6% 5%

H JPY 2% -
HitE % Other currencies 9% 10%
100% 100%

N EHRERENRE  THEREFEREES
BE ZESRENR-O—=/—=FERIWHRZESH
B UREREATEXER - FREENR=0—=F%
ARAZ+HEZEARZEHERMENER (BERBR
ERAUNEBZEEANRE) BE2 2+ N\EK o

BN ETRIFLTESAENRE  XBHIH
Stellar Performer Global Series (“f&%5&E&”) #E -
ZEFESRENR-OONM/ORFEMYL  URERESH
AEFEEK - EREESN-O—=FXA=1+HEZE
SESMENER (BERBRERAUNENZSER
WiRE) AAsZ0+ Bt -

6 EHITER
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7 S AR
HMEEESR B RN BIRTHEBRIRBTEEER
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XNNBERIMERBEE - A - ERNETESCTHER
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AE G AHBRRNERIHNT :

The investments in listed overseas equities are held under the HKJC Equity Trust Fund which was
a jointly controlled entity (“JCE”) set up during 2012/13. The principal activity of the Fund is
investment in equities. The interest of the Trust in the JCE (including the long-term investments
and the investments held to fund charitable projects) was 48.6% as of 30 June 2013.

The majority of investments in listed overseas and unlisted debt securities are held under the
Stellar Performer Global Series (“Bond Trust”) set up during 2004/05. The principal activity of this
Bond Trust is investment in debt securities. The interest of the Trust in the Bond Trust (including
the long-term investments and the investments held to fund charitable projects) was 49.7% as of
30 June 2013.

6 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS

The weighted average effective interest rate on short-term deposits was 1.21% (2012: 1.28%).
The carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their weighted
average remaining maturity was 99 days (2012: 113 days). The short-term deposits were
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) or United States Dollars (“USD”).

7 ALLOCATIONS AWAITING PAYMENT

The Trust classifies the allocations awaiting payment as current liabilities as the Trust does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the allocations for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. However, due to the inherent nature of the projects for which allocations have
been made by the Trust, the period in which these allocations are expected to be paid may be
greater than 12 months after the reporting period. Based on the estimates of the management,
as at 30 June, the allocations awaiting payment are expected to be paid:

HEBT in HK$ million 2013 2012
R—FR Within one year 2,870 2,495
RE-ZE=FR In the second to third year inclusive 2,591 3,103
NE=F% After the third year 1,842 1,561

7,303 7,159

BREE (A RBRFERSE AR OEETE - B
b8 E R TREH KB AR o

The actual timing of the payments is dependent upon the progress of the individual projects and
may differ from the expected schedule presented above.



8 £& 8 FUNDS
EARES Capital Fund B E £ Allocations Fund
REEMERHE REBMFHE
E&4&8  Investment He#8  Investment
Fund  revaluation “E Fund  revaluation wE
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total balance reserve Total
—O—=—%tA—H At 1 July 2012 18,693 285 18,978 1,644 23 1,667
ERRWREK Transfer from
income statement 2,546 - 2,546 376 - 376
BEHFAR Re-allocation 1,000 - 1,000 (1,000) - (1,000)
AR HENKEENEMER Deficit on revaluation of
available-for-sale
financial assets - (94) (94) - (23) (23)
A ENKEEHERN Realised (gains)/losses
BER (km)/ BiEEHs B8R ARER on disposal of
available-for-sale financial
assets reclassified to
income statement - (72) (72) - 2 2
- (166) (166) - 21) (21)
—O—=%x~A=+H At 30 June 2013 22,239 119 22,358 1,020 2 1,022
—O——%tA—H At 1 July 2011 18,336 1,362 19,698 1,453 147 1,600
ERRklRE Transfer from
income statement 357 - 357 191 - 191
AR HENKEENEMER Deficit on revaluation of
available-for-sale
financial assets - (2,131) (2,131) - (181) (181)
A SRR E E HE R Realised losses on disposal
EERBEEFIBERAKEER of available-for-sale
financial assets
reclassified to
income statement - 1,054 1,054 - 57 57
- (1,077) (1,077) - (124) (124)
—O—=fxA=t+H At 30 June 2012 18,693 285 18,978 1,644 23 1,667
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9 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ERE#$ Capital Fund 5 E £ Allocations Fund #4858 Total
(HMt3E note 4) (K& note 5)
&E afE BE afE &E afE
BEBT in HK$ million Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
EHESFEN Forward contracts on bonds 2 @ - - 2 )
EHNESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts 59 (40) 34 27) 93 (67)
BE Futures 47 (24) 11 (10) 58 (34)
HARE Options - (1) 1 (1) 1 )
=5 Swaps 26 (20) 19 (13) 45 (83)
—O—=%x~A=1+H At 30 June 2013 134 (87) 65 (51) 199 (138)
AMWT ¢ Analysis as:
TENER D Current 118 (63) 54 (36) 172 (99)
FEREE D Non-current 16 (24) 11 (15) 27 (39)
134 (87) 65 (51) 199 (138)
EHESFEHN Forward contracts on bonds 1 - - = 1 =
EHNESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts 16 47) 12 (36) 28 (83)
BB Futures 17 2 5 ()] 22 (@)
HARE Options 4 (3) 4 3) 8 (6)
=5 Swaps 23 (29) 19 (24) 42 (53)
—O—=%x~A=+H At 30 June 2012 61 (81) 40 (65) 101 (146)
AHWT ¢ Analysis as:
TENER D Current 37 (54) 21 (43) 58 (97)
EREIBD Non-current 24 (27) 19 (22) 43 (49)
61 (81) 40 (65) 101 (146)
10 #IE 10 TAXATION

EREESRRREMTBRIEH B SR HBURERE-

1 BREAEALZRS
ERECHEERETRHBARNYERE - HNEE
BEERREBTEFEERETEESRETA  UREFSE
BENARSEAREERADNEFTEXNREERL
AEERRE  AERECHEFEEAMNORSH
RRSBERVARBEFEXNREERLBGERHE -
ERESHAMEBEEATEETHRZNT :

11.1 EEER

FR - ERESHEERENTEREXERY - 05S
XNEBBEAAT=ABET (ZO—=F : ATEH%
TT)  BEFRIARERZA o

1.2 ESEFANLOBEHRREAR D EHEHAER
REHRHR - EREESNERRERFBTEE-£=
FTEBIT (ZO—ZF: =FTEET) WHE - EEX
BEREEAESABESEAMNARSHERNSARLA
HHEREE: - AEEEEWERF S ML R -
BAMSEESEHEREEE -

No provision for taxation has been made because the Trust is exempt from Hong Kong profits tax.

11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Trust is related to the Club and its subsidiaries. It is also related to The Jockey Club Kau Sai
Chau Public Golf Course Limited (“KSCGC”) and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) as the
Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees of the Trust and the Directors of KSCGC and CPS.

The following transactions were carried out by the Trust with other related parties:

11.1 Management expenses

During the year, the Trust paid the Club management expenses of HK$53 million (2012: HK$50
million) for administrative and support services provided by the Club and charged this amount in
the income statement.

11.2 Loan to KSCGC

At the end of the reporting period, included under the loans and receivables was HK$30 million
(2012: HK$30 million) representing the balance of an interest-free, unsecured and repayable on
demand loan made by the Trust to KSCGC.
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

12.1 Financial risk factors

The Trust’s investment activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, equity price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Trust’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Trust’s financial performance. The Trust uses derivative
financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk exposures.

The Trust’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Treasury Department of the Club and external professional
fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Treasury Department of the Club under investment
policies and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Finance and General Purposes
Committee. Investment constraints and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-
specific restrictions and guidelines are set according to the investment objectives of each fund
to control risks of the investments.

(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating
to investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Trust’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in USD or HKD. The HKD is pegged
to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. The remaining
currency exposure arises from globally diversified investments in equities and bonds.

The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major
currencies had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with all
other variables held constant, the Trust’s surplus would have increased/decreased as follows:

2013 2012

HERNBAES HERNBAES

BEEWIRTYH HESHNKE BEBETY  NESNEE

BALEH Effect on B Effect on

TREE 1R / $55 surplus EREEIZSE / $55 surplus

If currency transferred If currency transferred

strengthened/ to Funds strengthened/ to Funds

BEBT in HK$ million weakened by for the year  weakened by for the year

|63 EUR 5% 35 5% 35

AR RMB 5% 17 5% 18

TR GBP 5% 16 5% 3

H JPY 5% 11 5% 30
(i) AR E(E5 /R (i) Equity price risk

REERERRERNREERZES M| BUSENE
o HRRRERTH®  SSRERENEEBETR
AR EEESEAZERZERAR - ELRETWH
RRFZATIA A EBEEERT -

RERHR - BREHEERETENERLA/T
KD 2H  EEMAETEERGERFTENER
T ERESEFEESREANREEMRE S
EAEHEREN D FEEZBME N/ RS AER
FThE8gdn (ZO—=F  AffATEHER) -

Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in equity prices. The Trust is exposed
to equity price risk as the value of its equity investments will decline if equity prices fall.
These investments are classified as available-for-sale financial assets in the statement of
financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
5% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Trust’s investment revaluation surplus
included within the Funds would have increased/decreased by HK$659 million (2012: HK$560
million) as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments.
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

12.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(a) Market risk (cont.)
(iii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This can
be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial
asset will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Trust is exposed to both
fair value and cash flow interest rate risks as the Trust has significant investments that are
interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if there
had been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, the Trust’s surplus for the year would have been HK$25 million higher (2012: HK$18
million). The investment revaluation surplus included within the Funds would have been
approximately HK$234 million lower (2012: HK$264 million) in response to the general increase
in interest rates.

The Trust controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-HKD/USD
exposure. Equity price risk is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by
sectors and by securities. Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines
and by investing across a spectrum of fixed and floating rate instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as
they fall due. In addition, the Trust may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price close
to fair value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Trust maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid
financial markets and instruments.

The Trust also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the
amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Trust to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements can be met.

The non-derivative financial liabilities and gross-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Trust
as at 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual maturity
dates. The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2013
=Z@AHUAT =@EBAE—F —FE

Up to >3 months Over B

BEBT in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
FLTEMBAE Non-derivative financial liabilities

el 5 2 A Y HER Allocations awaiting payment 7,303 - - 7,303

HihEAFRIE Other payables 11 - - 11

UEBEELENITENKEE Gross-settled derivative financial liabilities 92 7 39 138

7,406 7 39 7,452
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
12.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(b) mEELEEE (&) (b) Liquidity risk (cont.)
2012
=Z@AHUAT =@EBAE—F —FBE
Up to >3 months Over B
BEBT in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
FLTEMBAE Non-derivative financial liabilities
EEE iﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁé Allocations awaiting payment 7,159 - - 7,159
HEMATR Other payables 2 - - 2

&%ﬁg/ﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ

RZO—=F-A=1H ERESHFANKRTRE
HOESHRSEEEEREAL TLE-—T—a88

T (ZO—Z&F  t+tBATAEERT) - TRY
EAEEBE-O—=FARA=THLR=-O—Z=FX
A=THLENARFRERANESHELEDIN  BLEY
?H&i@%‘ﬁ tE WIRHHSB TSN A S 2 EEHRA
o TERAEENRBEAESHRITRESHE - BT
Eﬁ%ﬁ#&ﬁﬁﬂmmﬁﬁﬁ(%$ﬁ)$ﬁo

Gross-settled derivative financial liabilities 93 4 49 146

7,254 4 49 7,307

As at 30 June 2013, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts held by the Trust was HK$5,711 million (2012: HK$7,799 million). The table below
analyses the Trust’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30 June 2013 and 2012
that would be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based on their remaining
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted cash
flows, which are different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the Trust’s statement
of financial position.

2013 2012
=BEARUAT =@AZE—F ZEARUT =@BAZE—F
Upto >3 months 4z Upto >3 months ko)
BEBT in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year Total
EHNESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts
pintas] Outflows (5,498) (213) (5,711) (7,511) (288)  (7,799)
A Inflows 5,530 207 5,737 7,456 288 7,744
(c) EER (c) Credit risk

HREEARRZHTF - AOBREDREZNEREIH
BT2ETENER ARETEESASEEERRE -
FERRIERBETEESNER  EHRSRITE
ERESEREERETZHFROBEBE - LR
’(a‘c AEAEENRRFNUBEE  BEREZNESR
o EREEERBRZUFNEETRARIBEEDM
E;ﬂ*ﬁf‘ﬁﬁﬁ fEMEHEAE —BIUER S HF A
ZHERERAR - BERXZUFHNEERR - AIREXS
Fﬁ/ﬂﬁ%Equ’JHFﬁI&f’fﬁém cAZO—=FXA=T
ERETARZEERRNMBERE (MHFE2.6)
E—ﬁ#\%ﬁ LB RN AREEE °

12.2 EXRREMER
EEESEEEANTRE  ENREETESNSEK

ERED - T
- EREZBEAZZEIHE  HOHRTERBFD
B R

- P ERESRERRE  YISHEER -

FEEETHEREER Eﬂﬂﬁ%ﬂk/ﬂilﬂwﬁmﬁ’]%
é RE - UWERETESTEBRLSHRR - StSFd
EEHEE

The Trust is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing
to perform its contractual obligations in full when due. It arises mainly from the Trust’s deposit
placements, debt securities and derivative transactions.

The Trust limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification and deposits are only placed with financial institutions with good credit standing.
Credit limits are established to control the overall exposure to each authorised counterparty based
on its credit ratings and financial strength. Counterparty credit exposures are measured according
to the risk nature of financial products involved in the transaction. As at 30 June 2013, the Trust’s
maximum exposure to the credit risk of financial assets as defined in note 2.6 approximated their
carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.

12.2 Capital risk management
The Trust’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to:
— be a major benefactor of public and community services through charitable contribution; and
— support the Trust’s stability and growth.

The Trust monitors its capital which is same as the Funds shown in its statement of financial
position to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the form of
donations.
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

12.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure for financial instruments that are measured at fair value by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
financial instruments.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar financial instruments,
or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis) in
which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

The financial assets classified as level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of alternative
investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued based on information
derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers
and considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The following table presents the Trust’s financial instruments that were measured at fair value
as at 30 June 2013:

EAE$ Capital Fund

BEBT in HK$ million W5l Level 1 W5l Level 2 7 Level 3 4 %8 Total
&E Assets
REIRE Long-term investments
A ERKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BRE Equities 7,927 - - 7,927
BRES Debt securities = 5,625 = 5,625
BERE Alternative investments = = 3,660 3,660
TTESMITE Derivative financial instruments 46 88 - 134
8f& Liabilities
TEERMTIA Derivative financial instruments (24) (63) - (87)
7,949 5,650 3,660 17,259
B E S Allocations Fund
BEBT in HK$ million W5l Level 1 M5l Level 2 7 Level 3 #%8 Total
&E Assets
AUEZEEBEMNRE Investments held to
fund charitable projects
A ERKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BE Equities 582 - - 582
Bl ES Debt securities = 3,464 = 3,464
BEKRE Alternative investments - - 1,446 1,446
TTESMITE Derivative financial instruments 11 54 - 65
8f& Liabilities
TEERMTIA Derivative financial instruments ) (42) - (51)
584 3,476 1,446 5,506
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
12.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

The following table presents the Trust’s financial instruments that were measured at fair value as

EESEMTIA - at 30 June 2012:
EAE$ Capital Fund
BEBT in HK$ million W5l Level 1 M5l Level 2 7 Level 3 #a%8 Total
BE Assets
REIRE Long-term investments
A ERKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BRE Equities 9,347 - - 9,347
BES Debt securities = 5,865 = 5,865
BERE Alternative investments = = 3,008 3,008
TTESMITE Derivative financial instruments 17 44 - 61
8f& Liabilities
TEERMTIA Derivative financial instruments ()] (79) - (81)
9,362 5,830 3,008 18,200
HRES£ Allocations Fund
BEBT in HK$ million W5l Level 1 W5l Level 2 7 Level 3 4 %8 Total
&E Assets
AUEZEEBEMNRE Investments held to
fund charitable projects
A ERKEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BE Equities 826 - - 826
BRES Debt securities = 4,417 = 4,417
BERE Alternative investments - - 1,658 1,658
BRAFEEZERERYIERN Other financial assets at
Hib g &EE fair value through profit or loss - 24 = 24
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 5 35 - 40
8f& Liabilities
fTHESRTA Derivative financial instruments @) (63) - (65)
829 4,413 1,658 6,900

RZO—Z=FR=-0—Z=%F  =EL2FEEFERGZ During the years of 2013 and 2012, there were no significant transfers of financial instruments

BAE|E AR T EEE -

among the three levels of fair value hierarchy classifications.
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12 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
12.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

The movements of the balance of financial instruments measured at fair value based on Level 3

wmr were as follows:
EAXES BRES
Capital Allocations FbE]
BEBT in HK$ million Fund Fund Total
—O—=%tA—H At 1 July 2012 3,008 1,658 4,666
EUTHRRERN NS L Total gains recognised in
LVEnE. Income statement 14 17 31
ZHEKEE Statement of comprehensive income 319 42 361
BA Purchases 830 388 1,218
HE Sales (512) (659) (1,171)
—O—=%x~A=1+H At 30 June 2013 3,659 1,446 5,105
FRFTAREREIMERPIRER Total gains for the year included in
FRUEMZEEB WRERMNINGE AR income statement and presented in
surplus from long-term investments and
investments held to fund charitable projects 14 17 31
ERBREENEERBERFERFTARGRE Total gains/(losses) for the year included in
WHERMBRER AUEBZAESEE WRE income statement for assets and liabilities held
BEAME / (B58) B8 at the end of the reporting period and presented
in surplus from long-term investments and
investments held to fund charitable projects = = =
EXES BRES
Capital Allocations “zE
BEBT in HK$ million Fund Fund Total
—O——%tA—H At 1 July 2011 2,448 1,655 4,103
TEUTHRRERH (F518)/ WEE5E Total gains/(losses) recognised in
6T Income statement 1 (13) (12)
2HENEE Statement of comprehensive income (27) (26) (53)
BA Purchases 851 1,031 1,882
HE Sales (265) (989) (1,254)
—O—=%x~A=+H At 30 June 2012 3,008 1,658 4,666
FRFTARSEREIMERPIRER Total gains/(losses) for the year included in
FRUEBZEEE B WIREREN income statement and presented in
Wz / (B518) 4858 surplus from long-term investments and
investments held to fund charitable projects 1 (13) (12)

EBBRSANEEREERNFATARER
WHIERMRER AUEBAZRENRE
BEEWER / (B18) #5

198

Total gains/(losses) for the year included in
income statement for assets and liabilities held
at the end of the reporting period and presented
in surplus from long-term investments and
investments held to fund charitable projects
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